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Major Events in 2023
2023F A5
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Qingyun Shangtang Wind Power Project in Shandong T T e T T
Province, Angiu Huangminshan Wind Power Project Z0Z=%=0

in Shandong Province, and Linqu Wind Power Project

in Shandong Province were awarded the honorary

title of the “Excellent New Energy and Renewable

Energy Enterprise for 2022” by Shandong Province
Electricity Association 2022 4"’&?.[??&1 ﬂs‘l‘ I.x-
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Hongshagang Wind Power Project in Gansu Province was awarded
the “Safety Management Excellence Award” and the “Outstanding
Contribution Award” in the Hongshagang Industrial Cluster Area for
2022
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MAR 35

Obtained the first-class project of “National Power

Industry Equipment Management Innovation

Achievements for 2022” by the China Electric Announced the annual
Equipment Management Association results for 2022
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Major Events in 2023
2023F A5
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2023 China

onferance and Expo

Participated in 2023 China (Zhangjiakou) Renewable
Energy Conference and Expo
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Kezuo Zhonggi Photovoltaic Poverty Alleviation Project in Inner Mongolia Autonomous

Region was assessed as an “Integrity-compliant Enterprise” by the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region Development and Reform Commission
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Convened the 2023 Annual General Meeting

BR2023FRRBEFERE

2023 FERE (> FEEEMERERERAR



Major Events in 2023
2023F A5

JUN 65

Huaiyin Liulaozhuang Wind Power
Project in Jiangsu Province was
awarded the “Top Ten Excellent
Wind Farm Stations” at the
“Selection Event of Top 50 in
China Wind Power Industry for
2023” jointly organized by Jiangsu
Province Renewable Energy
Industry Association, etc.
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Swept a total of eleven titles at the 9th Investor Relations Awards from the

Hong Kong Investor Relations Association (HKIRA): “Grand ESG Award” (mid
cap); “3 Years IR Awards Winning Company”; “Best IR Company”; “Best
ESG”(Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance 3 awards); “Best Annual
Report”; “Best IR by Chairman/CEQ”, “Best IR by CFO”, “Best IRO” and “Best IR
Team”

HRESEBREEMAPEHKIRAFNEREEMAFE T —IBAR  BRPE
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Participated in the 19th Western China International Fair
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JUL 75

China Electricity Council announced the results:

Zhangbei Xinsheng Wind Farm in Hebei Province was awarded the

honor of “5A-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production and Operation
Statistical Indicators for National Wind Farms in China”, Leling Zhuji Wind
Farm in Shandong Province was awarded the honor of “4A-level Unit in

the Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for
National Wind Farms in China”, and Leling Tieying Photovoltaic Power
Station in Shandong Province was awarded the honor of “4A-level Unit in the
Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for National
Solar Photovoltaic Power Stations in China”
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Major Events in 2023
2023F A5

T
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CGM Mew Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Announced the interim results for 2023 il . : ﬂi EF ﬂﬂ !lI{ éﬁ ﬁ :FE

Interim Results Announcement
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Obtained the “2023 Advanced Organizations
Implementing High Performance” from China
Association for Quality
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Chairman’s Statement
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Continuing our adherence to the basic
principles of “Safety First, Quality
Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, the
Company implements the work style of
“Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and
Pragmatism” to continuously maintain
high-quality development

NOEBERE [REF— - 885 —
BxXkei] ERRA - BT [REHES
NIFERE  KERSSEEER

e
7
o

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee, Chairman and Executive Director

ELZEC IRRITES

Dear Honourable Shareholders,

2023 was the beginning year for the implementation of the spirit of the 20th
National Congress of the Communist Party of China (“CPC”), and a crucial
transitional year for the implementation of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The
Company shouldered its mission and maintained its strategic focus in the
context of the national dual-carbon goal, and accelerated the construction of a
more competitive first-class new energy enterprise.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATING
RESULTS

The Company was deeply aware of the situation facing the new energy industry
and endeavoured to seize the opportunity of industry development. The
Company adhered to the basic principles of “Safety First, Quality Foremost
and Pursuing Excellence”, carried forward the work style of “Stringency,
Prudence, Meticulosity and Pragmatism”, and strictly abode by the principles
of lawfulness, compliance, and integrity to ensure the Company’s high-quality
development.

In 2023, the profit attributable to equity shareholders amounted to US$267.7
million, representing an increase of 37.2% compared with last year; basic
earnings per share of the Company was US$6.24 cents (equivalent to
HK$48.66 cents per share). As of 31 December 2023, the attributable
installed capacity of the Company’s power plants reached 9,622.8 MW,
representing a year-on-year increase of 7.1%. During the year, the new
attributable installed capacity reached 644.8 MW. The Company strengthened
the quality control of equipment and captured every single watt of electricity.
In 2023, the Company’s power generation reached 19,076.6 GWh, remained
basically stable as compared with last year. The condition of production safety
was stable, and our production and operation maintained a good momentum.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Under the background of “30.60” dual-carbon policy, the Company will always
adhere to its corporate mission of “Developing Clean Energy and Building a
Beautiful China”, and endeavour to work hard and struggle for the Company’s
high-quality development.

Zhang Zhiwu
Secretary of the Communist Party Committee, Chairman and Executive Director

26 March 2024

11

Chairman’s Statement

+ % B
EBRERSEEM

ABRZDHMERTEMBNTLE > BHEBEMITE
EROMBEE %&%rﬁié’%—\éz%—ﬁ_;ﬁétj
NWEARA BHTREMBINITFER BTEZES
RBRRRE REQARDSEEXERE-

20235 HHEREEENA267.7TEEETT REFE
Eign37.2%; AEEREARF A6 24F W HHERE
f248.668 1) o & ZE2023F 128318 » A ) & BRERAVE
HERARSET9,622.8JKF > BLEMNT7.1% &R HIE
&“”i&%a\gu;m SR - RElRIEREEERE E

BN Fo2023F  RE)EEEE19,076.65 R HE
FERARFV 224 ERREE LFELERERES

o

REXRK

[30.60 | BMBMRAT R T ARIGKRRKIERBIFLE
FoERERBTEINECESER RADSEELEREEH
B EF

RER

BZEZH TERNTEF

2024F3H26H

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERERAR



12

President’s Statement
R EYVE

Li Guangming

=5 0R

President and Executive Director
MEBRWITES

Dear Honourable Shareholders,

In 2023, under the correct leadership of the Board of Directors of the
Company and with the joint efforts of all employees, the Company, in the
face of tough and complex external environment, adhered to a high-quality
lean development approach to promote the realization of its annual operating
objectives.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

The Company will grab the opportunities
arising from market changes, and
contribute to the realization of the
dual-carbon goal by consolidating and
developing its existing capabilities and
strengths, and cultivating and building its
core competitiveness with high standards.

rABRNMEZEEHE  EEERERE
NilED  SREZBSTERLHRIN
REBRELHBIRERMNE

SRS MURE
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INDUSTRY SITUATIONS

By the end of 2023, the nationwide installed capacity of power generation
reached 2,919.7 GW, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
13.9%. Driven by the rapid development of new energy power generation,
the installed capacity of non-fossil energy power generation exceeded that
of thermal power generation for the first time in 2023, and its share in the
total installed capacity exceeded 50% for the first time in 2023, reaching
approximately 53.9%, while the share of coal power generation fell below
40% for the first time. By the end of 2023, the combined installed capacity of
grid-connected wind power and solar power exceeded 1,000 GW, accounting
for over one-third of the total installed capacity, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 6.4 percentage points.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION
MANAGEMENT

In accordance with the established tasks and objectives, all staff of the
Company practiced the work style of “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and
Pragmatism”, and strove for and captured every single watt of electricity.
The Company maximized the overall benefits of power generation and tariffs
through the synergy of production and sales. Meanwhile, the Company pushed
forward the pre-project work, effectively improved the efficiency of project
conversion, and strengthened the resource security, which laid the foundation
for the completion of the task for the whole year.

The Company paid close attention to safety management and quality
management in accordance with the basic principles of “Safety First, Quality
Foremost and Pursuing Excellence “. During the year, the newly commissioned
attributable installed capacity of wind power was 18.7 MW; the newly
commissioned attributable installed capacity of solar power was 581.1 MW;
and the Hanneng’s Phase Il attributable installed capacity of a unit of 45 MW
natural gas distributed project in Hubei Province was successfully put into
operation.

The Company was awarded several prizes in terms of engineering and capital
market during the year: the Company continued to explore and innovate
in engineering construction. In 2023, the Company’s Huaiyin Liulaozhuang
Project in Jiangsu Province was awarded the “Top Ten Excellent Wind Farm
Stations” (T+{EEFEBEIBUE]). The Company maintained a high level of
corporate governance. In 2023, the Company swept eleven titles at the 9th
Investor Relations Awards from the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association
(HKIRA), including the “Grand ESG Award” (mid cap) and “Best IR Company”
for three consecutive years.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

New energy continues to be the mainstay of green energy development. Amid
the fast and steady industrial development, new energy is in a period of major
strategic development opportunities. The Company will grab the opportunities
arising from market changes, and contribute to the realization of the dual-
carbon goal by consolidating and developing its existing capabilities and
strengths, and cultivating and building its core competitiveness with high
standards.

Li Guangming
President and Executive Director

26 March 2024
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Distribution of Projects
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Distribution of Projects
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Financial and Operating Highlights

B NREFBRE

EBITDA
AL A N4 EE B 1k EH

(US$ million)

Decreased by 2.8% as compared with 2022

EE 20225 R702.8%

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

TAB)EmRRES T

(US$ million)
263

Increased by 37.2% as compared with 2022

EE 20228180 37.2%

REVENUE
HZA

(US$ million)
2193

Decreased by 9.8% as compared with 2022
£t 20224 752109.8%

EPS
SREF

US cents per share
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Increased by 37.2% as compared with 2022
EE 2022418 1037.2%

ATTRIBUTABLE
INSTALLED
CAPACITY
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

China’s power market:

According to the data published by the NEA, the installed capacity of
the PRC amounted to 2,919.7 GW in 20283, representing a year-on-year
increase of 13.9%, while electricity consumption amounted to 9,224.1
TWh, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.7%. The accumulated
grid-connected wind power capacity for 2023 reached 441.3 GW,
with a year-on-year increase of 20.7%, while the accumulated grid-
connected solar power capacity recorded 609.5 GW, with a year-on-
year increase of 55.2%.

In 20283, the new energy industry continued to maintain a stable
growth trend, achieved high-quality development, and provided strong
support for China to achieve the goal of carbon peak and carbon
neutrality.

Firstly, energy investment maintained a relatively fast growth trend. The
construction of key infrastructure and new infrastructure was vigorously
promoted in the energy sector, driving investment growth at a high
level. Renewable energy continued to maintain a rapid growth trend,
and the construction of large-scale wind power photovoltaic bases
focusing on deserts, Gobi and barren lands was progressing well. The
first batch of large-scale wind power photovoltaic bases have all been
started, and the second batch of base projects have been started
one after another, helping the new installed capacity of new energy to
break through the highest level in history.

In April 2023, the NEA issued the “Guiding Opinions on Energy
Work in 2023” ({2023FEfERIT/EIEEER)). The document
proposed that it promotes the first batch of large-scale wind power
photovoltaic base projects focusing on deserts, Gobi and barren
lands to be connected to the grid and put into operation, builds the
second and third batches of projects, and actively promotes the
large-scale development of solar and thermal power generation; it is
proposed to steadily build offshore wind power bases, and plan for the
commencement of the construction of offshore solar farms; it is also
proposed to vigorously push forward the construction of distributed
onshore wind power and distributed photovoltaic power generation
projects.

In November 2023, China and the United States issued the
“Sunnylands Statement on Enhancing Cooperation to Address the
Climate Crisis” ((ERMBREFREREBCENBGIZMER)),
stating that both countries support the G20 Leaders Declaration to
pursue efforts to triple renewable energy capacity globally by 2030
and intend to sufficiently accelerate renewable energy deployment
in their respective economies through 2030 from 2020 levels in this
critical decade of the 2020s.
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Secondly, green and low-carbon transformation was promoted
in depth. Various pilot demonstration projects have been carried
out, encouraging different types of projects, cities and zones to
explore the paths and forms of achieving carbon peaks with their
own characteristics, and assuming the important responsibility
of demonstrating and leading, so as to ultimately promote the
coordination and progress of the national carbon peak work. The
construction of the carbon market and the power market was further
promoted, and the green certificate system was improved to further
stimulate the vigor and momentum of high-quality energy development.
A coal power capacity tariff mechanism was established to promote
the transformation of coal power into a regulated energy source.

In July 2023, the second meeting of the Central Commission for
Comprehensively Deepening Reform considered and adopted the
“Opinions on Promoting the Gradual Shift from Dual Control of Energy
Consumption to Dual Control of Carbon Emissions” (KRS HESNAE
REZZSEORBENEZEMNER)), which is the third time that
the shift to “dual control” of the total volume and intensity of carbon
emissions was proposed at the national top-level meeting following the
2021 Central Economic Work Conference and the Report of the 20th
National Congress of the Party, and will accelerate the expansion and
increase the volume of China’s carbon market. In the carbon market,
carbon offsets are driven by carbon quotas, which in turn drive the
China Certified Emission Reduction (CCER). Through the form of
carbon trading, on the one hand, the pressure to reduce emissions is
pressed down to the corporate level, and on the other hand, through
the economic incentives, funds are guided to promote low-carbon
technological innovations and the development of renewable energy.

In August 2023, the NDRC, the Ministry of Finance, and the NEA
jointly issued the “Notice on Doing a Good Job of Full Coverage of
Renewable Energy Green Power Certificates to Promote Renewable
Energy Power Consumption” ((BARMEF I BAEERGABEZENFES
BETFRETBEERBI/IIHEMIEN)). The Notice specified
that full coverage of green certificate issuance will be realized, and
that green certificates will be issued for all electricity produced by
registered renewable energy power generation projects.

In September 2023, the NEA issued the “Notice on Organizing Pilot
Demonstration of Renewable Energy Development” ((BAAR%ALESE
AIBERERERERFE M REABEAD) . The pilot demonstration projects
include twenty types of new scenarios of new energy such as deep-
sea wind power technology demonstration, new high-efficiency
photovoltaic battery technology demonstration, low-cost solar and
thermal power generation technology demonstration, geothermal
energy power generation technology demonstration, photovoltaic sand
control demonstration, photovoltaic corridor demonstration, deep-sea
offshore wind power parity demonstration, offshore photovoltaic pilot,
offshore energy island demonstration, biomass energy clean heating
demonstration, high-ratio new energy demonstration, and green energy
demonstration parks (districts).
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In October 2023, the NDRC and the NEA jointly issued the “Notice
on Further Accelerating the Construction of Electricity Spot Market”
(EARE—PMRAEHIRETISELZITIENBEH D). The Notice
specified that the scope of spot market construction will be expanded
in an orderly manner, the construction of regional electricity markets
will be accelerated, and the vast majority of regions other than the
Tibet Autonomous Region will have the conditions for trial operation of
settlement by the end of 2023.

In October 2023, the NDRC issued the “National Carbon Peak Pilot
Construction Program” ((BIRIRZIESBEER T ZE)), proposing
to select 100 typical representative cities and zones nationwide to
carry out carbon peak pilot construction. The Program proposed
to plan and implement a number of key projects in the areas of
energy infrastructure, energy-saving and carbon-reducing renovation,
advanced technology demonstration, environmental infrastructure,
resource recycling, and ecological protection and restoration.

In November 2023, the NDRC and the NEA jointly issued the “Notice
on Establishment of Capacity Tariff Mechanism for Coal Power” ({R#*
B IEEBEAEEBEILEIFES)) . The Notice specified that the current
single-part tariff for coal power will be adjusted to a two-part tariff,
in which the electricity volume tariff will be formed through a market-
based approach, sensitively reflecting the supply and demand in the
electricity market and changes in fuel costs, etc.; and the level of the
capacity tariff will be reasonably determined and adjusted gradually
in accordance with the progress of the transition and other actual
circumstances, fully reflecting the supportive and regulatory value of
coal power to the electricity system, and ensuring the sustained and
healthy operation of the coal power industry.

Thirdly, new progress was made in the high-quality development of
energy. The construction of key projects in solar thermal and pumped
storage was sped up. The construction of auxiliary service markets
around the regions was accelerated according to local conditions,
and over 90 GW of peaking potential was tapped. With the deepening
of the energy transition, the substantial growth of new energy power
generation installed capacity, the high proportion of power electronic
equipment access, the security and stability of the power system are
facing serious challenges. As China has put forward the requirements
for the construction of a new type of power system, the importance
of the flexibility of regulating power supply and peaking power supply
has become more prominent, lithium batteries, compressed air, flow
batteries and other technology projects are growing rapidly and their
positioning is clearer.

In March 2023, the NEA issued the “Notice on Matters Related
to Promoting Large-scale Development of Solar Thermal Power
Generation” ((FAREBNALERECLEEREMEENERN)).
The Notice required the energy authorities of Inner Mongolia, Gansu,
Qinghai, Xinjiang and other key provinces of solar thermal power
generation to actively promote the planning and construction of solar
thermal power generation projects, coordinate the planning and layout
of photovoltaic and solar thermal, reasonably lay out or reserve solar
thermal sites, simultaneously promote the scale and industrialized
development of solar thermal power generation projects in the
construction of local new energy bases, and strive for the annual new
construction scale of solar thermal power generation in China to reach
about 3 GW during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period.
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In June 2023, the NEA issued the “Notice on Pilot Demonstration of
New Energy Storage” (RN BEIAEGEAE T/ RE TIEREAD)).
Demonstration projects will be included in the relevant national major
engineering project library, preferably selected and recommended
to participate in the relevant scientific and technological innovation,
standards and other awards selection, and enjoy relevant support
policies. The purpose of the Notice is to drive innovation in technology
and business models through pilot demonstration, and to drive the
diversified and industrialized development of new energy storage.

In June 2023, the NEA issued the “Blue Book on the Development
of New Power Systems” (BB HARMGKEREERZ)), which took
2030, 2045 and 2060 as important time nodes for the construction
of new power systems, and formulated a “three-step” development
approach for new power systems, with key tasks including the
coordination of hydropower development and ecological protection,
active development of nuclear power in a safe and orderly manner,
vigorous promotion of the development and construction of new energy
sources, rational distribution of clean and efficient thermal power, and
the development of biomass power generation in accordance with local
conditions; promotion of multi-energy complementarity of new energy
and regulatory power supply, the integrated development of power
generation, grid, load and storage, and promotion of the construction
of system-friendly “new energy + energy storage” power stations.

In August 2023, 10 departments including the NDRC jointly issued
the “Implementation Program for Demonstration Projects of Green
and Low-carbon Advanced Technologies” ({&% & {E Bk 5t 3 3 i~ 86
TRREMAZE)). The Program proposed that by 2025, a number of
demonstration projects will have been implemented, and a number
of support policies, business models and regulatory mechanisms
conducive to the promotion and application of green and low-carbon
technologies will have been gradually improved, so as to explore
effective paths for carbon reduction in key areas. Key areas of focus
include deep-sea wind demonstration, advanced power grid and
energy storage demonstration, green hydrogen demonstration, low-
carbon industrial park demonstration, carbon capture, utilization and
storage (CCUS) demonstration and other projects.

In September 2023, the NDRC and the NEA jointly issued the “Guiding
Opinions on Strengthening the Stability of the Power System in the
New Situation” (B MBMEB TENRABE LIENEERR)).
The document proposed that new energy should be transformed from
passive access to active support, reflecting system friendliness. Energy
storage should be scientifically planned and configured according to
needs, and the construction capacity and access locations of energy
storage power stations should be reasonably determined to ensure that
they play a role in regulating resources.
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Offshore wind power:

In 20283, offshore wind power continued to show a trend of rapid
development globally, and its development was mainly manifested
in the expansion of indicator issuance, and continuous innovation in
technology.

Expansion of indicator scale: In 2022, a total of six provinces issued
offshore wind power indicators, totalling 16 GW. In 2023, a total of
two provinces opened competitive allocations for offshore wind power
projects, issuing a total scale of 25 GW, including 16 GW in sea
areas under national jurisdiction, marking the gradual development
of offshore wind power projects to the distant sea and deep sea, and
greatly unlocking the development space of offshore wind power,
which provided a guarantee for the continuous growth of new installed
capacity of offshore wind power in the country.

Continuous innovation in technology: On one hand, China has
developed the world’s largest 18 GW offshore wind turbine, which has
reduced the number of units deployed in the project and significantly
lowered the cost per kW of the project, effectively enhancing the
economics of offshore wind power; on the other hand, continuous
improvement in the design and installation of offshore wind power
equipment has further promoted the development of offshore wind
power technology.

In November 2023, the Ministry of Natural Resources issued the
“Notice on Exploring and Promoting the Work of Establishing Multi-
dimensional Layered Rights in Sea Areas” ((BARIFZRIEHE BTG 2

DBRMETIEREAN)), which encouraged multi-dimensional layered
authorlzahon of sea uses such as cross-sea bridges, aquaculture,
warm (cold) drainage, submarine cables and pipelines, and submarine
tunnels. The document is the first national-level policy on multi-
dimensional sea use. The multi-dimensional layered affirmation of
rights is a supplement to the existing “flat” sea area management
system, which enables the multi-dimensionality and multi-functionality
of sea area spatial resources to be effectively brought into full play,
and will promote the change of the sea area management mode
to “multi-dimensionality” and “three-dimensionality”, which will be
conducive to the exploration of the co-operation mode between new
energy enterprises and other sea-users for the co-exploitation and joint
use of different portions of the same sea area by means of “layered
comprehensive exploitation and utilization”, so as to maximize the
benefits of the sea area resources.

Korean power market:

As the Korean power market is undergoing a transformation of energy
structure, it is expected that there would be an increase in the use of
renewable energy and more natural gas power plants in the future. As
the operation of new power plants would intensify the competition in
the power market, the profitability of Korean gas-fired power generation
companies was hindered.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s portfolio of assets comprises wind, solar, gas-fired, coal-
fired, oil-fired, hydro, cogen, fuel cell and biomass projects, which are
in the PRC and Korea power markets. The Group’s business in the
PRC covers 19 provinces, two autonomous regions and a municipality
with a wide geographical coverage and diversified business scope.
As of 31 December 2023, the operations in the PRC and Korea
accounted for approximately 77.5% and 22.5% of the Group’s
attributable installed capacity of 9,622.8 MW, respectively. Clean
and renewable energy projects (namely, wind, solar, gas-fired, hydro,
fuel cell and biomass projects) accounted for 83.8% of the Group’s
attributable installed capacity; and conventional energy projects
(namely, coal-fired, oil-fired and cogen projects) accounted for 16.2%
of our attributable installed capacity.

The following table sets out items selected by us from the results of
the Group (by fuel type):

PRC
Coal-fired,
Cogen and
Korea Gas-fired
Projects Projects
HEIRIE -
HEMER
US$ million BEET BEEE MRER
For the year ended HF2023%F12831H
31 December 2023 LEE
Revenue ON 1,151.0 133.4
Operating expenses "SRy (1,039.8) (120.0)
Operating profit/(loss) &&i&F,/ (§518) 111.2 13.4
Profit/(loss) for the year EMiHF / (£518) 71.5 16.4
Profit/(loss) attributable AT ERKRE
to equity shareholders  FE{LEFI/ (F518)
of the Company 71.5 15.2
For the year ended HZE2022512831H
31 December 2022 LFEE (BE5)
(Restated)
Revenue WA 1,377.4 151.1
Operating expenses RS (1,261.6) (143.4)
Operating profit/(loss) LR/ (58) 115.8 77
Profit/(loss) for the year — EREF],/ (§518) 62.7 (43.2)
Profit/(loss) attributable A KRR
to equity shareholders FE(EER/ (E518)
of the Company 62.7 (49.9)
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(4.6)
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A EM83.8%; BHMAETRIBEE BMARAIE ~ WH K
HREHEBEE) GHRARDERETEN16.2%°

TREIARMELEENEETRENRE
(iRt D 48)

PRC PRC

Wind Solar
Projects Projects Corporate Total

FERE HEKGE
] EH ¥ Bt
702.4 134.1 65.1 2,193.0
(329.9) (75.3) (69.4) (1,640.5)
372.5 58.8 (4.3) 552.5
269.0 29.0 (102.1) 279.6
259.5 28.2 (102.1) 267.7
692.8 137.1 52.9 2,430.1
(297.9) (67.1) (59.5) (1,840.4)
394.9 70.0 (6.6) 589.7
241.2 45.7 (100.0) 214.4
230.9 441 (100.0) 195.1
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Korea Projects

If the one-off adjustment on the post-tax impact of impairment losses
recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment of US$16.8
million in 2022 was taken out, the profit would have decreased from
US$79.5 million in 2022 to US$71.5 million in 2023, which was mainly
due to the decrease in power generation.

PRC Coal-fired, Cogen and Gas-fired
Projects

The increase in profit for the year from loss of US$43.2 million in 2022
to profit of US$16.4 million in 2023 was mainly attributable to the
decrease in market coal price that led to the increase in profit of the
associates.

PRC Wind Projects

The increase in revenue for the year was mainly attributable to the
increase in power generation from wind projects.

If the one-off adjustment on the post-tax impact of impairment losses
recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment of US$45.0
million in 2022 was taken out, the profit would have decreased
from US$286.2 million in 2022 to US$269.0 million in 2023, which
was mainly due to the increase in other operating expenses and
depreciation.

PRC Solar Projects

The revenue as well as the power generation from solar projects for
the year remained stable. The profit decreased from US$45.7 million
in 2022 to US$29.0 million in 2023, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in recognition of loss allowance of trade and other
receivables and contract assets and impairment loss of goodwill.
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Installed Capacity

The attributable installed capacity of t
31 December 2023 and 2022 by fuel t

he Group’s power assets as of
ype are set out as follows:

EHEE
AEBFRBEEEENR2023F K2022F128
STHMEREKSERBEBRE S EEHIW
I

As at 31 December

#12H831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
(Mw) (MW)
CER) CkE)
Clean and renewable energy portfolio AERUBERERES
Wind B & 4,437.8 4,4191
Solar PN 1,759.4 1,186.8
Gas-fired AR 1,700.0 1,655.0
Hydro IKE 56.3 56.3
Biomass EWE 109.5 109.5
Subtotal INEE 8,063.0 7,426.7
Conventional energy portfolio BRERES
Coal-fired IR IR 989.8 989.8
Qil-fired IR 507.0 507.0
Cogen B E 63.0 63.0
Subtotal NS 1,559.8 1,559.8
Total attributable installed capacity MERRERE 9,622.8 8,986.5
4,437.8 &M&1F————————j
(46.1%) (49.2%)
109.5 109.5
(1.1%) (1.2%)
1,759.4 R/////// 1,186.8 %II”” 2022
(18.3%) (13.2%)
S 630
S 630 0.7%
0.6%) ©.7%)
6% — 507.0
1,7000 «——— * 507.0 1655.0 (5.7%)
(17.7%) \ (5.3%) (18.4%)
e 989.8 \ 989.8
56.3 ‘ (10.3%) 56.3 \ (11.0%)
(0.6%) N (0.6%) )
Total ,%,%'\ E'I' . 9,6228 MWIKE, Total ,? E‘}' . 8,9865 MWIKE

s
BERRABEERES

Wind E“'f Solar

g\
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As at 31 December 2023, the attributable installed capacity of the
Group reached 9,622.8 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of
7.1%, in particular, the newly added attributable installed capacity
of wind power and solar power amounted to 599.8 MW in total and
the newly added attributable installed capacity of gas-fired power
amounted to 45.0 MW.

The attributable installed capacity of wind power amounted to 4,437.8
MW, representing a year-on-year increase of 18.7 MW or 0.4%;
whereas the attributable installed capacity of solar power amounted
to 1,759.4 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of 572.6 MW or
48.2%. The wind power and solar power accounted for 64.4% of the
Group’s attributable installed capacity. As at 31 December 2023, the
consolidated installed capacity of the power plants reached 8,906.7
MW.

In 2023, the Group steadily promoted the development of its wind
power business. The newly added attributable installed capacity of
18.7 MW was mainly distributed by region as follows: (1) 15.0 MW
in Hebei Province and (2) 3.7 MW in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region.

In 2023, the Group further strengthened the development of its solar
business, and the newly added attributable installed capacity of 581.1
MW was mainly distributed by region as follows: (1) 200.0 MW in
Jiangsu Province, (2) 121.1 MW in Zhejiang Province, (3) 100.0 MW in
Hainan Province, (4) 80.0 MW in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
(5) 50.0 MW in Anhui Province, (6) 20.0 MW in Gansu Province and
(7) 10.0 MW in Hebei Province. In the first half of 2023, the Group
disposed of a 8.48 MW distributed rooftop photovoltaic power project
in Hunan Province.

In 2023, the Group achieved grid connection of a generator set of
75.0 MW (60% held) Hanneng Phase Il natural gas distributed project
in Hubei Province; another generator set of 75.0 MW (60% held)
achieved grid connection in January 2024.

The Group has been adhering to the principle of high-quality
development and expedited project construction comprehensively. It is
expected that the growth of new operating capacity in 2024 will remain
steady.
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Safety Management

During the development process, the Company deeply implemented
General Secretary Xi Jinping’s important statement and important
directions on safety production and always insisted on the people
first and life first, upholding the policy of safety first as the key to
prevention, adhering to “three musts for three managements (i.e.
safety must be guaranteed in management of industry, management
of operation and management of production) and the basic principles
of “Safety First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”. In 2023,
the Company fully focused on the theme of building a solid foundation,
continued to enhance the effectiveness of quality management system,
implemented the safety development in all areas and all procedures
of the Company, implemented the safety production responsibilities
at all levels, achieved a highly stable safety situation and high-quality
development, as well as protected the health and safety of employees.

The Company established and improved the safety production
responsibility system for all staff, improved the safety, quality and
environmental responsibilities at all levels and positions. In addition,
adhering to the overall idea of “the persons in charge shoulder
their respective responsibilities” with the principle of separating the
management and the supervision, we further optimized performance
evaluation models, improved the standard for performance evaluation
by conducting the supervision on the performance of safety, quality
and environmental responsibilities for all staff at all levels, and fully
implementing the responsibility for safety production for all staff at all
levels, so as to safeguard high-end and stable safety production.

The Company continued to implement a dual prevention mechanism
for safety risk classification and control, and for the investigation and
treatment of hidden dangers, advanced the judgment of risks, and
organized units in each region to conduct seminars on the safety,
quality and environmental risks, with clear management responsibility
and precise management and controls of risks. Meanwhile, we
improved the process of investigation and treatment of hidden dangers,
and clarified the responsibilities of investigation, treatment, monitor
and close-loop management at all levels. Through various methods
such as leader-led team inspection, on-site assistance, and overall
safety inspection, the Company deeply implemented investigation
and treatment of hidden dangers on the basis of “full system and
procedures” and implemented close-loop management of hidden
dangers by prioritizing safety risks over potential risks and potential
risks over incidents so as to fortify production safety network.

The Company attached great importance to the construction of safety,
quality and environmental standardization, and through the optimization
of the construction, evaluation and incentive mechanism for safety,
quality and environmental standardization, and the conduction of
special improvements on safety, quality and environmental activities,
the Company promoted the deep integration of safety, quality and
environmental standardization with daily work, and practically improved
the safety, quality and environmental level on site.

The Company promoted the autonomous management of safety,
quality and environment, and strengthened the proactive and
autonomous management of its branches and enhanced the
responsibilities for safety, quality and environment of each unit by
means of formulating plans, supervising processes and inspiring and
restricting.
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Project Construction

In 2023, the Company focused on the enhancement of its core
competence in engineering construction, continued to expand the
breadth of its industry-wide and chain-wide management, strengthened
the depth of its process-wide and element-wide management,
and pushed forward the progress of engineering construction in a
comprehensive and orderly manner. Firstly, our projects achieved
remarkable results, with key and difficult projects completing their
commissioning tasks one after another, and the new installed capacity
growing steadily. Secondly, our integrated management and control
has become more in-depth. The Company continued to implement
multiple management methods, such as framework procurement of
equipment, national unified scheduling of production, supply and
construction resources, so as to provide solid protection for the
project construction. Thirdly, safety, quality, environment and cost
management were further enhanced, with the “three zeros” targets
— zero serious injuries, zero large equipment liability accidents and
zero environmental penalty, target for safety, quality and environment
achieved in the field of project construction, and our unit cost
per kW ranked as the leader in the industry. Fourthly, information
technology construction has enabled new capabilities. We have built
an information technology platform for project management, pushed
forward the promotion and coverage of intelligent construction
sites, and driven changes in project management and efficiency
enhancement through information technology.

Development of Preliminary Projects

Against the backdrop of carbon peak and carbon neutrality, the
Company has demonstrated its responsibility as a central enterprise
of clean energy, resolutely implemented a high-quality development
strategy, insisted on development as the first priority, intensified the
development and construction of new energy sources, united with the
upstream and downstream industrial chains, innovated its development
mode, built its core competitiveness, and strived to achieve the “dual-
carbon” goal.
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Power Generation

The power generation (GWh) of the projects of the Group is set out as
follows:

PRC Wind Projects hEEEER

PRC Solar Projects FEXGEEE
PRC Cogen and Gas-Fired Projects BV M E AR T
PRC Hydro Projects FEKEEE
Korea Projects EEHIEE

Total st

In 2023, the Company’s production, operation and maintenance lines,
faced with the pressure and challenges of extreme weather, equipment
quality and restrictions on electricity consumption, always insisted on
focusing on the electricity target, conducted in-depth analysis and
explored the potential in terms of inspection and maintenance plan
management, control of non-scheduled outages, and performance
enhancement, etc., focused on identifying the areas of equipment
risks, coordinated and reasonably arranged modes of operation,
monitored the power generation situation, increased the frequency
of inspections of key areas, key equipment, and weak links, strictly
enforced hierarchical control of equipment and timely elimination of
equipment risks; firmly built a network information security prevention
system and comprehensively protected information security, providing
strong protection for stable power supply. As of 31 December 2023,
the electricity generated by the Group’s consolidated power generation
projects amounted to 19,076.6 GWh, which remained basically stable
as compared with that of last year.

The electricity generated by PRC wind projects and PRC solar projects
reached 10,367.7 GWh and 1,733.5 GWh respectively, representing
growth rates of 10.6% and 2.4%, respectively. The increase in power
generation was mainly due to the increase in power generation of
existing wind projects and the contribution from newly commissioned
solar projects.

The electricity generated by PRC cogen and gas-fired projects
amounted to 387.1 GWh, representing a year-on-year increase of
6.7%. It was mainly due to the power generation of a cogen project
in Jiangsu Province increased as a result of the increase of the local
electricity demands.

The power generation from PRC hydro projects reached 227.0 GWh,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 53.5%, mainly due to the
expiration of the cooperation between the Group’s Fushi | hydro project
in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and the local partner. Such
hydro power station was officially handed over to the local partner
for operation and management in September 2022, resulting in a
decrease in power generation from PRC hydro projects in 2023.
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The power generation from Korea projects reached 6,361.3 GWh,
mainly from gas-fired and biomass projects, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 12.6%, mainly due to a decrease in the power
dispatch load of gas fired projects in 2023, resulting in a decrease of
power generation of the Korea projects in 2023.

The total steam sold by the Group amounted to 2,970,000 tonnes,
representing a decrease of 3.8% as compared with 2022.

The following table sets out the average utilization hour applicable to
our projects for the Group:

Average utilization hour by fuel type'"

PRC Wind Projects® FEEREEBE®
PRC Solar Projects® FEKXBEBEE®
PRC Coal-fired Projects® FERIEIBEE®
PRC Cogen Projects® hEMEHEBEZO
PRC Hydro Projects® FEIKEIEE®
Korea Gas-fired Projects®” EEIRRIERD
Notes:

1) Average utilization hour is the gross electricity generated in a specified period

divided by the average installed capacity in the same period.

(2) Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2023 for the PRC
wind projects in major regions such as Gansu Province, Henan Province
and Jiangsu Province were 2,127 hours, 2,374 hours and 2,685 hours,
respectively. Average utilization hours for the PRC wind projects remained
stable in 2023.

(3) Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2023 for the PRC
solar projects in major regions such as Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region,
Anhui Province and Qinghai Province were 1,706 hours, 1,323 hours and
1,631 hours, respectively. Average utilization hours for the PRC solar projects
remained stable in 2023.

4) Average utilization hour for the PRC coal-fired projects decreased in 2023 due
to decrease in power generation because of the decrease in local demand.

(5) Average utilization hour for the PRC cogen projects increased in 2023 due
to increase in local demand, which led to increase in total volume of power
generation.

(6) Average utilization hour for the PRC hydro projects decreased in 2023 due

to the unstable water inflows in Sichuan Province and Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region.

(7) Korea gas-fired power projects had lower average utilization hour in 2023
mainly due to the lower power generation of Yulchon Il Power Project as a
result of a decrease in the load of power grid dispatch in 2023.
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The table below sets out the weighted average tariffs (inclusive of
value-added tax (“VAT”)) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Weighted average tariff - Electricity (inclusive of VAT)"

Unit

B
PRC Wind Projects®® RMB per kWh
TEERSEE® STREFARE
PRC Solar Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIXPEREIER® BTEBARE
PRC Coal-fired Projects RMB per kWh
AR IE B BTREARK
PRC Cogen Projects® RMB per kWh
EIAEHEEEY BTEBARE
PRC Hydro Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIKEBIEE® BTEBARE
Korea Gas-fired Projects® KRW per kWh
BEMRIER® STRF®T

Weighted average tariff - steam (inclusive of VAT)

INREFIGERE —ZS (FEER)

PRC Cogen Projects” RMB per ton
FREZBHAEER" FWARE

Notes:

(1) The weighted average tariffs are affected not only by the change in the tariff for

each project but also the change in net power generation for each project.

(2) The weighted average tariff of our PRC wind projects remained stable in 2023.
(3) The weighted average tariff of our PRC solar projects remained stable in 2023.
4) The weighted average tariff of our PRC cogen projects excludes steam tariff.

(5) The weighted average tariff of our PRC hydro projects decreased in 2023,

which was mainly due to the expiration of the cooperation between the
Group’s Fushi | hydro project in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and
the local partner. Such hydro power station was officially handed over to the
local partner for operation and management in 2022. The average tariff of the
existing hydro projects is lower.

(6) The decrease in weighted average tariff of our Korea gas-fired projects was in
line with the decrease in gas price in Korea.

(7) The decrease in weighted average tariff of steam in 2023 was in line with the
decrease in PRC coal price.
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The following table sets out the weighted average standard coal and
gas prices (exclusive of VAT) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Unit
B

PRC weighted average RMB per ton

standard coal price"®

FR B0 T I AR A IR B AR ) FWARE

Korea weighted average gas price"® KRW per Nm?®

BEMETFHRARERO® FREILFKETT

Notes:

(1) The weighted average standard coal and the weighted average gas prices
are determined based on the consumption of gas or coal in each applicable
period.

(2) The PRC weighted average standard coal price in 2023 decreased compared
to 2022 due to a decrease in market coal price.

(3) Our Korea weighted average gas price in 2023 decreased compared to 2022

due to the decrease in the prices known as the Japanese Crude Cocktail,
which are calculated with reference to the average prices of crude oil imported
into Japan and are an important determinant of natural gas prices in Korean
markets. Yulchon | Power Project’s power purchase agreement allows us to
pass on the fuel cost fluctuations of the tariff to our customers in accordance
with the laws.

Revenue and segment information

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

1) Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of electricity;

(2) Power plants in Korea - Generation and supply of electricity;
and

(3) Management companies — Provision of management services

to power plants operated by CGN and its subsidiaries.

& 12 [ 57 o 54 53 i

TRBIET XA ABERN AEEETE
REENEENMETIRERERRARER

(FEIBER) -
For the year ended 31 December
HE128310LLEE
2023 2022

20234 20224
1,187.6 1,436.5
1,107.6 1,228.6

Wizt :

(1) IR EE R METHRARBRTZ

RPESBERABRARNIEEOHFEMET

(2) 2023F MR E N FIRERERER2022
FRL o WTHEBTIHEET R

B2022F T % RER B AR MEDRREE
BT AMERSEZENEAANREAT
HERGESH ZEBRSRETHIAR
BERNEIBERERR - EN—HEBHEEN
BEMRD SFHMAKER BEOVRE R AR
BEETFER-

WRA R 3 B E i
AEBEEUTZETLHHE :
(1) PENEE-ZEREHLE

(2) BENEBR-EBREIME &

(3) BEABD-—MATEZRENBEAREE
B BRRIE R EERS

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERERAR



32

Management Discussion and Analysis

EI12E505mE i

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segments:

M'F’%?tc?zi&ﬁ“ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ’]zt&%@H&)\E’z%y,\
PAR i

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A31HILEE
Power plants Power plants Management
in the PRC in Korea companies Total
HRERY BEW
B E& EENFE HEt
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue - external 2 EBUT A — S ER 1,012,714 1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977
Segment results DEEE 303,791 91,246 1,393 396,430
Unallocated other income KAEEMUA 37
Unallocated operating expenses KOS E L (3,532)
Unallocated finance costs FAOETEER (43,429)
Share of results of associates BEBEAREE 3,022
Profit before taxation PRIRATE A 352,528
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022512831HILLEE
Power plants Power plants Management
in the PRC in Korea companies Total
HEIR EBEN
Eh ER EENE HaEt
US$°000 Us$°000 US$'000 US$'000
FE7T FET FET FET
Segment revenue - external 2 EBUA — S EB 1,024,780 1,377,435 27,841 2,430,056
Segment results DEEE 287,229 85,096 1,326 373,651
Unallocated other income RAEEMBA 32
Unallocated operating expenses B8 E L (5,796)
Unallocated finance costs FOEHKER (31,641)
Share of results of associates BEBENDER (63,252)
Profit before taxation BRIR AR R 272,994

Segment revenue for power plants in the PRC decreased by 1.2%,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in weighted average
tariffs of PRC Cogen and Hydro Projects.

Segment results for power plants in the PRC increased by 5.8%,

which was mainly attributable to the decrease in impairment losses
recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment.
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Segment revenue for power plants in Korea decreased by 16.4%,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in power generation as
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well as decrease in weighted average tariff of electricity.

Segment results for power plants in Korea increased by 7.2%,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in impairment losses

recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

Segment assets DEEE
Power plants in the PRC 3 Y BB A
Power plants in Korea 2 E 1Y B K
Management companies BEEAT

Total segment assets
Interests in associates

DEEERE

REERABNED

Unallocated Pl
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE
- Others —Hfth
Consolidated assets REBEE
Segment liabilities SEEE
Power plants in the PRC R Y BB i
Power plants in Korea 52 5 1Y BB AR
Management companies BIENE

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated
- Bank borrowings

- Loans from fellow subsidiaries

e

DB E AR
RDEC
—iRITEE

—RBRRWERABTHNER

- Lease liabilities —HEaE
- Others —Hfth
Consolidated liabilities ReE8aE

The increase in both segment assets and liabilities for power plants in
the PRC in 2023 was mainly due to increase in purchase of property,
plant and equipment for a number of subsidiaries.

The decrease in both segment assets and liabilities for power plants in
Korea in 2023 was mainly due to decrease in trade receivables, trade
payables and bank borrowings.
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Scientific and Technological Innovation

During the period of rapid development of the “dual-carbon” strategic
goal and the construction of a new type of power system based on
new energy, the Company has cultivated and formed industrial control
through scientific and technological innovation. In terms of new
energy science and technology innovation, the Company adhered to
the “value creation” orientation, focused on core capacity building,
systematically rolled out the “leading project of digital operation and
maintenance” (TEIF{CEAELESL TH2) and the “integration project
of advanced technology of offshore wind power” (I8 & 5 3 3 17 & A
T #2J), promoted the innovation of green development mode led by
new energy, and sped up the transformation of the results to serve the
market, thus continuously shaping new driving forces and advantages
for development, and boosting the high-quality development of the
Company.

Digital operation and maintenance: The Company developed intelligent
operation and maintenance equipment to create efficient and highly
reliable power station operation capabilities and realize unattended
operation of wind power and photovoltaic power stations. The
Company applied intelligent analysis and forecasting tools to maximize
the benefits of electricity market transactions. The Company has
been focusing on promoting demonstration projects such as onshore
wind farms, digital twins for offshore wind turbine equipment and
unattended photovoltaic power stations.

Integration project of advanced technology of offshore wind power:
The Company has steadily promoted research and engineering
demonstrations on key issues such as parity offshore wind power,
floating wind and photovoltaic power and new power systems. The
Company has also promoted the implementation and demonstration
iteration of parity offshore wind power technology through large
capacity and base-driven developments, advanced offshore wind
and photovoltaic power through research and demonstration of key
technologies including floating wind power, floating photovoltaic
power and pile-based photovoltaic power, and pushed forward
the construction of new power systems through layered and three-
dimensional application of ultra-long distance, low-frequency
division, flexible and direct transmission and marine energy, thus
accelerating the transformation and integrated application of innovative
achievements, vigorously supporting the high-quality development of
the Company’s offshore wind power industry for the creation of a major
strategic pillar for the offshore wind development.
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The Company enhanced the application of the turbine control system,
the stability of turbine operation and the comprehensive grid-connected
performance of the wind farm through our efforts in the modification
and optimization of the major control system and converter system,
while still meeting the requirements of power grid dispatching, as
a result of which the Company was awarded the first-class project
of “National Power Industry Equipment Management Innovation
Achievements” (T2BIBIITEREEEAIFMEI) by the China
Electric Equipment Management Association (FEE 5% EEER
&) in March 2023.

Adhering to the concept of “value creation”, the Company stuck to the
innovation-driven development strategy and strengthened its principal
role in scientific and technological innovation, in order to become a
reliable national strategic scientific and technological force and provide
solid support for enhancing the resilience and security of the industrial
chain, as well as ensuring unimpeded national economy under extreme
scenarios.

Social Responsibility

2023 was the first year to fully implement the spirit of the 20th
National Congress of the Party, and it was also an important year to
accelerate the promotion of rural revitalization. The Company actively
implemented the decisions and arrangements of the Party Central
Committee and the State Council on comprehensively promoting rural
revitalization and rural construction, and participated in the national
rural revitalization cause with a high sense of political responsibility
and historical mission. The Company practiced its corporate mission of
“Developing Clean Energy and Building a Beautiful China” (2 E 52
BEJR > R =REETEL)) by carrying out public welfare projects such as
educational assistance, livelihood improvement, and helping the poor
and needy from a high position, giving full play to the leading role of
the Party building, and rallying the strengths of all parties to continue
to consolidate and expand the achievements in poverty alleviation.

In June 2023, a fish stocking scheme was commenced by the
Company’s Shengsi 5#6# Offshore Wind Power Project in Zhejiang
Province, effectively promoting the efficiency of fisheries, increasing
fishermen’s income, and revitalizing rural fishing areas.

In June 2023, several points of emergency rescue were built around
offshore wind turbines by the Company’s Rudong H8# Offshore Wind
Power Project in Jiangsu Province available for use by fishermen
engaging in the aquaculture industry and victims in the vicinity.
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In August 2023, under the influence of a typhoon, Xingtai City, Hebei
Province, suffered from exceptionally heavy rainfall, tens of thousands
of people in Renze District were urgently relocated to take shelter
from the danger, and the situation of flood prevention was grim and
complicated. The Company’s Renxian Phase | Wind Power Project in
Hebei Province actively responded to the arrangement of the “Initiative
on Assisting Disaster Relief and Post-Disaster Reconstruction Work” of
the People’s Government of Renze District, Xingtai City, and donated
to the Xingtai Charity Federation, which was directed to be used in the
disaster relief and post-disaster reconstruction work in Renze District,
for which the local government awarded a medal to the Company.

In August 2023, the Company’s Dachaidan Solar Project in Qinghai
Province (Xitieshan Phases I, Il and Ill) donated to the Experimental
Primary School in Delingha City for the purpose of improving the
teaching infrastructure, enhancing the conditions and quality of
schooling, and enriching the second classroom for students. Through
the donation project, approximately 830 students benefited, including
270 ethnic minority students. The Delingha Municipal People’s
Government awarded the Company with a medal of “School-Enterprise
Twinning and Supporting Caring Enterprise” in Delingha City.

Exchange of Ideas with Industrial Peers

In April 20283, China (Zhangjiakou) Renewable Energy Conference and
Expo was held in Zhangjiakou, the PRC. The Company was invited
to attend the conference and addressed the opening ceremony and
the new energy forum. Under the theme of “Clean Development, Win-
Win Cooperation” (522 E - 51E &), the conference provided
a broad platform for sharing ideas and views about incubating the
energy innovation achievements and exploring the future of the energy
industry through exhibitions, exchanges and thematic forums.

In June 2023, with the theme of “New Era of China, New Journey for
Western China” (THEIFTBF(X - FHEBHTYEFZ)), the Opening Ceremony
of the 19th Western China International Fair (WCIF) and the 11th
Western China International Cooperation Forum was held in Chengdu,
the PRC, the Company was invited to attend the opening ceremony.
The WCIF has become more prominent in its role as an important
platform for opening up and cooperation in Western China, and the
level of internationalization, professionalism and marketization has
been continuously improved.
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Brand Promotion: Recognitions and Awards

As the Company’s information disclosure system and environmental,
social and governance (ESG) disclosure continued to improve
and evolve, with the continued innovation in our investor relations
management measures, we have witnessed remarkable support to the
high-quality development of the Company.

In February 2023, the Company was recognized as the “Best IR of
Hong Kong Listed Company” by the 5th New Fortune Awards.

In June 2023, the Company swept a total of eleven titles at the 9th
Investor Relations Awards (“IR Awards”) from the Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association (HKIRA), not only “Best IR Company”, “Best
ESG” (Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance 3 awards),
“Best Annual Report”, but also the “Grand ESG Award” (mid cap) as
selected by the Judging Panel. The Company was also named a “3
Years IR Awards Winning Company”, a hallmark award in the field of
investor relations, as the Company had been recognized as the “Best
IR Company” for three consecutive years. Individual and team awards
included the “Best IR by Chairman/CEQ”, the “Best IR by CFO”, the
“Best IRO” and the “Best IR Team”.

Adhering to the work style of “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and
Pragmatism”, the Company strongly advocated the initiation of quality
management activity groups, fully exploited the potential of equipment,
improved the energy efficiency of equipment through “in-depth
inspection” and “in-depth governance” of equipment, enhanced the
standard of enterprise quality management, and gave full play to the
spirit of innovation, so as to inject technological vitality into the high-
quality development of the Company.

In May 2023, the “Equipment Management and Technological
Innovation Achievements of the Electric Power Industry for 2023”
(M2023BATERFBEEIBETMAIFARL) organized by China
Association of Plant Engineering (TEIREEIEE) published the
results, where each of the Company’s Mingin Wind Power Project
in Gansu Province and Hongshagang Wind Power Project in Gansu
Province was awarded one second-class prize.

In June 2023, the “Project Quality Management Activities in relation
to Electric Power Industry Problem-Solving Topics” (T8 /1178
fRRBIER BB E 2 81855 9))) organized by the Anhui Province Electric
Association( HMEEHE) published the results, where the
Company’s Dongzhi Zhaotan Wind Power Project in Anhui Province
was awarded one second-class prize and the Company’s Dingyuan
Phase | Fishing-Photovoltaic Power Complementary Project in Anhui
Province was awarded two second-class prizes.

In August 2023, the Company’s Cenxi Dalong Wind Power Project in
the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region was awarded the Category 3
Achievement of “Guangxi Quality Management Team Activities” ([
RE B

BEEE/NEESN) by Guangxi Association for Quality (BEFRE &
).
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The Company strictly controlled the production and operation
indicators, adopted scientific and strict management methods,
continuously optimized and improved the production efficiency,
actively cultivated high-quality operation and maintenance teams, and
stimulated employees’ creativity to make a concerted effort to achieve
the goal of efficient operation.

In July 2023, the China Electricity Council (REIENTEEEE)
announced the results, where the Company’s Zhangbei Xinsheng Wind
Farm in Hebei Province was awarded the honor of “5A-level Unit in the
Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for
National Wind Farms in China”, Leling Zhuji Wind Farm in Shandong
Province was awarded the honor of “4A-level Unit in the Benchmarking
of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for National Wind
Farms in China”, and Leling Tieying Photovoltaic Power Station in
Shandong Province was awarded the honor of “4A-level Unit in the
Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for
National Solar Photovoltaic Power Stations in China”.

Through technology leadership, innovation and improvement
in efficiency, adhering to independent innovation and leading
development, low-carbon development and environmental friendliness,
the Company continued to strive towards the goal of becoming
a company that is trusted by the public and more responsible,
technologically advanced, capable, sustainable and valuable.

In January 2023, the Company’s Qingyun Shangtang Wind Power
Project in Shandong Province, Angiu Huangminshan Wind Power
Project in Shandong Province, and Lingu Wind Power Project in
Shandong Province were awarded the honorary title of the “Excellent
New Energy and Renewable Energy Enterprise for 2022” (20224
EHER&ARIBAFERIEFT2]) by Shandong Province Electricity
Association ((UEREBNITERE).

In February 2023, the Company’s Hongshagang Wind Power Project
in Gansu Province won the “Safety Management Excellence Award”
(T2 2EEEFH)) and the “Outstanding Contribution Award” ([3€
HEEE)) in the Hongshagang Industrial Cluster Area (A7) &
&) for 2022 at the Economic Work Conference of the Wuwei Mingin
Hongshagang Energy and Chemical Industrial Cluster Area (& &R 5
AVEE R EI T XEPELETIEGE).

In May 2023, the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region Development
and Reform Commission (NEXEHAGHENNEZELZER)
assessed the Company’s Kezuo Zhonggi Photovoltaic Poverty
Alleviation Project in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region as an
“Integrity-compliant Enterprise” (I# {5 ZZ %)) .

In June 2023, the Company’s Huaiyin Liulaozhuang Wind Power
Project in Jiangsu Province was awarded the “Top Ten Excellent Wind
Farm Stations” (T {EEFEEIH L) at the “Selection Event of Top
50 in China Wind Power Industry for 2023" (I 20234 F[E & & E %50
38 5T#EE7EE)) jointly organized by Jiangsu Province Renewable Energy
Industry Association CIEAZ AJBEERITERE), etc.

In September 2023, the Company’s Dongzhi Photovoltaic Project in
Anhui Province won the “Quality Engineering Award” (MBE T#24%))
from the Anhui Province Electric Association (Z#&BIHE).
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In October 2023, the Company’s Dangtu Fishing-Photovoltaic Power
Complementary Project in Anhui Province was awarded the title of
“Green Innovation Excellent Environmental Protection Organization”
(Mg @RI FEFIERLESI) by the Anhui Ecosystem Protection
Association (Z#H & £ RIRIBERER D).

In 2023, the Company introduced high performance mode in all
respects, so as to promote the universal integration of the high
performance mode and the quality, environmental and occupational
health and safety management systems by integrating the high
performance mode into the Company’s daily management. In
December 2023, the Company obtained the “2023 Advanced
Organizations Implementing High Performance” (T 20234 & & i &= #d
B EARS ) from China Association for Quality (TEIE 213 9).
The Company will continue to implement General Secretary Xi Jinping’s
important instructions on quality work, continue to be committed to
the work style of focusing on “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity
and Pragmatism” to deeply promote the management improvement,
and constantly optimize the construction of the management system,
so as to promote the improvement of overall quality management
level, advance the high-quality development of the Company,
comprehensively improve the market competitiveness.

OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

In 2023, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$2,193.0 million,
representing a decrease of 9.8% compared with last year. In 20283,
the operating profit of the Group amounted to US$552.5 million,
representing a decrease of 6.3% compared with last year.

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company in 2023
amounted to US$267.7 million, representing an increase of US$72.6
million or 37.2% compared with last year. In 2023, the profit of the
Group amounted to US$279.6 million, representing an increase of
US$65.2 million or 30.4% compared with last year.

If one-off adjustments were taken out, which mainly include (1) post-
tax impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and
equipment of US$7.7 million and US$61.8 million in 2023 and 2022
respectively, and (2) impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill of US$8.7 million in 2023, the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023
would have increased by 10.6% comparing with last year.
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Revenue

In 2023, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$2,193.0 million,
representing a decrease of 9.8% compared with US$2,430.1 million of
last year. The revenue derived from wind projects in the PRC amounted
to US$702.4 million, representing an increase of 1.4% compared with
US$692.8 million of last year. Such increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in power generation from the wind projects.

The revenue derived from Korea in 2023 amounted to US$1,151.0
million, representing a decrease of 16.4% compared with US$1,377.4
million of last year. Such decrease in revenue was mainly attributable
to the decrease in power generation as well as decrease in weighted
average tariff of electricity.

Operating Expenses

In 2023, the operating expenses of the Group amounted to
US$1,640.5 million, representing a decrease of 10.9% compared with
US$1,840.4 million of last year. The decrease in operating expenses
was mainly due to a decrease in gas costs of Yulchon | & Il Power
Projects.

The breakdown of operating expenses is analyzed as below:

Operating expenses: KERY
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

ME - -BERREITE

Repair and maintenance B RE
Staff costs BITRA
Recognition of loss allowance of SRR E 5 K A FE W IE K
trade and other receivables and ERBEERBBEE
contract assets
Other operating expenses (note) &SRS (0732)
Total operating expenses KSR 4B %A
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Operation support expenses KETIERAY

Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water IR E 2 E Rk E
Other maintenance cost Hh4EE R A
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
Transportation and entertainment expenses B ERNE B
Outsourcing expenses SNEEA

Tools and consumables TARHED
Consultancy fees BAE A

Insurance expenses REE B

Other taxes, surcharges and duties HMIRIE W& KR &
Miscellaneous operating expenses HMIEEERY

Expense relating to short-term leases BUSHRTAE AR
Office expenses MAERE

Operating Profit

In 2023, the operating profit, which is equal to revenue minus
operating expenses, of the Group amounted to US$552.5 million,
representing a decrease of US$37.2 million or 6.3% compared with
US$589.7 million of last year. The decrease in operating profit was
mainly caused by the increase in operating expenses arising from the
wind and solar projects.

Other Income

Other income mainly represented government grants, interest income
and income on sales of generating rights and capacity. In 2023, other
income of the Group amounted to US$19.8 million, representing a
decrease of US$22.9 million or 53.7% compared with US$42.7 million
of last year. The decrease in other income was primarily due to a
decrease of US$13.7 million in income on sales of generating rights
and capacity.

Other Gains and Losses

In 2023, the other losses amounted to US$10.0 million, representing
a decrease of US$59.0 million compared with last year. The decrease
in other losses was primarily due to a decrease of US$59.2 million
in impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and
equipment compared with last year.
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Finance Costs

In 2023, the finance costs of the Group amounted to US$212.8
million, representing a decrease of US$14.3 million or 6.3% compared
with US$227.1 million of last year. The decrease in finance costs
was mainly attributable to the decrease in interest expenses on bank
borrowings.

Share of Results of Associates

In 2023, the share of profit of associates amounted to US$3.0 million,
representing an increase of US$66.3 million compared with the share
of losses of associates of US$63.3 million of last year. The increase
in profits of the associates was mainly attributable to the decrease in
market coal price during the year.

Income Tax

In 2023, the income tax of the Group amounted to US$72.9 million,
representing an increase of US$14.3 million or 24.5% compared with
US$58.6 million of last year, which was mainly due to the expiration of
the preferential tax rate period of certain subsidiaries in the PRC.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group's cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$440.6
million as at 31 December 2022 to US$287.5 million as at 31
December 2023, which was mainly due to the increase in net cash
used in investing and financing activities.

Net Debt/Equity Ratio

The Group’s net debt/equity ratio decreased from 3.64 as at 31
December 2022 to 3.30 as at 31 December 2023, which was mainly
due to the decrease in loans from fellow subsidiaries.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 of 1.56 US cents per Share (equivalent to 12.17 HK
cents per Share), totalling approximately US$66.9 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$522.0 million), which is calculated based on
4,290,824,000 Shares in issue on 26 March 2024. The payout ratio of
the proposed dividend is 25% of the profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for the financial year of 2023.
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Earnings per Share EREF
Year ended 31 December
HE12HA31HILLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
US cents US cents
ES1] e
Earnings per Share, basic and diluted — SREF
calculated based on the number of BT #58 — U FERET
ordinary shares outstanding at year end EHNESERNEETE 6.24 4.55
Year ended 31 December
HE12AIHLEEE
2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&E:7))
Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic R ESKREAR KIS
and diluted earnings per Share (profit for BANEN EAEEER
the year attributable to ordinary equity HERBEEAENRF)
shareholders of the Company) 267,685 195,149
‘000 ‘000
Fie FiR
Number of ordinary shares outstanding FRETEIINSEBRIEE
at year end 4,290,824 4,290,824
. +
Trade Receivables B 5 EURER TR
As at 31 December
128318
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables — contracts with customers BEEBIER—TEER 780,784 751,352
Less: allowance for credit losses B EERIEERE (14,756) (12,038)
766,028 739,314
2023 EE®RE (O HEBEXNERERERAT
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The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates.

0 - 60 days 0260H
61 - 90 days 61290H
91 - 180 days 912180H

Over 180 days 180H U

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$174.9 million
(2022: US$317.8 million) from the sales of electricity and other
services, which are due within 20 to 90 days from the date of billing.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$591.1 million
(2022: US$421.5 million) from the tariff income receivables. These
receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant government
authorities pursuant to the Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice on the
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff of Renewable
Energy ((AIBAEFERESENMMEEESEENE)). The collection
of tariff income receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalization of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC
government authorities to the state grid companies. As a result, the
tariff income receivables are not considered as overdue or in default.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix based on the historical settlement records, latest
aging profile of those receivables and forward looking information that
is available without undue cost and effort. During the year ended 31
December 2023, expected credit losses of US$2.9 million in respect of
trade receivables were recognized (2022: reversal of expected credit
losses of US$3.2 million) and expected credit losses of US$5.7 million
in respect of contract assets were recognized (2022: US$6.0 million).

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.
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As at 31 December

#12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$°000 US$°000
FET FET
215,900 340,956
15,562 16,301
57,075 47,574
477,491 334,483
766,028 739,314

12023FE12831H AEBENE Z EUEE A
HREEXEHEE I REMRENEREES
17498 837t (20224 1 317.8EE =7t) E
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FAFe
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EHERBEELADETHEE AMAERKRS
BB EE A o

AEEREEN 2 BEEBEEEEENSEt=
ZEBSRBERREREENGEEE A
M ENREZEERRTNBELE ST
BFEBRERREBBSHARE NETER
BRI SR I B EBREEL - BLE 2023412
B31ALLEE BB ERRAEDESREES
Ei82.9E B =TT (20224 | FEHE B [E3.2H
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Contract Assets

Tariff income from sales of renewable energy HETBEERAEE

W EERREE

Less: allowance for credit losses

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales of
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff
Subsidy List (the “List”) by the relevant government authorities. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the relevant
right becomes unconditional, upon the registration of the Group’s
respective operating power plants in the List.

Trade Payables

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61E90H
Over 90 days 90HM E

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 48 days (2022:
27 days) for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are
settled within the credit period.
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BREE

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
383,732 364,333
(15,586) (10,114)
368,146 354,219

BREEEMRETREAMSEXEREEETH
AR TR A FE W BB U A > 52 70 IE 1 5 AR R B
WA EMATBEEREEBHRMESHENB
B (BB o 1A R A Bl 75 S 0 11 55 > BD
EEEEREEBMMABER CRAEESE
BEBSBUWIRR

B 5 EIRR

RBESHF ZEEAH2RNEZEROER
BOEREC DA T ©

As at 31 December

®12H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 US$'000
FET FET
81,618 216,279
12,725 1,084
14,328 5,665
108,671 223,028

HZE2023F12831HLLEE BEERMNTY
EEHA488 (20224 : 270) - AEREBEIE
MBERREEHR UBRRABEASREST
REEHRAES -

2023 EERE @ PEREFERERERAD



46

Management Discussion and Analysis

EI12E505mE i

Financial Position

Non-current assets increased from US$6,451.0 million as at 31
December 2022 to US$6,582.2 million as at 31 December 2023,
which was mainly due to the increase in property, plant and equipment
during the year.

Current assets decreased from US$1,892.9 million as at 31 December
2022 to US$1,768.0 million as at 31 December 2023, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in cash and cash equivalents.

Current liabilities decreased from US$2,467.5 million as at 31
December 2022 to US$2,002.6 million as at 31 December 2023,
which was mainly due to the decrease in short-term bank borrowings.

Non-current liabilities increased from US$4,376.9 million as at 31
December 2022 to US$4,659.0 million as at 31 December 2023,
which was mainly due to the increase in long-term bank borrowings.

Goodwill

COST s

At 1 January ®1B18
Exchange differences (ERZ=%R

At 31 December R12831H
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES B :tE{EEE
At 1 January M1B1H

PR m RS REE R

Impairment losses recognized in
profit or loss

Exchange differences fERZ=%E
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December ®12B31H
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MR

R B EHE2022F12831HM6,451.058
ETEME2023F12831HME,582.2H &=
o EFEHRRFEAYE BERREIGMAAR

MENEEM2022FE12831HM1,892.98E E7T
B E20235FE 128331 HBI1,768.08 8=
EHNRERBEEBYRDFAN

TEAEM20225 12831 HB2,467.5 BB =TT
B/ E2023F12831HB2,0026EEETT +
EERHRERRITERERLVMR

JEREhaEHR2022F12831HM4,376.98 8

ETIEME2023F12831HM4,659.08 &8 E
T T EEHNERIRTESHEMAA -

e

2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$’000 UsS$’000
FET FET
167,513 182,908
(2,779) (15,395)
164,734 167,513
(12,917) (14,110)
(8,681) -
216 1,193
(21,382) (12,917)
143,352 154,596
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Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
or group of cash-generating units as follows:

Wind Energy Subsidiaries REHBAE
(as defined below) (note) (BER T (Hi:2)
Solar Energy Subsidiaries KIGHEMT B A B

(as defined below) (note) (BFERE T (H732)
Multiple units without significant goodwill WHEBRHENZEE

Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections are derived from the most recent financial budgets approved
by management which cover operation periods ranging from 6 to 22 years (2022: 7
to 23 years). The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rates ranged
from 10.20% to 11.35% (2022: 10.18% to 11.89%). Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which
is determined based on the installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy
Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries and management’s expectations for the
market development. The estimated annual average growth rates in electricity generation
volume range from -11.4% to 7.9% (2022: 0% to 9.4%).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, due to a general decrease in electricity
generation volume growth rate adopted in the projected cash flows and a decrease in
the operation periods as the time elapsed, impairment losses of US$8,335,000 and
US$346,000 were recorded in “Other gains and losses” in relation to certain CGUs
of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
Two cash generating units, CGN Solar Energy (Dachaidan) Development Co., Ltd ({f
EIZARAE (K4EB) BB MRAT) and CGN Linqu Longgang Wind Power Co.
Ltd (P EZEERRER R S EAMRAE) have been reduced to their recoverable
amount of US$30,795,000 and US$16,947,000 respectively and adverse change in
the assumptions used in the calculations of recoverable amounts would result in further
impairment losses.

A reduction in annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume of 5% will
result in additional impairment losses of US$775,000 and US$1,698,000 to the CGUs
of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
An increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in additional impairment losses of
US$3,049,000 and US$1,841,000 to the CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries
and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
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BERENHEEELEEMZR
BRI

BENEREUTREELEL ((REEEE
fii) RS EEEMAER

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 us$’000
FET FET
110,337 112,560
31,589 40,600
1,426 1,436
143,352 154,596
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Bank Borrowings

The Group’s total bank borrowings increased from US$4,364.5 million
as at 31 December 2022 to US$4,448.2 million as at 31 December
2023. Details of bank borrowings are as follows:

Secured BiLH
Unsecured il

The maturity profile of bank borrowings

is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —E P L BRBEME
After 2 years but within 5 years MEMU EEBARBBEE
Over 5 years EEMUE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had committed unutilized banking
facilities of US$1,410.9 million (2022: US$2,022.5 million).

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entities
that include RMB, USD and KRW. The bank borrowings of the Group
carry interest rates which range from 2.25% to 5.86% (31 December
2022: 2.50% to 7.04%) per annum during the year ended 31
December 2023. The analysis of bank borrowings with fixed interest
rate and variable interest rate is analyzed below:

EhIES
FERE

Fixed rate
Variable rate
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IRITIEENEIEE RO T

RI7EE
AEBWNEBITHEEMBR2022F12831HMW
4,364 5B BETIBME2023F12831HK
4,448 2HEETTIRITEEMNFHBAT :

As at 31 December

#®12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
2,716,937 2,864,220
1,731,218 1,500,260
4,448,155 4,364,480
494,635 957,392
393,972 397,449
1,995,158 1,369,181
1,564,390 1,640,458
3,953,520 3,407,088
4,448,155 4,364,480

R2023F 12831 B AEBEKRFEAMNIRETE
AHEEEEER1,41098 B =T (20224 ¢
2,022 5B B ETT) °

RREBANABRTEEUNZEETENID
EEBHE OB ARB - Ex kBT -HE
2023F12A31HILEE  AEBRBRITEEEN
F2.25%%E5.86% (20228128310 : 2.50%F
7.04%) WERFEF B - EEMNE R FEFAEF]
ENRITEEDRUWT :

As at 31 December

®12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
1,265,826 1,169,986
3,182,329 3,194,494
4,448,155 4,364,480
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- - - — = A4S =
Loans from Fellow Subsidiaries KERAMMEBABTIHER
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amounts represent: R2023F K2022F 12H31H » S8 ©
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes Us$’000 Us$000
5z FET FET
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KEERMBABDNER
- due within 1 year: —FP1FEREE
CGN Finance Co., Ltd (“CGN Finance”) HEZMEBRETAE
(TR B )) i(a) 228,470 106,335
CGN Wind Energy FEZRE i 338,854 545,617
CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited FEZERKLERRAD
(“CGNPC Huasheng”) (T EER) jii 250,000 -
817,324 651,952
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRMNBABRNER
- due after 1 year: — 1 EREER
CGN Finance B i(b) 142,782 176,591
CGNPC Huasheng AR EE R jii - 250,000
China Clean Energy Development Limited B35 2 A5 R B 8%
(“China Clean Energy”) BRAFT
(THREEZ AR iv 450,000 450,000
592,782 876,591
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,601.4 million (equivalent to US$226.1
million) (31 December 2022: RMB706.1 million (equivalent to US$101.4
million)) are unsecured, interest bearing at 2.35% to 3.30% (31 December
2022: 3.45% to 4.21%) per annum and repayable within one year; and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB16.8 million (equivalent to US$2.4 million)
(31 December 2022: RMB34.4 million (equivalent to US$4.9 million)) are
unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced by the PRC
National Interbank Funding Center (“RMB Loan Prime Rate”) minus 0% to 1%
(31 December 2022: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0.60% to 1%) per annum
and repayable within one year.

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB8.2 million (equivalent to US$1.2 million) (31
December 2022: RMB61.7 million (equivalent to US$8.9 million) is unsecured,
interest bearing at 3.30% (31 December 2022: 3.60% to 4.21%) per annum
and repayable in 2038 (31 December 2022: 2030 to 2035); and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,003.1 million (equivalent to US$141.6
million) (831 December 2022: RMB1,168.2 million (equivalent to US$167.7
million)) are unsecured, interest bearing at the RMB Loan Prime Rate minus
0% to 1.35% (31 December 2022: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0.60% to
1.35%) per annum and repayable in 2031 to 2040 (31 December 2022: 2031
to 2040).

Loan from CGN Wind Energy of RMB2,400.0 million (equivalent to US$338.9
million) (31 December 2022: RMB3,800.0 million (equivalent to US$545.6
million)) is unsecured, interest bearing at 2.40% (31 December 2022: 3.50%)
per annum and repayable in 2024 (31 December 2022: 2023).

Loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250.0 million (31 December 2022:
US$250.0 million) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3 months Secured
Qvernight Financing Rate plus 1.30% (31 December 2022: 3 months London
Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.30%) per annum and repayable in 2024 (31
December 2022: 2024).

Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450.0 million (31 December 2022:
US$450.0 million) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% (31 December
2022: 4.50%) per annum and repayable in 2025 (31 December 2022: 2025).
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Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditure increased by US$278.6 million to
US$641.4 million in 2023 from US$362.8 million in 2022.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

Pledged Assets

The Group pledged certain property, plant and equipment, trade
receivables, contract assets and bank deposits for credit facilities
granted to the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the total book
value of the pledged assets amounted to US$1,845.2 million (2022:
US$1,785.0 million).

Significant Investments

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2023.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2023.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had about 2,056 full-time
employees, with the majority of them based in China. The Group
provides its employees with salaries and bonuses, as well as employee
benefits, including retirement schemes, medical and life insurance
schemes.

Employees located in China are covered by the mandatory social
security schemes required by local practice and regulations of the
PRC, which are essentially defined contribution schemes. The Group
is required by the PRC law to contribute a certain percentage of the
average salaries of the employees to various schemes in accordance
with the respective regulatory requirements of each city. The PRC
government is directly responsible for the payment of the benefits to
these employees.

In Korea, the Group is required by law to contribute 4.5% of the
employees’ monthly average salaries for the national pension, 3.545%
for national health insurance (12.95% of the national health insurance
is contributed for long term care insurance), 1.15% for unemployment
insurance, 0.766% (Seoul Office)/0.686% (Yulchon)/0.686% (Daesan)
for the industrial accident compensation insurance and 0.06% for a
wage claim guarantee fund.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a mandatory provident fund
scheme established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485). Employees contribute 5.0% of their relevant
income to the mandatory provident fund scheme subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000, and the Group contributes
10.0% of each employee’s monthly base salary.

The remuneration of senior management is determined by making
reference to the performance of individuals and the group and market
trends. The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors)
for the year end 31 December 2023 were within the following bands:
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(Equivalent to US$64,001 to US$128,000) (1B E1°64,001= 75 £ 128,000 7T)
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(Equivalent to US$128,001 to US$192,000) (1B E 1 128,0013= 7T E 192,000 7T)
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 £2,000,00058 7T 0
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Total st 12
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Environmental Policies and Performance

PRC
Wind and Solar Projects

In order to protect and continuously improve the living environment
and ecological environment, the Company ensures good management
of wastewater, exhaust gas, solid wastes and hazardous wastes in
production and operation activities, so as to achieve environmental
protection to the greatest extent. Embracing the idea that “lucid waters
and lush mountains are invaluable assets”, the Company deeply
implemented the thoughts from General Secretary Xi Jinping on
ecology, and strictly followed the requirements of environment-related
laws and regulations such as the “Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China” ({1 EE AN R EFFEIRIEREE)), the
“Water and Soil Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(rhEAREMEKLEMRIFTIED) and the “Law on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste of the People’s
Republic of China” ((FRE AR IR EEREEY S RIREHAED) to
conduct monthly inspections on potential environmental hazards, and
establish a list of dynamic potential hazards, so as to control the key
pollutants and strictly implement environmental and water protection
measures on “Three Simultaneous” for project constructions. Through
identification, appraisal and control of environmental elements of each
project and site, the Company has identified important environmental
elements, and formulated effective environmental protection plans and
countermeasures to ensure that all environmental protection work is
carried out smoothly and strive to build itself as a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise.
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Hydro Projects

The hydro projects of the Company strictly comply with the
environmental protection requirements of the local government.
Being a renewable and clean energy resource, hydro projects almost
discharge no pollutant. The requirements of the local government on
hydro projects concern waste disposal, noise control, flow control and
ecological protection.

Our requirements on waste disposal are implemented according to
GB8978-1996 standard, we have achieved grade one standard in
wastewater disposal with all indices up to standard. In respect of our
requirements on noise control, they are implemented according to
GBZ/T189.8-2007 “Work Place Physical Agents Measurement, Part
VIIl: Noise” (TEZFMMIERZ A EESH | BT )), GBZ2.2-
2007 “Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the
Workplace, Part Il: Physical Agents” ((Z{EZFiBE EREZRMEREE
[EHI5528849)  #EEF X)) and Provision 20 of Order No.47 of State
Administration of Work Safety, as well as the relevant requirements
set out in the “Laws on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases” ({BZEJF[H787%)), all monitoring results are of the required
standard, and there are no external complaints arising from noise
emission. In respect of the flow control requirements for environmental
protection, they are implemented according to the water resources
distribution plan “One Station One Strategy” of local water authority.
There were no accidents caused by power generation flow change
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Thermal Projects (coal-fired, oil-fired, gas-fired including cogen)

The environmental protection systems and facilities of the Company’s
coal-fired and gas-fired power projects complied with applicable
national and local environmental protection regulations. Environmental
management in all of the Company’s operating project companies
met the relevant standards and have been accredited with ISO14001
(environmental management system) international certification. In
addition, the Company’s coal-fired and gas-fired power projects have
their own environmental protection office and staff responsible for
monitoring and operating its environmental protection equipment.
Other than the “Continuous Emission Monitoring System (CEMS)”,
another “Remote Emissions Monitoring Systems (REMS)” are also
equipped in all coal-fired and gas-fired projects to continuously
monitor power projects emissions at the relevant project companies.
The Company has continued to invest substantially in energy saving
and environmental upgrading facilities at the projects to comply with
the regulations and emissions reduction. By the end of 2015, all de-
sulfurization, de-nitration and particulate matter removal facilities have
been installed in coal-fired projects and put into service as planned.
By the end of 2017, the coal-fired power plants in operation (Nantong
in Jiangsu and Huangshi in Hubei) have all completed the “Ultra-
low Emission” technical improvement to further reduce the emission
of NOx, SOz as well as dust. The Company is of the view that the
Company is not in material breach of any applicable environmental
laws or regulations as at 31 December 2023.
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Air emissions of all existing thermal power projects of the Company
in the PRC have met the more stringent latest national emissions
regulation, which became effective on 1 January 2012. According
to the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” ((FZE A\ R HEME AR5
B53a3%)), a penalty of up to RMB1,000,000 will be levied for non-
compliance. The environmental laws and regulations also impose
fines on enterprises which violate such laws, regulations or decrees
and provide for other sanctions including the possible closure of any
power projects which fail to rectify activities that cause environmental
damage or cease its operation. As at 31 December 20283, the
Company had not received any sanctions to cease operation or rectify
to environmental damages.

Korea

The Company is committed to the establishment of good standards
of environmental protection and management practices. The
environmental policies and facilities of the Company’s power projects
in Korea are in compliance with the applicable national and local
environmental protection regulations in Korea. The Company’s power
projects in Korea have their own environmental protection offices
and staffs responsible for monitoring and operating its environmental
protection equipment. Environmental monitoring system required
by the applicable national and local environmental protection
regulations are equipped in the Company’s power projects in Korea.
Environmental management in our operating project companies is
meeting the relevant international standards and have been accredited
with 1ISO14001 (environmental management system) international
certification.

In addition, the Company’s power projects in Korea have passed the
relevant supervisory inspections on air emission levels and effluent
water quality by the local government. We are of the view that we are
not in material breach of applicable environmental laws or regulations
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Our primary customers are the electricity offtakers for our projects. Our
primary suppliers are the fuel providers for our projects. Our largest
customer is Korea Power Exchange (“KPX”) and our largest supplier is
Korea Gas Corporation (“KOGAS”).

KPX is a non-profit, neutral and independent organization in South
Korea’s power industry. KPX ensures the reliability of power supply
by coordinating the flow of electricity in all regions of South Korea.
To secure future power reliability, KPX runs a sophisticated national
planning process for generation and transmission expansion by active
cooperation and coordination with the Korea government. KPX has
become our largest customer since the combined cycle of Yulchon
Il Power Project commenced business operations and we have
maintained a business relationship with KPX since 2009.

KOGAS is an independent third party supplier of gas for Yulchon |
Power Project, Fuel Cell Project and Yulchon Il Power Project in Korea.
KOGAS is a publicly listed company on the Korean Exchange that
engages in the production and distribution of gas in Korea. KOGAS
was incorporated by the Korean government in 1983 and is the sole
wholesale supplier of natural gas in Korea.
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V.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2023, as far as the Company
is aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RISK FACTORS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risks Relating to the Industry

Our power projects are located in the PRC and Korea, both of which
have undergone, and may continue to undergo, regulatory changes.
Governmental regulations affect all aspects of our power project
operations, including the amount and timing of electricity generation,
the setting of tariffs, compliance with power grid controls, dispatch
directives and environmental protection. Regulatory changes in the
PRC and Korea can affect, among other things, dispatch policies,
clean and renewable energy and environmental compliance policies
and tariffs, and may result in a change of tariff setting procedures or
mandatory installation of costly equipment and technologies to reduce
environmental pollutants.

In addition, the solar power projects are highly dependent on solar
illumination conditions, and the wind power projects are dependent
particularly on wind conditions. Extreme wind or weather conditions
could lead to downtime of the wind power projects. Solar illumination
conditions and wind conditions vary across seasons and locations,
and could be unpredictable and are out of our control.

Risk Relating to Fuel Cost

The non-renewable energy power projects of the Group require
supplies of coal, oil and gas as fuel. Fuel costs represent a significant
portion of our operating expenses and the operating expenses of our
associates. The extent to which our profit is ultimately affected by the
cost of fuel depends on our ability to pass through fuel costs to our
customers as set out under the relevant regulatory guidelines and
the terms of our power purchase agreement for a particular project,
as we currently do not take any measures to hedge our exposure to
fuel price fluctuations. Our fuel costs are also affected by the volume
of electricity generated because the coal consumption rate of coal-
fired and cogen power projects decreases when we generate more
electricity as a result of economies of scale. In the PRC, government
tariff regulations limit our ability to pass through changes in fuel
costs. In Korea, while our Yulchon | Power Project is able to pass
through our exposure to fuel price fluctuations through fuel cost pass
through provisions in the tariff formula, our Yulchon Il Power Project
and Daesan | Power Project receive payments based on the system
marginal price, which is influenced by market demand and supply, and
may not fully reflect the power plants’ respective fuel price fluctuations.
Our diversified generation portfolio enables us to diversify the risks
that we would face to utilize a single resource for electricity generation.
In particular, our exposure to several fuel types mitigates risks such as
price increases in or the availability of any particular fuel source.
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Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations
in interest rates on our debt with floating interest rates based on
market prevailing rates. We undertake debt obligations to support
asset acquisition and general corporate purposes including capital
expenditures and working capital needs. Certain amount of our
indebtedness is calculated in accordance with floating interest rate
or interest rate that are subject to adjustment by our lenders. We
periodically review the ratio of debt with floating interest rates to debt
with fixed rates, taking into account the potential impact on our profit,
interest coverage and cash flows.

Foreigh Exchange Risk

The functional currency of the Company is US dollars, and our
reportable profit is affected by fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. We collect most of our revenue from our projects in
RMB and KRW, some of which are converted into foreign currencies
to (1) purchase foreign-made equipment and parts for repair and
maintenance; (2) make investments in certain joint ventures or
acquire interests from other companies; (3) pay out dividends to the
shareholders of our project companies; and (4) repay our outstanding
debt. During the reporting period, the Group used forward exchange
contracts to manage its exchange rate risk until the settlement date of
foreign currency receivables or payables. By managing and monitoring
the risks of foreign currency, we ensure that appropriate measures are
adopted effectively in a timely manner.

PROSPECTS

2024 is the 75th anniversary of the founding of the new China and
a crucial year to implement the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The Company
will actively and duly promote business developments, coordinate the
key actions of “six resolutions” with innovation-oriented, reform-driven
approach, striving for aggressive progresses and new achievements,
so as to make all efforts to promote the high-quality developments.

1. Resolutely strengthen the leadership and construction of the
Party, to focus on creating a “practical” atmosphere

To earnestly learn the important ideology of General Secretary
Xi Jinping on the Party construction, fully implement the
general requirements for Party construction in the new era,
focus on strengthening the leadership and construction of the
Party, and deeply promote a comprehensive and strict Party
governance with the spirit of self-revolution, so as to provide a
solid safeguard for the Company’s high-quality developments.
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Resolutely promote business developments and strive to
improve “fast” developments

Actively and duly promoting business developments is the
crucial action for implementing the layouts of new industries.
The Company will spare all effort to make success in obtaining
and converting the projects and resources, actively build the
cooperative community of various industries, constantly choose
prime strategic partners, and consolidate the advantages
of the industry chains, so as to improve the toughness and
adhesion with companies over the upstream and downstream
and constantly improve the industry influences. At the same
time, the Company will do its best to promote the work
constructions and operation of projects, keep insisting on the
simultaneous developments of self-building and high-quality
projects, so as to ensure to achieve its annual new targets.
Lastly, the Company will do its best to achieve the coordinated
developments of its diverse businesses, as well as its wind
and photovoltaic developments and accelerate the entry and
approval of its matured projects.

Resolutely increase technological innovation, so as to foster a
“strong” growth momentum

The 20th National Congress of the Party has emphasized
on innovation as the primary driving force. The Company
shall improve its position, take the initiative, accelerate the
developments of the new quality productivity and achieve the
improvements of its innovation ability at the same time, so as
to support the Company’s longer-term developments.

Resolutely promote and deepen reform, so as to improve
“sound” governance effects

As entering into a new stage of development, the original
production relationship gradually cannot meet the productivity
development needs. Therefore, in order to better enhance
vigour and energy, it is urgently needed to coordinate and
promote a new round of deepening reform by ways of
breaking up the barrier of systems and mechanisms and
optimizing organizational security system in an effective way,
and constantly deepening the reform of the market-oriented
operation mechanism, so as to empower the Company’s high-
quality developments.

Resolutely enhance lean management, so as to create an
“excellent” operation environment

The Company always adheres to the theme of the high-quality
development. The Company achieves this by consolidating
foundation, improving quality, enhancing efficiency through fully
benchmarking leading and lean management, and coordinating
reasonable growth of the quantity and effective improvement
of the quality, so as to bring again the operating results of the
Company to a new level.
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6. Resolutely fortify its red line and bottom line, so as to solidify a
“steady” development foundation

Facing complicated and fluid industry trends and arduous and
formidable development missions, all levels of staff within the
Company will enhance early risk prevention perspectiveness,
strengthen risk control and management pertinence, increase
risk mitigation effectiveness, and practice various risk
prevention and control. Through endeavouring to achieve a
responsible, accountable and diligent end in safeguarding
our homeland, the Company achieves steady and sustainable
development.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 January 2024, the Company, as service receiver, entered into certain
financial services framework agreements with CGNPC Huasheng Investment
Limited (“CGNPC Huasheng”) and CGN Finance Co., Ltd. (“CGN Finance”),
each as service provider, respectively, pursuant to which such service
providers agreed to provide deposit and other financial services to the Group.
For further information, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18
January 2024.

On 25 January 2024, Rudong Lu Nuclear New Energy Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as employer, entered into an engineering,
procurement and construction contract with China Energy Engineering Group
Jiangsu No. 1 Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd., as contractor, pursuant
to which such contractor was engaged to carry out the works for the design,
engineering, procurement, construction and construction management of a
power storage station located in Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and
related structures and facilities. For further information, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 25 January 2024.

On 8 March 2024, CGN New Energy Yancheng Co., Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as employer, entered into an engineering,
procurement and construction contract with China Energy Engineering Group
Jiangsu Electric Power Design Institute Co., Ltd., as contractor, pursuant to
which such contractor was engaged to carry out the works for the design,
engineering, procurement, construction and construction management of the
phase one of the fishery and photovoltaic complementary project located
in Jianhu County, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and related
structures and facilities. For further information, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 8 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, no important event or transaction affecting the Group
and which is required to be disclosed by the Company has taken place after
31 December 2023.
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SEAKESE[E

SEC

RETARY OF THE COMMUNIST PARTY COMMITTEE, CHAIRMAN AND

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

l‘\é

(1)

RCERRATES

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
RERTE

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (3REE), aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 January 2020,
and was further appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President, and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) on 8 April 2022. Mr. Zhang
further ceased to serve concurrently as the President of the Company with effect from 4 September
20283. Currently, he is also the secretary of the Communist Party Committee and the chairman of CGN
Wind Power Company, Limited (RE#Z R EBREAF) (“CGN Wind Energy”).

Mr. Zhang joined the Company as a senior vice president in December 2019. Prior to joining the
Company, he worked in the Ministry of Personnel (A2 &F), the State-owned Enterprises Working
Committee (IR {B 2 T &) and the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council (E#EEEEELEEEEEZEE) from June 1995 to November 2010.

From November 2010 to January 2012, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of the
human resources department of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. ((RElE &R B &£ E A RA F) (former name
of China General Nuclear Power Corporation (FElEZEE B RAE) (“CGN”)). From January 2012 to December 2019, Mr.
Zhang served as the director of the department of party affairs (renamed as the party team working division from January 2017
to June 2018) of CGN. From March 2012 to December 2019, he served as the direct deputy secretary of the Party Committee
of CGN. Mr. Zhang graduated with a Bachelor’'s Degree in industrial engineering management from the University of Science and
Technology Beijing (A6 R AHE K &) in June 1992, a Master’s Degree in labor economics from the Beijing University of Economics
(JERALFEZPR) in June 1995, and a Doctorate Degree in national economics from the Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University (It IR A2 A ESIEEZET)in July 2000.
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PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MERPITES

(2)

Mr. LI Guangming
FHRALE

Mr. LI Guangming (Z=3¢BH), aged 47, was appointed as the President and an executive Director on
4 September 2023. Currently, Mr. Li Guangming is also the deputy secretary of the Communist Party
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is a member of the Communist Party of China and senior engineer.
Currently, he also serves as a director and general manager of CGN Wind Energy. Mr. Li obtained
the Bachelor’s Degree from Sichuan University in 2000, majoring in power system and automation.
Mr. Li joined the Company in August 2016. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li was the project
manager of the substation branch (&% /A &) of Jilin Power Transmission and Transformation
Engineering Company* (&£ 88 T2 /A 8]) from July 2000 to January 2010. He served as the
assistant to the general manager in general manager office of the northeast branch of CGN Wind
Power Generation Limited* (REZE 18 BER/AE) (“CGN Wind Power”) from January 2010
to May 2012. From May 2012 to February 2013, Mr. Li was an assistant to the general manager
in general manager office of the Jilin branch (F# %32 &) of CGN Wind Energy, and acted as the
deputy regional engineering director (Greater Northern China Region) (L2 @13 BI48% (KEILE))
of engineering department of CGN Wind Energy from February 2013 to December 2013. From December 2013 to March 2015,
he was the regional engineering director (Northern China Region) (L2 @488 (3215[&) ) of engineering department of CGN
Wind Energy, the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of the Northern China Branch of CGN Wind Energy and the
regional director for Northern China of the engineering department of CGN Wind Energy from March 2015 to August 2016. He
was the general manager of the Shanxi Branch (17§43 /A &]) and Hebei Branch (15432 &]) of CGN New Energy Investment
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (REZHFHFEREZE CFRYI) BEAT) from August 2016 to June 2018, and was its regional director for
Northern China from October 2016 to June 2018. Mr. Li was the deputy general manager of Engineering Department of the
Company from June 2018 to May 2019. He was the general manager of the Engineering Department of the Company from May
2019 to December 2020. He was the deputy general manager of the Company from December 2020 to August 2023.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JE#

(3)

TESE

Mr. LIU Qingming
2FREE

Mr. LIU Qingming (2I;5B88), aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive Director, a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 29 December 2023. Mr. Liu was then
appointed as the chairman of the investment and risk management committee (the “Investment and
Risk Management Committee”) on 7 February 2024. From July 1995 to December 2005, Mr. Liu
worked in China Nuclear Industry 22nd Construction Co., Ltd. (FEI#Z T %% — —E £ AR AE) and
successively served as the deputy director of the production and operation department, the deputy
director of the preparation department of Qinshan Nuclear Power Phase Ill (RLUZE=HA), the
deputy manager of the project department, the manager of the project department of Tianwan Nuclear
Power (FH7&4Z &) and the deputy general manager of China Nuclear Industry 22nd Construction
Co., Ltd. (FEIZTEE-Z"ERKRABRAF). From December 2005 to May 2018, Mr. Liu held
various positions in China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. (FE#Z T2 AEAT) (“China
Nuclear Power Engineering”), including the deputy manager and deputy general manager of the
project department of Ningde Site (B2f2I835) (from March 2007 to January 2010, he studied on-the-job at Wuhan Institute of
Technology, majoring in civil engineering), general manager of the preliminary projects in the preliminary projects office, deputy
general manager of the international projects in the international projects team, deputy general manager of CIECC Engineering
Company Limited (38 T2 A fR/2 5)) under China Nuclear Power Engineering, and deputy general manager of China Nuclear
Industry Huaxing Construction Co., Ltd. (FPEIfZ T2 EEERARAB) under the assignment of the planning and operation
department. From May 2018 to June 2023, he was the deputy general manager of CGN Services Group Co., Ltd.* (FE1%
RFEEB B E/AT) (“CGN Services”), an executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Zhenhe Construction Project
Management Co., Ltd.* CRYITHIRZIERTERER ﬁfiﬁlgﬁﬂj)under CGN Services. Mr. Liu is currently a director of China
Nuclear Power Operations Co., Ltd. (FEZIZEEEHRAE), China Nuclear Power Engineering and CGN Lufeng Nuclear
Power Co., Ltd. (EF‘EH@%’TZ%%W’AT) He has over 30 years of experience in project management. Mr. Liu graduated from
Zhejiang University with Associate Degree and a major in Industrial and Civil Architecture Engineering in July 1990, and obtained
a Bachelor’'s Degree of civil engineering from Wuhan Institute of Technology in January 2010.

2 BEBREYE > 575 12023 F 12820 HEZR A AN ITES - BREZEGAFINEEENE - BIL L HEN2024F287HE
ZIAREURAGEEZEY RELAKEEEE G T/ - A EM1995F7 8 E2005F 123 HiIERBEZ TH#E 2
RERADE LB EILEELERIER BEURE-HEREIER BEESNCE OAEREEESLERPEZTE
FL_ERERATWEILELIE - R2005F 128 F2018E5 5 AR A EETPERIRERAR (FEKIR) EIZE
FEBA BEEERFERNCERBELIE (R2007E38 F2010F 1 BEREIRAB T AT REEEHSE) A4
EERAEAMPERALE BREEEKERERRQKCE - DEZ TR THEIRZARA S RBIAELLIE 17 848 589Nk
MEZ THEERRERATBAELIE - R2018E58 £202356 M RATEZRFERE R AT (THEZIRY) BIAEL
E-hEZBR TEBN R HIRZER IR EE AR A TN TEE R LB A BB ADTERZEEEARAT F
EZIREPEZEEZEERATDNESZ R EBEE S EEES0ELR A I ER190E7TBEERINIAS T
ERREIRAZHR UR2010E1BEREHREIRASB I ARTIREES T2

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023



(4)

63

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEAKRESE[E

Mr. ZHAO Xianwen
HEXEE

Mr. Zhao Xianwen (#8& ), aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 7 February
2024. Mr. Zhao joined the Second Artillery Corps Back-end Operation Management Department
under the Chinese People’s Liberation Army and engaged in internal audit works until May 1998
after graduating from the Military Economic Institute of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army* (F1 [
ANRBEMEBZELLEZ2PE) majored in military audit with a Master’s Degree in July 1997. Mr. Zhao
has abundant finance-related experiences since he worked for CGN and its subsidiaries (the “CGN
Group”) in April 2001. From April 2001 to December 2015, Mr. Zhao worked in finance departments
in Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Power Services Group Co., Ltd (BERADEZERY (58) AR
‘AF]), Liaoning Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* GEE AL A% E A R/AE]) and China Nuclear
Power Technology Research Institute Co., Ltd.* (PRIZEZEBEMAZEIRERAT) respectively.
Subsequently, Mr. Zhao worked as the chief accountant of CGN Cangnan Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* (|8
BZEEZEAREAT) until January 2022. From January 2022 to June 2023, Mr. Zhao worked as
the chief accountant of Guizhou Yuping Clean Thermal Energy Co., Ltd.* (B ERBZEEEFIEAT). From June 2023, Mr.
Zhao has worked as a director in the various subsidiaries under the CGN Group. Mr. Zhao was appointed as a director of CGN
Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.* (‘:Pﬁﬁzﬁzﬁwﬁxﬁﬁﬁ/&ﬂ) in June 2023; as a director of Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and
Management Co., Ltd* (KR EESEEFESEAT), Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd.* (BERIZEES
EHPRAT), Fujian Ningde Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* (B2 EEZBAE/AT), Fujian Ningde Second Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.*
(BEEEFE _ZEEMRAT) and CGN Ninghe Investment Co., Ltd.* (FEZEIZIEEBRAE]) in September 2023; as a
director of Taishan Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd.* (B LLUIZE&EEBR/AF) in November 2023; and as a director of
CGN Wind Energy in January 2024,
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Mr. CHEN Xinguo (resigned on 7 February 2024)
PR 3T ER 5 & (12202428 7H B )

Mr. CHEN Xinguo (PR¥#i[E), aged 60, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022
and the chairman of Investment and Risk Management Committee on 29 December 2023. He was
the director of CGN Wind Energy. Mr. Chen successively served as a staff member, a deputy chief
staff member and a chief staff member of the Education Division, a chief staff member of the Finance
Division and the deputy chief of the Finance Division (in charge of the overall work) of the Xinjiang
Autonomous Region Economic Commission (i@ /8B &K ZEZEF) from August 1985 to April
1998, and he took a temporary position as the deputy director in the Economic Commission of
Hami, Xinjiang (i 3814 B # & 42 %) from January 1994 to June 1995. From April 1998 to January
2003, Mr. Chen successively served as the head of the Finance Division and the head of the Foreign
Economics Division of the Economic and Trade Commission of Xinjiang Autonomous Region (i52
BHAE4KLEZR). He served as the deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee and director
general of the Urumgi Trade Development Bureau (Grain Bureau) (BB AETHEZEER BB E)),
the deputy secretary and director of the Communist Party Committee of the National Development and Reform Commission (2%
N Z#48) and the secretary and deputy director of the Communist Party Committee of the Supply and Marketing Cooperative
Society (844 ¥E%t) from January 2003 to May 2012, and he concurrently served as the deputy secretary and director of the
Communist Party Committee of Wuchang Development and Reform Commission (& & 2% 28Z) from December 2008 to August
2011. From May 2012 to February 2022, Mr. Chen successively served as the deputy general manager (in charge of the overall
work), deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee, secretary of the Communist Party Committee and general manager
of the Xinjiang Branch of CGN. He has served as a director of China Nuclear Power Engineering, CGN Nuclear Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (FREZZEMEEIRDBER/AE]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
000881)) and CGN Environmental Protection Industry Co., Ltd. (R EZIR{RE B R/AE) since February 2022. He has over 30
years of experience in finance. Mr. Chen graduated from the School of Finance and Economics of Xinjiang University of Finance
and Economics (358 B 48 A B2 B 48 82 B5%) in August 1985, majoring in industrial economics.
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(7)

Mr. WANG Minhao
ERE

Mr. WANG Minhao (EER ), aged 65, has been an independent non-executive Director since 26
June 2018. Mr. Wang also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee. He participated in the design of the Longyangxia and Daxia Hydropower
Stations and served as the vice president of Northwest Engineering Corporation (7815838155 51 )
in 1993. He was the deputy general manager of China Hydropower Engineering Consulting Group
Co. (FEI/KBEREE/AE), and the deputy general manager of China Water Conservancy &
Hydropower Consulting Co., Ltd. (R Bk F)7K E T2 545845 BR/A E)) from March 2000 to September
2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an University of Technology (A% I8 T A £) (formerly known as
Shaanxi Institute of Mechanical Engineering (BX7a1% 122 [5%)) of Hydraulic Engineering and obtained
a Master’s Degree in Engineering from Xi’an University of Technology (FA %2 T AKE8)in April 2003.
He was a registered structural engineer. Mr. Wang retired on 25 February 2019 and ceased to act
as deputy general manager and a member of Party Standing Committee of Power Construction
Corporation of China (FEIE 1 ZEE (&15) BEAF)in March 2019. Mr. Wang also ceased to
act as the chairman and the legal representative of the Powerchina Water Environment Governance Co., Ltd (R EE/KIRIZ AR
FMiBRAR)on 16 May 2019.

Rk E 6558 H2018F6H26 HRREIBIUFNTES TAENTEIHNEE S ITERIELEETRE HESHEFHE
RUEKEIEHR ST BEB 1993 F R ILE AR IR 28I & ° 1200038 E2011F98 B EPE/KBEMEE AT EZ IR
BIBRPEKFKETLRENERATEIDNALE  TAERENTERET RS FIBRAKMERR) K ITHEE  WHR20035F48
EAZETAKSTEBLT2( - HATMAEEM TAENR2019F2825HEBMNR R2019F38 ABEAFEABHERER RN B
RATBRECEREZEE TAETNR2019F55816HABEITERKRBAEBRMBRATNEEEREAENREK .

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng
BRELE

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng (##24) , aged 71, has been an independent non-executive Director since 26
June 2018. Mr. Yang also serves as a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Investment and Risk Management Committee. Mr. Yang is
currently the president of Chinese Wind Energy Equipment Association (F? Bl & 214 i 177 = JBL BB 5%
#®) and an independent non-executive director of Dongfang Electric Wind Power Co., Ltd. (B8 /5
BEREERMHABRAT). Mr. Yang resigned as an independent non-executive director of Titan Wind
Energy (Suzhou) Co,. Ltd. CKIBESE (B IN) B& 17 B FRA B]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 002531), Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (3758 B &}
P BEE/AT]) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 2208) and Jinlei Technology
Co., Ltd. (%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁxfﬂ/\j) (formerly known as Shandong Laiwu Jinlei Wind Power Technology Co.,

Ltd. (LSRR ESFREBR RN ABEMR/AST))(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 300443) in May 2019, June 2019 and August 2022 respectively. He has previously
served as a deputy director of the energy and electricity generation subdepartment of the Ministry of
Energy (BERE R ERIMERLEERE), a deputy general manager and chief engineer of China Fulin
Windpower Development Corp. (FEEREAARI®ZA5)and a chief engineer of Longyuan Power Group Limited (BeJRE /I &
E /A F]) from May 1988 to January 2007. From June 2007 to April 2012, he served several positions in China Longyuan Power
Group Corporation Limited (BEJRE I E B A&7 B FE/AF)) including the chief engineer, manager of the development department,
technical development department and safety production department, a director of preparatory office of wind energy research
centre, technical information department, renewable energy research and development centre and Jiangsu Longyuan Offshore
Wind Power Project. He also served as a committee member of the Beijing Direct Committee of the Chinese Community Party
Longyuan Power Group Company (FEE/RE /JEE A ) from July 2006 to December 2010. Mr. Yang was the general
manager of the Suzhou Longyuan Bailu Wind Power Vocational Technology Training Center Co., Ltd. (RN BEJR B E B %
Bl AR /AE) from July 2007 to April 2012. Mr. Yang graduated from Wuhan Polytechmc University (0 T 22B5%) of
Electronic Engineering in January 1982 and obtained a Postgraduate Degree in Electricity from China Agricultural University (16
REZETRAE)in October 1986.
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SEAKESE[E

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick
RFIELRE

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick G2F1E), aged 65, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 17 September 2014. Mr. Leung also serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee and was
appointed as a member of the Investment and Risk Management Committee on 22 January 2020.
Mr. Leung has over 30 years of professional and industrial experience in management, corporate
governance, corporate finance, banking and accounting. Mr. Leung resigned as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee and nomination committee of China
Logistics Property Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company previously listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1589) on 1 March 2022. He was previously an executive director, chief financial officer and
company secretary of Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited (“Skyworth”) (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 751). In his almost nine years of services in Skyworth, he was mainly
responsible for the company’s successful resumption of trading of its shares and strengthening of
its internal controls, accounting system, corporate governance and investor relations management.
In 2011 and 2013, Skyworth was awarded by Asia Money as the Best Managed Medium Cap
Company in China of 2011 and by Forbes as Asia’s Fabulous 50 of 2013, respectively. Furthermore,
Mr. Leung accumulated 14 years of working experience in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He left Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in June
1999 as a principal of corporate finance. Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Business Administration (major
in Accounting) from the University of The East in the Philippines in November 1981. He became an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 1997 and has been its fellow member since October 2013. Also, he
has been a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December 1996. He has been a member of
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since April 1999 and has been its fellow member since November 2015. In
addition, he has been a founding member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association since November
2015.

Mr. Leung was previously a non-executive director of Richly Field China Development Limited (“Richly Field”) (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 313), which was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability. He joined Richly Field as an independent non-executive director on 2 May 2003 and was appointed as an
executive director on 3 March 2004. He was re-designated as a non-executive director on 1 May 2005 and he resigned from the
directorship on 4 March 2006. Since his resignation as a non-executive director of Richly Field on 4 March 2006, Mr. Leung has
no involvement in any matters relating to Richly Field. During Mr. Leung’s tenure of directorship with Richly Field, Richly Field
and its then subsidiaries were engaged in the building construction and maintenance industry including building work, design
and construction and building maintenance in Hong Kong. As disclosed in the public announcements made by Richly Field, a
winding up petition was served on it on 30 June 2006 by a public accounting firm for an unpaid service fee of approximately
HK$593,000. On 18 December 2006, the winding up petition for Richly Field was heard in the High Court of Hong Kong and
winding up order was made against Richly Field. On 29 May 2007, the High Court of Hong Kong made an order to appoint
joint and several liquidators and the committee of inspection of Richly Field. The winding up order against Richly Field was
permanently stayed effective on 23 July 2008 and the joint and several liquidators were discharged with effect from 23 July
2008.

RFIEfE 655 B2014F9B17THEETBUIFHATES RAEENTNHIBZEZES TR KIN2020F 1220 EZTAKREREA
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EMEFB -RAEEMIBIFIIANSERERSIAZIHNEENBEL (FTEGHE) B -REEMI7TFIARASTBEG 6
ANEEE E2013F 108 ENAHEERZTE - HIAN1096F1 2B AZTHEHMATEE - HBE1999F48ERN AT BRTHRE
EEEEE  WE015E1MAMAEEFEE - BIN MINR2015E 11 B AETBB I ERTEEH TN GTE-
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SEAKRESE[E

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

(1)

(2)

(3)

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
SEREE

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (3R &) is the secretary of the Communist Party Committee and the Chairman of the Board. See “Secretary of
the Communist Party Committee, Chairman and Executive Director” in this annual report for details of Mr. Zhang’s biography.

RESRAEREEERKEFEEIE RELEZEEFBHASRAAFRELZEC - TERNTES I —H-

Mr. LI Guangming
FHAEE

Mr. LI Guangming is the deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee and the President. See “President and Executive
Director” in this annual report for details of Mr. Li's biography.

FHRAEERBLRIELRBE -FREZBEEFFF2HAFRIBERRNITES —H-

Mr. LI Jing
**E?EEE

Mr. LI Jing (Z25), aged 58, is currently the committee member of the Communist Party Committee and the deputy general
manager of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in January 2015. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li served in the
design division of nitrogenous fertiliser factory of Nanning Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (E1EABI&BRE) from July 1987 to
February 1992; joined the Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd. from February 1992 to April 1999; the engineering
department of Lingao Nuclear Power Company Ltd. from April 1999 to March 2003; and the maintenance department of Daya
Bay Nuclear Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd from March 2003 to August 2004. From September 2004 to May
2010, he held several positions in the commissioning department of China Nuclear Power Engineering, including the head of
commissioning division for nuclear islands, manager assistant and head of commissioning division for nuclear islands, manager
assistant and director of the commissioning manager office. From May 2010 to June 2011, he was the deputy general manager
of safety and engineering management department of CGN and from June 2011 to May 2014, he was the deputy general
manager and general manager of safety and information management department of CGN. Mr. Li served as deputy general
manager of safety and quality assurance department of CGN from January 2013 to January 2015, and concurrently as deputy
general manager of safety and quality assurance department of CGN Power since May 2014. From January 2015 to January
2016, Mr. Li served as chief safety officer of CGN Meiya Power Holdings Co., Limited. From January 2016 to January 2018,
he served as the chief safety officer of the Company. Mr. Li served as the member of the party committee and deputy general
manager of the Company from January 2018, and served as the member of the Party Committee of CGN Wind Energy from
November 2019. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in engineering majoring in chemical engineering from Nanjing College of
Chemical Engineering (F8 515 T2 %) in July 1987, and a Master’'s Degree in Engineering majoring in industrial engineering from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (BEF A} A E2) in February 2001. Mr. Li holds professional qualification as a
senior engineer.

FIEME 585 IMEAEES L E RN AT EIAEEIE c FHER2015F1AMARAT c RIARAT AT ZEHhEFK1987FETA
F1902F 2 A A ML AT AIEMR T RHMIH 5 119925 2B FE19990F 48 T ERZE S E B/ R ATER ; M1999F48 =E
2003F3HAEEBEIZEARAE TIEIEH ; 1R2003F38 E2004F 8 HBE ARG EIZBEZEEE ST ERABHEEIT
B 1R2004F9B E2010F5 B AEFEZIREBABAER SAREARERIARER SENEZZERARERER - KIEY
ERAACEMAZEEM ; R2010F5BE20011F6 B IR EZEZE2H T EEEPRILLCERIN2011F6 8 E2014F58
FhEZLEEEE BRI SR R ARSI c TR ER2013FE 1B E2015F 1 BEFTEZLZ 2 BRI ELE 1
52014ﬁsﬁtﬁf£¢ﬁ$2%ﬁ§%'f£ﬁ*‘ﬁm 484838 FHRAER2015F 1B E2016F1 B EETHEZEDEHIEREBRE AT
PHEE  R2016F1 B E2018F 1 BEE A AT Z 2B - HENR2018F 1B ESEI AR ELZLZE NEIRKIE T H
2019&115 SRATPEZRBEBEEZZE - FREMBTFTEESEREIERIEETIREEENT RS TS24 1122001
FoREREPREABTETRSENTIREBLIEM TEAESR TREMNEEERK.
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(4)

(5)

SEAKESE[E

Mr. XIE Qiufa
HERE

Mr. XIE Qiufa (51#k2%), aged 50, joined the Company in June 2023 and is currently the committee member of the Communist
Party Committee and the chief accountant of the Company. Mr. Xie worked in the finance department of Lingao Nuclear Power
Co., Ltd. (58/RZEHBRAE) from February 1998 to June 2001, and worked in the finance department of China Guangdong
Nuclear Power Group Co., Lid. (FEIERZEBEEEABR/AR)from June 2001 to May 2009. From May 2009 to January
2015, he worked in the Finance Department of Taishan Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd. (& LUIZBEEHERAST). From
January 2015 to August 2021, he served as a member of the party committee and chief accountant of Daya Bay Nuclear Power
Operation Management Co., Ltd. (KEEEZEEEEEBREFILAR). From August 2021 to June 2023, he served as chief
accountant of Yangjiang Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (B3 T1#ZZEHBPRAE)). He served as the chief accountant of the Company from
July 2023 and served as the committee member of the Communist Party Committee and the chief accountant of the Company
from February 2024 to present. Mr. Xie obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in accounting from Jilin University in July 1996 and a
Master’s Degree in business management from Jilin University in June 2007.

BN EE L > 5058 ) 2028 F6 B NMAR AT REAARDELZELZE B BT H L EIN1998F 28 E2001F6 B ELERIZE
BIRA BB 7S ST, E62001£E6HIzoogisﬁZ‘EP!J“%&*%@EFE@TEH% EBEEE 0 200958 E2015F1HE
AUKBAEERAT MBI ER > H2015F 18 E2021F8 BT AR EXLBIE fiﬁﬂﬁff{@ﬁﬂjE%ééa&Wm +
BB TS > 10202188 £2023F6 BEMG I IZEE R A B E(EL G 56 EA2023E7)%1£2K’&1W%“D+BW R2024F 28 E
RNABELELE EETMogmEN196F7THEBEMABEHBRTENSE T2 WHR2007F6 5 &= iMk%ﬁ%”ﬁ
BEEBLIHREZE

Mr. QI Fang
BBEE

Mr. QI Fang (B8 , aged 40, joined the Company in April 2016 and is currently the committee member of the Communist Party
Committee and the deputy general manager of the Company. From July 2008 to August 2010, Mr. Qi held various positions in
China Three Gorges Corporation (FEEI=IREE A F]). In September 2010, Mr. Qi joined CGN Wind Power, where he held
various positions in the investment and development department. He served as the assistant to the general manager of the
investment and development department of CGN Wind Energy from November 2013 to August 2015 and the deputy general
manager of the investment development center (presiding over the work) from September 2015 to April 2016. Mr. Qi joined the
Company in April 2016 and has held important positions in different departments of the Company. He served as the deputy
general manager of Sichuan Branch from April 2016 to April 2018. He served as the deputy general manager of the merger
and acquisition department from April to October 2018, the deputy general manager of the market development department
(presiding over the work) from October 2018 to December 2019, the general manager of the power marketing department from
December 2019 to January 2022. He served as the deputy general manager of the Company from January 2022 and served
as the committee member of the Communist Party Committee and the deputy general manager of the Company from February
2024 to present. Mr. Qi Fang obtained a Bachelor's Degree in engineering in July 2005 at Sichuan University (Z4)1|A2), and
obtained a Master's Degree from North China Electric Power University (FE35 8 77 K2)in April 2008.

BERSTA > 4058 2016 F4B MARRE RIEEARBEZEZE BIELKIE B L AT 2008F7H £2010F8 8 RHE KL
CREEABEEREBALc2010FIB BARENMAFTEZANES BEELREZESIETABRRBA R2013F118E
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Mr. DING Yeliang
TERKE

Mr. DING Yeliang (T 2 ER), aged 48, is currently the committee member of the Communist Party Committee, the deputy
general manager of the Company, serves as the director of Science and Technology Committee (RIZ2 & ##TEZE =€), the general
manager of CGN Solar and Thermal Research Institute Co., Ltd. (in preparation) (FEZ A EITARAT () 424L1E)
and joined the Company in January 2022. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ding worked in Qinghai Electric Power Company
(584 B H/AF)and Qinghai Provincial National Economic and Trade Commission (HB&BERLEEZE S ZEEE)and from
July 1998 to September 2003. Subsequently, Mr. Ding also held different positions in the Qinghai Provincial Government from
September 2003 to January 2014. From January 2014 to January 2022, Mr. Ding held various positions in the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council. Mr. Ding served as the deputy general manager of the
Company in January 2022, and served as the director of the Science and Technology Committee in March 2023. Mr. Ding served
as the general manager of CGN Solar and Thermal Research Institute Co., Ltd. (in preparation) in January 2024 and elected as a
committee member of the Communist Party Committee of the Company in February 2024. In July 1998, Mr. Ding graduated from
Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical Engineering, majoring in power system and automation. He also obtained a Master’s
Degree from China University of Geosciences in 2018.

TERLSE 485 REFEZZE AL FRAKRE - RHERNTEZESEE ﬁT{EPfV%ﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁE@ﬂ(g) Ha
Ho2022F 1 BMARRE e MARAT R T HREN1998FE7E E2003FIB DA ERBRENRE - FEEERKEEZE
EgEH-fER T%E}‘ﬁ‘zoosfwﬁ12014¢1HHﬁéi,’ééﬂzﬁ%ETﬂmuo2014&1512022?:&)% TRAERRETE
EEEEEEEELEGHRIARE M T AER2022E1BEER AT EAELIE 2023 F38 IR BRMEE G FF
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Mr. JI Wenbo
s iERE

Mr. JI Wenbo (5t 18), aged 44, who holds the Bachelor’s Degree in electrical engineering and automation from Jilin University
(FMAE), is currently the committee member of the Communist Party Committee, the deputy general manager of the
Company and also serves as the general manager of the Inner Mongolia Branch of CGN New Energy. Mr. Ji joined the Company
in August 2016. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ji held various positions at XJ Electric Co., Ltd. (4 E R IZ1H B EAF) from
October 2000 to April 2012. He served as the general manager of Beijing XJ Renewable Resources Technology Co., Ltd. (35
REFE e R AR E1EAE]) from April 2012 to June 2013. Mr. Ji worked in the Henan Branch of CGN Wind Energy from
June 2013 to August 2016, during which time he held various important positions and he served as the deputy general manager
of the company from September 2015 to August 2016. Mr. Ji served as the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of
the Henan Branch of CGN New Energy from August 2016 to March 2018, and the general manager of the Henan Branch of CGN
New Energy from March 2018 to February 2023. He served as the general manager of the Inner Mongolia Branch of CGN New
Energy in February 2023, served as the deputy general manager of the Company in November 2023 and elected as a committee
member of the Communist Party Committee of the Company in February 2024.

SR E M EMABERIEKREEHEZE - ARNBE RETALFNELZZE ARLKE - RHEZMERASR
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SEAKESE[E

Mr. CHEN Shengli
RS HI ST £

Mr. CHEN Shengli (Bff%#), aged 51, joined the Company in September 2017 and is currently the assistant general manager
of the Company. Mr. Chen worked in Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd. (?%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ)from July
1992 to March 2004, and worked in Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd. (KE3 &2 BESEIEH
fR/AF)) from March 2004 to November 2006. From November 2006 to December 2014, he served serveral major positions in
China Nuclear Power Engineering. Mr. Chen served as deputy general manager and deputy general engineer of CGN Huizhou
Nuclear Power Co., Ltd (REZEMNIZEAR/AF]) from December 2014 to November 2016, and served as general manager
and director of CGN Yangxi Nuclear Power Co., Ltd (FEZZFAZEERAF) from December 2016 to September 2017. In
September 2017, Mr. Chen joined the Company and has served as the assistant to the general manager of the Company since
November 2018. Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Administration from Sun Yat-Sen University.

FRAERZCAE > 5158 201 7E9B MMAKRAT IE}/&EZIK’AT%@%%IEEﬂIEf’I@%‘:EE’M%ZEHQ%2004&35&%%@%6\ EER
NEMEH; ; 122004F38 £2006F 11 BEARNGEEZEELSEERRATMIHR ; R2006F11BE2014F 128 EFEZTREER
NEMER BHEEARBHAIETEEEN; &2014&12)@ Z2016FE1BAETPEZEMNZBEER AR EIIELCEREETRE
ENETS 5 IR2016F 128 2201 7HF9ARNH EXGHEZERRASIBEERKIEREE 2017F98 » BRIuATEMAKRAT > 20184
B ESETAQABMKEE - BAFIMEFRUARBTHRERSHE - ARNEE

Mr. LONG Yingbin
REmEIR A

Mr. LONG Yingbin (BEFEXR), aged 53, is currently the assistant general manager of the Company. He joined the Company in
November 2018. Prior to joining the Company, he served various positions in Unit 61785 (61785&F[X) from January 1996
to September 2003. From September 2003 to October 2018, he served different major positions in the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council (EA#fEEEELEEEZLZE D), including deputy director of
the General Department of the Foreign Affairs Bureau from September 2005 to January 2009, director of the General Department
of the Foreign Affairs Bureau, and director of the General Department of the International Cooperation Bureau from January 2009
to October 2018; Mr. Long served as a member of the Party Committee and Deputy General Manager of China Eastern Airlines
Beijing Branch from November 2013 to May 2015. Mr. Long obtained a Master's Degree of Military Informatics from Information
Science Department of the PLA Information Engineering University (B2 E {5 8 T2 KE)in July 1996, and an EMBA Degree
from Business School of Ecole des Ponts ParisTech (& B 17 B #5 A &2) in May 2016.

BEFENR e 0 535k IVIEE R AT IS IEBNIE o BEE £ R2018F 11 BMAERRAT » RIMARAT A BEREN1996F 1B E
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Mr. LEE Kin
FREE

Mr. LEE Kin (Z=#), aged 51, joined the Company on 1 June 2007 as the controller. He has been the company secretary of the
Company since 26 January 2015. He has experience in public accounting and several industries including energy, media and
ports. He has over 29 years of experience in areas of accounting, internal control, financing, investor relations and corporate
strategy. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994, Master of
Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in 2004 and Master of Corporate Governance (with
distinction) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2013. He was awarded a Graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong
law by Manchester Metropolitan University in 2023. Mr. Lee holds PRC Legal Professional Qualification and is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA),
the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI) and the Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom, a
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA) and a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) respectively. Mr.
Lee has been awarded an Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is currently a member of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Election Committee, the Secretary General for the Association of Hong Kong Accounting
Advisors and Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) member of Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region. He is the
former chairman of the ACCA - Hong Kong branch (2015-16). Mr. Lee was awarded the Medal of Honor (MH) by the Hong Kong
SAR Government in 2023.

ERIEE 5158 R2007FE6 B 1B MA R R BRETFEEE > B2015F1B26 HEEE AR AN ATMEB - BN Est RZE1T
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Mr. XU Jiapeng
FEmEE

Mr. XU Jiapeng (BF % M8) , aged 50, is currently the general counsel of the Company. From January 2010 to January 2014, Mr. Xu
worked in the legal affairs office in CGN Wind Power, and later from January 2014 to January 2015, he served as deputy general
manger (in charge of overall operation) of Legal Department. Mr. Xu served as temporary person-in-charge of Legal Department
of the Company from January 2015 to July 2017; he served as the general manager of Legal Department of the Company from
July 2017 to October 2019; served as the general counsel and the general manager of Legal Department of the Company from
October 2019 to January 2021. Mr. Xu served as the general counsel of the Company from January 2021 to March 2023. From
March 2023 to present, he served as the general counsel and general manager of the Contract Business Department of the
Company. In July 2023, he also served as the company’s chief compliance officer of the Company. Mr. Xu obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree of International Economic Law from China University of Political Science and Law (FREIEEAER) in 1997, and a Master’s
Degree of Law from Peking University (A5 R A22) in 2004. Mr. Xu is a qualified lawyer.
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Mr. CHENG Hexiang
AR E

Mr. CHENG Hexiang (B¢ #1#%), aged 54, joined the Company in November 2007 and is currently the deputy chief engineer of
the Company and the general manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Cheng worked as an electrical shift supervisor in Yancheng Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (BE3IZAE B E S £ /A E]) from August
1993 to November 2007, and the manager of the production department in the Northeast Branch of CGN Wind Power Generation
Limited (FEZ R 2B AR AT) from November 2007 to March 2009. He worked as the Director of Safety Production
Department in the operation and maintenance division of CGN Wind Energy from March 2009 to January 2014 and he served
as the assistant to the general manager and director of Human Resources Performance and Training Management Department
of the production operation and maintenance center from January 2014 to July 2015. He served as the assistant to the general
manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company from July 2015 to August 2018. He worked as the deputy
general manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company (presiding over the work) from August 2018 to
September 2020. He worked as the general manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company from September
2020 to November 2023 and also served as the general manager of the technology company from February 2020 to June 2021.
He has served as the deputy chief engineer and general manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company
since November 2023. Mr. Cheng obtained a college degree in electrical technology from Yancheng Industrial College (B85 T %
H=RIEL) in July 1993 and a Bachelor’s Degree in computer science and technology from Nanjing University (B85 AE) in July
2004.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of the CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the
generation and supply of electricity, construction and operation of power
stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and Korea.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report, which forms part of this
report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in this annual report.

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommends that
1.56 US cents (equivalent to 12.17 HK cents) per share of the Company
be distributed as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 23 May 2024 (the “2024 AGM”), is
expected to be paid on Friday, 21 June 2024 to shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 12 June 2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entittement to attend and vote the 2024
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
20 May 2024 to Thursday, 23 May 2024 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for
attending and voting at the 2024 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration by not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 May 2024.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 7 June
2024 to Wednesday, 12 June 2024 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at the
above address for registration by not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 June
2024.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on pages 259 to 260. The summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in note 35(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) are subject to the rights, privileges
and restrictions set forth in the memorandum of association and bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and are not subject to any pre-emptive or
similar rights under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda or pursuant to the
Bye-laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 35(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 133 to 134, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as of 31 December 2023 was approximately
US$156.0 million.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Below is a summary of the policy:

1. The profit distribution policy of the Company aims to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders as well as the sustainable development of the
Company, ensure the continuity and stability of profit distribution policy
in compliance with relevant requirements of laws, regulations and bye-
laws of the Company.

2. The payment and amount of dividends will depend on the specific
operation results of the Company, general financial position, cash flow
position, future operating and capital needs, amount of distributable
profit, restrictions under loan covenants, tax considerations, general
economic conditions, applicable laws and regulations as well as other
factors that the Board considers relevant.

3. The declaration of final dividend shall be recommended to
Shareholders by the Board based on the above situations, and will be
implemented after being voted and approved in general meeting of the
Company.

4. The declaration, payment and amount of interim dividend shall be
determined by the Board and implemented based on the above
situations from time to time.

LARGEST CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 70% of the Group’s total revenue and the Group’s
largest customer for the year accounted for approximately 33% of the Group’s
total revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
97% of the Group’s total purchases, while the largest supplier for the year
accounted for approximately 82% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange) or any of the Shareholders
who owns more than 5% of the Company’s number of issued Shares has any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors since 1 January 2023 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman and Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (former President)
(resigned as President on 4 September 2023)

President and Executive Director:
Mr. Li Guangming (appointed on 4 September 2023)
Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Qingming (appointed on 29 December 2023)

Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on 7 February 2024)

Mr. Wang Hongxin (resigned on 29 December 2023) (note (i)
Mr. Bian Shuming (resigned on 4 September 2023) (note (ii))
Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on 7 February 2024) (note (iii))

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Note (i): Due to retirement, Mr. Wang Hongxin has resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 29 December 2023.

Note (ii): Due to job arrangement, Mr. Bian Shuming has resigned as a non-executive Director with
effect from 4 September 2023.

Note (iii): Due to retirement, Mr. Chen Xinguo has resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 7 February 2024.

Under the Bye-laws, the existing Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company.

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Li Guangming, Mr.
Liu Qingming and Mr. Zhao Xianwen will retire at the 2024 AGM and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Zhiwu and Mr. Yang
Xiaosheng will retire by rotation at the 2024 AGM and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

The retiring Directors, if re-elected, will hold office from the date of re-election
to the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held in
2027, subject to earlier determination in accordance with the Bye-laws and/or
any applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to the factors set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election or election at the 2024
AGM has or will have a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Related Party Transactions”
in this section and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2023 or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the continuing connected transactions as stated in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report of the Directors,
no contract of significance between the Company or its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder of the Company or its subsidiaries subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2023 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2023.

TAXATION

Under present Bermuda law, there is no Bermuda income or profits tax,
withholding tax, capital gains tax, capital transfer tax, estate duty or
inheritance tax payable by the Company or its members, other than members
ordinarily resident in Bermuda. Further, no such tax is imposed by withholding
or otherwise on any payment to be made to or made by the Company.

STAMP DUTY

Under present Bermuda law, the Company is exempt from all stamp duties
in Bermuda except on transactions involving “Bermuda property”. This term
relates, essentially, to real and personal property physically situated in
Bermuda, including the shares of local companies (as opposed to exempted
companies). Transfers of shares and warrants in all exempted companies are
exempt from stamp duty in Bermuda.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and/or chief executive of
the Company has any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
which will be required to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and chief executive were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO:

Capacity/Nature

EFNEFNEmEK

R2023FE12A31R  MEEEKR  AEXATRSTH
AEREAQABDREHBEIE (TEREHRBEKA
(MBS REERE ) BXVI) IR H HBRARM TES
B EEA()VRIER SRS EASEXVIEET KD I
BAAARARBRF (AREERRESTHRASRES
HERPEEAEREXWEENRAES B Z %
B) (IR BEEHF R ERAEIMETALRTEFEEZ
RDELM ; SiniRiE L RA M eECcahpr# L&
TABEETESTZNETESTH (MEEFH) BN
AN B B B AT P PR R A B R kA o

FERR

2023F12A31H MEBEERARBRBTHAEMR
HoUTAL (EERERFDRSTHRAERN REQ
AIRMAEMROTHEAARSAEFREEARES
S RGP SEXVER B2k F 357 B R E [ 4 A B K
TR ER > WA RBIREESF KA SR E33615 AR
BB EmE e

Approximate %

Name of Interest Number of Shares of Shareholding

%18 G198 HmiE i &8 R B 2L

China General Nuclear Power Corporation Interests in controlled corporation 3,103,384,000 72.33%
(“CGN") M2xs) (long position)

REEZEEBRAR (THEZ) @ REEEEDR (FR)

CGNPC International Limited Interests in controlled corporation 3,101,800,000 72.29%
(“CGNPC International”) (725 (long position)

FREZERBERAB (THEZBERE) 2 ZREEEED (FR)

CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited Beneficial owner 3,101,800,000 72.29%

(“CGN Energy International”) (/2®
FElEZ A REI R IER B RS
(T EiZAETRE R ) 2

(long position)

BEmBERAA (FR)
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Notes:

(2)

(3)

CGN indirectly holds 100% of the total issued share capital of CGN Energy International.
As informed by CGN, CGN was deemed to be interested in 3,103,384,000 Shares,
in which 3,101,800,000 Shares were held directly by CGN Energy International (a
controlled corporation of CGNPC International and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN),
and 1,584,000 Shares were held by other company that is controlled indirectly by CGN.
There could be a difference between the shareholding of CGN in the Company as at 31
December 2023 and the disclosure of interest information disclosed on the website of
the Stock Exchange, as the disclosure of interest information disclosed on the website of
the Stock Exchange represents information disclosed by CGN pursuant to its obligation
under Section 336 of the SFO only. For the avoidance of doubt and double counting, it
should be noted that the shareholdings stated against CGNPC International and CGN
Energy International represented the same block of Shares.

CGNPC International directly holds 87.28% of the total issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, which directly holds approximately 72.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and indirectly holds 12.72% of the issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Gold Sky Capital Limited.
Accordingly, CGNPC International is deemed to have an interest in all Shares held by
CGN Energy International.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, as of the date of this report, none of the Directors is
a director or employee of a company which had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE SCHEMES

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on 24 November 2015 for the purpose of enabling the Company to
(i) establish incentive and mechanism that is in line with market practice and
satisfies the Company’s development strategy needs so as to facilitate long-
term development of the Company and maximise Shareholders’ value, and
(ii) optimise the remuneration structure of core employees of the Company
such that the competitiveness of the Company’s remuneration system may be
enhanced, which will in turn attract and retain core management and technical
staff to serve the Company for a long period of time. All Options (as defined
below) ever granted under the Share Option Scheme have lapsed. No Options
were granted, exercised nor cancelled during the year ended 31 December

2023.

(1)

Eligible Participants to the Share Option
Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant options (the “Options”) to any eligible participants
(the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe at a price calculated in
accordance with paragraph (8) below for such number of Shares as
it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Participants to any Options
shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis of
his/her contribution to the development and growth of the Group in the
opinion of the Directors.
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(2)

(3)

Maximum Number of Shares Available for
Exercise

The total number of new Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other effective share option schemes (if any) of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the
same class as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
which is 429,082,400 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

The Company may at any time as the Board thinks fit seek approval
from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit save that
the total number of new Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date on which the Shareholders approve the refreshment of
the Scheme Mandate Limit and the maximum number of new Shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report of the Directors, the total number of
securities available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was nil.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible
Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted and to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other effective
share option scheme(s) (if any) of the Company to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares of the same class.

Grant of Options to Connected Persons
Pursuant to Rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Any grant of Options to an Eligible Participant who is a
Director, chief executive of the Company or substantial
Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or their
respective associates (including a discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include a Director, chief executive or a
substantial Shareholder of a company beneficially owned by
any Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder) must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors.
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(4)

(b)

Where the Board proposes to grant any Option to an Eligible
Participant who is a substantial Shareholder or its associates
(including a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include a substantial Shareholder or a company beneficially
owned by any substantial Shareholder) would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options
already granted and to be granted (including Options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue; and

ii. having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, over
HK$5,000,000.00,

such proposed grant of Options must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case, the Company
shall send a circular to its Shareholders containing all those
terms as required under the Listing Rules. All connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting at such
general meeting (except that any connected person may vote
against the relevant resolution provided that his intention to
do so has been stated in this circular). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such Options must be taken
on a poll.

No Options were granted during the year ended 31 December
2023.

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised at any time during a period of 3 years
from the date after the completion of the minimum period for which the
Option must be held as described in paragraph (5) below.
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(5)

(6)

(7)

Exercisable Period

Subject to the fulfilment of the exercise conditions as described in
paragraph (6) below, the Options are exercisable (subject as provided
below) during each Exercisable Period specified below for up to the

(5)

AI{T{EHAR

FEITXE(6)RFTMITRKMEE > BRER
TXETRANEATERABAR TR (EAR
TXFEAR) URERZEUTFIRYE

number of Shares specified below:

Maximum number of Shares

R= k5 #E

BB

Exercisable Period

5] 17 {5 23 R

approximately one-third of the Shares fall to be issued on
exercise of the Options*
BIINEREETHERETRITORMN=22—

approximately an additional one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*
N B R EETHERR T ETHRMH SIS

=pz—

approximately the remaining one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*

RN EBREEITEREFETHNRMGONERT
=Hz—

the first business day after 24 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 60th month after the offer date
ENHBREFAEABNE—EEXAEZENHER
Be0ERMEE—EEER

the first business day after 36 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 72th month after the offer date

BEENHIEH6ESBENE—EAEXHEENHERE
FEANERE—EEXH

the first business day after 48 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 84th month after the offer date

BEENHIRE48EABENE—BAEXHEZNBEHE
FAEANEREBE—EEXA

*Note:  The Board may at its absolute discretion determine the exact number of the

Shares fall to be issued on exercise of the Options.

Exercise Conditions

The Board or its delegate(s) may at their sole discretion specify, as
part of the terms and conditions of any Option, any performance
targets or conditions that must be satisfied before the Option can be
exercised as part of the terms and conditions of any Option.

Offer of Options

The Company and Eligible Participants shall enter into a share
option agreement upon the offer to set out the rights and obligations
of both parties. Share option agreement shall contain information
among others, names, number of identification card, address,
correspondence, and any other matters. Eligible Participants shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as the nominal consideration upon
acceptance of the offer.
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(8) Exercise Price for Shares

The exercise price for Shares issuable under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which
must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date.

(9) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted by the Shareholders, unless otherwise terminated under the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Shareholders on 24 November 2015 and, as at the
date of this report, has a remaining life of approximately 1 year and 7
months.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
and no equity-linked agreement subsisted as at the end of the year ended 31
December 2028.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provide that each Director is entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. During the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report of the Directors, the Company has
arranged directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into certain
transactions with connected persons. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are as follows:

(A) With CGN and its subsidiaries, excluding

the Group (the “CGN Group”)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders
approval requirements

’

1(a) Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)

Framework Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGNPC Huasheng and the Company
entered into the financial services (CGNPC Huasheng)
framework agreement (the “Financial Services (CGNPC
Huasheng) Framework Agreement”) in relation to the
deposit and other financial services arrangements in Hong
Kong provided by CGNPC Huasheng to the Group, which was
effective from 12 September 2014 to 29 May 2015, being the
date of the first annual general meeting of the Company after
its listing. The first renewal of the Financial Services (CGNPC
Huasheng) Framework Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the first annual
general meeting of the Company with effect from 30 May 2015
to and including 31 December 2017. The second renewal
of the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework
Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 18 December 2017 with effect from 1 January 2018
to and including 31 December 2020. The third renewal of the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement,
together with certain amendments, were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 December 2020
with effect from 1 January 2021 to and including 31 December
2023.

CGNPC Huasheng is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement and its renewals were disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 19 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”) and the circulars of the Company dated 20
April 2015, 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

BESR

REE2023F12831BIEFER  HET U NFAER
FRADEBBENEAERBOEB 2EERTHRERA
A=l ik

HERERS

REE2023F12A31BILFE  AEBEHERBREA L]
UETRZ -BRAFEREIZNFBENT !

(A)

BrhEZREREBAE (FEE
FEE) (PEEER)

AEFHE RERBIRRMENENTE
BRIFEMEXS

1(a)

T RIARTS (PR RR) lERR 1R

R2014F9812H  EZERF A E
REBRREBOAERRENERRE
HEMemMBRBELH BARQRTTiIE
BARTS (FEZER) EXRWE (TSR
PR (PEZER) EEHBZ) BN
#%2014F 98 12HE2015F5529H
(BPEAAB LHENEERREBEFE K
FHE) - ARBBUREENAAT
EEREBEATHESNET M
RTS (P EZER) ERWE BXRUAH
20155830 EE2017F128
31H (B#FEZAE) - F-XNEBISHRE
(PEZER) EXRBHEE 2017412
B1sHRITHARTIRERRAE £
EARNBBILLERME H2018F1 81
HiEA W EE2020F128318 (81
ZH) B RET TR (PEZE
BR) ERWmEERE TEIBER20204
12823HBTHNARARRFINAE
LTEARABTBIUKRERE B202151
B1EREM EE2023F128318 (£
EZH) -

TEZERS AR ERRKREDEZ
WEEWB AR FIERE EHRIA
TABBIREAL

TRRY (PEZER) ERBEEE
EBiINE—PHEBENRARAHES
2014F9B19HNIBRER (TBRE
B RARATHEEA2015F4820H ~
2017F11830H %2020F 1182501
BRI E -



1(b) Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework

Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGN Finance and the Company
entered into the financial services (CGN Finance) framework
agreement (the “Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement”’, together with the Financial
Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement, the
“Financial Services Framework Agreements”) in relation
to the deposit and other financial services arrangements in
the PRC provided by CGN Finance to the Group, which was
effective from 12 September 2014 to 29 May 2015, being
the date of the first annual general meeting of the Company
after its listing. The first renewal of the Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the first
annual general meeting of the Company with effect from 30
May 2015 to and including 31 December 2017. The second
renewal of the Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework
Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 18 December 2017 with effect from 1 January 2018
to and including 31 December 2020. The third renewal of
the Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework Agreement,
together with certain amendments, were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 December 2020
with effect from 1 January 2021 to and including 31 December
2023.

CGN Finance is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement and its renewals were disclosed in the
Prospectus and the circulars of the Company dated 20 April
2015, 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

General

As the nature of the services to be provided to the Group
under the Financial Services Framework Agreements is
similar, the estimated annual cap for the maximum outstanding
balance of deposits to be placed by the Group with CGNPC
Huasheng and CGN Finance under the Financial Services
Framework Agreements, together with the relevant interest
to be received, for the year ended 31 December 2023 have
been aggregated and amounted to US$680.0 million. The
actual maximum outstanding balance of deposits placed by
the Group with CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance under
the Financial Services Framework Agreements, together with
the relevant interest received for the year ended 31 December
2023 was approximately US$528.0 million.
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Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting and announcement requirements

2(a) Operation and Management Services (CGN

Energy) Framework Agreement

On 20 August 2014, CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(“CGN Energy”) and the Company entered into the operation
and management services (CGN Energy) framework agreement
(the “Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to provide, or procure a subsidiary of the Company
to provide operation and management services to power
projects (whether in operation or under construction) in which
CGN Energy had interest. The initial term of this agreement
was from 1 May 2014 to 31 December 2016. The Company
served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 where
the principal terms (other than renewal of the term) of the
renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement remained the same as the original
Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement’). The Company
further served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with
the terms of the 2016 Renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such
agreement for a term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 where the principal terms (other than renewal
of the term) of the further renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement”’).The Company further served a notice to CGN
Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2019 Renewed
Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The principal
terms (other than renewal of the term and certain amendments)
of the further renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (CGN
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2020 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

On 8 November 2023, the Company further served a notice
to CGN Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2020
Renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for another
three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 with
the same principal terms except for the renewed duration.
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2(b)

CGN Energy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016, 4 December 2019 and
8 November 2023, and the circular of the Company dated 25
November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement

On 15 September 2014, Huamei Holding Company Limited
(“Huamei Holding”) and the Company entered into the
operation and management services (Huamei Holding)
framework agreement (the “Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”,
together with the Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement, the “Operation
and Management Services Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide, or procure
a subsidiary of the Company to provide, operation and
management services to power projects (whether in operation
or under construction) in which a subsidiary of the group of
companies which were transferred to CGN Energy International
as part of the reorganization of the Group as described in the
Prospectus under which Huamei Holding had interest. The
initial term of this agreement was from 15 September 2014 to
31 December 2016. The Company served a notice to Huamei
Holding in accordance with the terms of the Operation and
Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement
to renew such agreement for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019 where the principal terms
(other than renewal of the term) of the renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement remained the same as the original Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”’). The Company
further served a notice to Huamei Holding in accordance with
the terms of the 2016 Renewed Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement to renew
such agreement for a term of one year from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020 where the principal terms (other than
renewal of the term) of the further renewed Operation and
Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement (including
the calculation of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed
Operation and Management Services (Huamei Holding)
Framework Agreement”’). The Company further served a
notice to Huamei Holding in accordance with the terms of the
2019 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for
a term of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023 where the principal terms (other than renewal of the term
and certain amendments) of the further renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement remained the same as the original Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2020 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”).
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2(c)

S

On 8 November 2023, the Company further served a notice
to Huamei Holding in accordance with the terms of the 2020
Renewed Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for
another three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2026 with the same principal terms except for the renewed
duration.

Huamei Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement and its renewals
were disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016, 4 December 2019 and
8 November 2023, and the circular of the Company dated 25
November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Solar
Energy) Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2015, the Company entered into the operation
and management services (solar energy) framework
agreement (the “Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement”’) with CGN Solar
Energy Development Co., Ltd. (“CGN Solar Energy”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide, or
procure a subsidiary of the Company to provide, operation
and management services to power projects (whether in
operation or under construction) in which CGN Solar Energy
had interest. The relevant subsidiaries of the Company would
provide comprehensive operation and management services
according to the requirements of the service recipient, and
may appoint personnel to be responsible for or to be involved
in the operations management, financial management, human
resources management, technical management, information
management, and/or safety management of the relevant
power project or company which held interest in the relevant
power project. The term of this agreement was from 17
June 2015 to 31 December 2017. The Company served a
notice to CGN Solar Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (Solar Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Save
for the renewal of the term of the agreement, the principal
terms of the renewed Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (Solar
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

The Company further served a notice to CGN Solar Energy in
accordance with the terms of the 2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Save for the
renewal of the term of the agreement and certain amendments,
the principal terms of the renewed Operation and Management
Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees). Such renewal of the Operation and
Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020.
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CGN Solar Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2015, and the circulars of the Company dated 30 November
2017 and 25 November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2015, the Company entered into the operation
and management services (wind energy) framework agreement
(the “Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement’, together with the Operation and
Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement,
the “O&M Agreements”) with CGN Wind Energy, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide, or procure
a subsidiary of the Company to provide operation and
management services to power projects (whether in operation
or under construction) in which CGN Wind Energy had
interest. The relevant subsidiaries of the Company would
provide comprehensive operation and management services
according to the requirements of the service recipient, and
may appoint personnel to be responsible for or to be involved
in the operations management, financial management, human
resources management, technical management, information
management, and/or safety management of the relevant
power project or company which held interest in the relevant
power project. The term of this agreement was from 17
June 2015 to 31 December 2017. The Company served a
notice to CGN Wind Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Save
for the renewal of the term of the agreement, the principal
terms of the renewed Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement”). The Company further served a notice to
CGN Wind Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2017
Renewed Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term
of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023.
Save for the renewal of the term of the agreement and certain
amendments, the principal terms of the renewed Operation and
Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and the
2017 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2020 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement”).
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On 8 November 2023, the Company further served a notice to
CGN Wind Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2020
Renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for
another three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2026 with the same principal terms except for the renewed
duration.

CGN Wind Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 17
June 2015 and 8 November 2023, and the circulars of the
Company dated 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

General

As the nature of the services to be provided under the
Operation and Management Services Framework Agreements
and the O&M Agreements is similar, the annual cap for
the management fees payable under the Operation and
Management Services Framework Agreements and the O&M
Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
determined on an aggregate basis and amounted to US$47.0
million. The actual management fees paid under the Operation
and Management Services Framework Agreements and the
O&M Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2023 were
approximately US$27.9 million.

Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreements

On 10 July 2020, CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology Co.,
Limited (“CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology”) and
the Company entered into the maintenance services of wind
farms and photovoltaic power plants framework agreement
(the “2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to engage CGN
(Beijing) New Energy Technology to provide maintenance
services (which may include the provision of information
services, two measures services, overhaul services, repairs,
maintenance and upgrading of facilities and equipment, regular
inspection services, and pre-testing services, installation and
replacement of equipment and spare parts services) to certain
wind farms and photovoltaic power plants of the Group. The
term of this agreement was one year from 10 July 2020 to 9
July 2021, subject to renewal by way of written notice to CGN
(Beijing) New Energy Technology upon its expiry.
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On 29 April 2021, CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology and
the Company further entered into the maintenance services
of wind farms and photovoltaic power plants framework
agreement (the “2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms
and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement”)
to renew the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement for a term of
three years from 10 July 2021 to 9 July 2024.

CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CGN Solar Energy, which is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of CGN, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement
and the 2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 10 July
2020 and 29 April 2021, respectively.

The estimated annual cap for the maximum service fee
payable by the Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy
Technology for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to RMB100.0 million. The actual service fee paid by the
Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology under the
2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants Framework Agreement for the same period was
approximately RMB49.7 million.

Shared Services Agreement

On 30 July 2021, CGN New Energy Investment (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CGN Shenzhen”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy, and
CGN Energy entered into the shared services agreement
(the “Shared Services Agreement”), pursuant to which
CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy and CGN Energy, and
their respective subsidiaries from time to time (collectively,
the “Service Providers”) agreed to provide various types
of shared services, including but not limited to (i) usage of
office and business premises; (ii) human resources support;
(iii) repair and maintenance services; (iv) office and meeting
administrative services; and (v) other operational resources
support, to CGN Shenzhen and its subsidiaries from time to
time (collectively, the “Service Recipients”). The term of the
Shared Services Agreement was from 30 July 2021 to 31
December 2023, subject to renewal by the parties thereto in
writing before the expiry of its term.

On 8 November 2023, CGN Shenzhen served a notice to each
of CGN Wind Energy and CGN Energy to renew the term of
the Shared Services Agreement for another three years from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026 with the same principal
terms except for the renewed duration and the removal of CGN
Solar Energy as a party due to the fact that CGN Solar Energy
had become a wholly owned subsidiary of CGN Wind Energy.
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Each of CGN Wind Energy and CGN Energy is a subsidiary
of CGN, and is therefore a connected person of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Shared Services Agreement and its
renewal were disclosed in the announcements of the Company

dated 30 July 2021 and 8 November 2023.

The estimated annual cap for the service fee payable by the
Service Recipients to the Service Providers for the year ended
31 December 2023 was RMB180.4 million. The actual service
fee paid by the Service Recipients to the Service Providers
under the Shared Services Agreement for the same period was

approximately RMB114.8 million.

5. Power Agency Service Framework Agreement

On 29 August 2023, CGN Shenzhen and CGN Wind
Energy entered into a new energy station power agency
service framework agreement (the “Power Agency Service
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which CGN Shenzhen
agreed to provide the services to CGN Wind Energy of acting
as an agent for and on behalf of CGN Wind Energy (or its
subsidiaries) to procure the sale of electricity generated by
CGN Wind Energy (or its subsidiaries) to downstream users for
the period from 1 September 2023 to 31 December 2023 and

the two years ending 31 December 2025.

CGN Wind Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN
and therefore a connected person of the Company under the

Listing Rules.

Further details of the Power Agency Service Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the

Company dated 29 August 2023.

The estimated annual cap in respect of the Power Agency
Service Framework Agreement for the period from
September 2023 to 31 December 2023 was RMB11.4
million. The actual service fees received for such period were

approximately RMB6.8 million.

6. Energy Storage Services Agreement

On 22 August 2023, the following wholly owned subsidiaries
as clients on the one part: (i) CGN Yiyang New Energy Co.,
Ltd.; (ii) Lengshuijiang CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.; (iii) Zixing
CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.; and (iv) Xiangxiang CGN New
Energy Co., Ltd., and CGN (Hunan) New Energy Development
Co., Ltd., Xintian Branch (“CGN Hunan Xintian”) on the
other part, entered into a new energy supporting energy
storage services agreement (the “Energy Storage Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which CGN Hunan Xintian agreed
to provide energy storage facilities and related services to
the clients above for the period from 22 August 2023 to 31
December 2023 and the two years ending 31

2025.
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CGN Hunan Xintian is a branch of CGN (Hunan) New
Energy Development Co., Ltd. which is in turn a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of CGN. CGN Hunan Xintian is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Energy Storage Services Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22
August 2023.

The estimated annual cap in respect of the Energy Storage
Services Agreement for the period from 22 August 2023 to 31
December 2023 was RMB8.9 million. The actual service fees
paid for such period were approximately RMB5.2 million.

Maintenance Services Framework Agreement

On 12 May 2023, Yunnan CGN Energy Services Co., Ltd
(“CGN Yunnan”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and CGN Wind Energy entered into a wind farms and
photovoltaic power stations maintenance services framework
agreement (the “Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which CGN Yunnan agreed to
provide repair, maintenance, testing and cleaning services for
facilities and equipment in the wind and photovoltaic power
plants to CGN Wind Energy (or its subsidiaries) for the period
from 12 May 2023 to 31 December 2023 and the two years
ending 31 December 2025.

CGN Wind Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN
and therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 12 May 2023.

The estimated annual cap in respect of the Maintenance
Services Framework Agreement for the period from 12 May
2023 to 31 December 2023 was RMB24.0 million. The actual
service fees received for such period were nil.
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(B)

General

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group as mentioned above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 and have confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better (as defined in the Listing
Rules); and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;
2. were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of

goods or services by the Group;

3. were entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the cap.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed above, none
of these related party transactions constitutes discloseable connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In relation to
those related party transactions that also constitute connected transactions as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, they have complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Non-Competition
Deed”) with CGN on 15 September 2014 under which CGN agreed not to,
and agreed to procure its subsidiaries (other than the Group) not to, compete
with the Group in its non-nuclear power business (save for the retention of the
existing Retained Business (as defined in the Prospectus) of the CGN Group
or any future business which the CGN Group has carried on pursuant to the
terms of the Non-Competition Deed) and granted the Company with a right to
acquire the Retained Business of the CGN Group and a right to acquire any
new business or equity investment opportunity directed to the Group according
to the terms of the Non-Competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from CGN confirming to the
Company on its compliance with the relevant non-competing procedures set
out in the Non-Competition Deed and having protected the right granted to the
Company under the Non-Competition Deed to invest in or acquire the relevant
projects during the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the independent non-executive
Directors (the “Disinterested Directors”), being the Directors other than
those who are also directors and senior management personnel of the CGN
Group, had reviewed several business or investment opportunities offered by
or referred to by the CGN Group pursuant to the Non-Competition Deed. The
Disinterested Directors considered the opportunities taking into account, inter
alia, the following:

(a) whether such business or investment opportunities would create or
would likely create competition with the principal business of the
Group;

(b) the business and financial performance and potential of the subject

business or investment opportunities;

(c) the feasibility and viability for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities (in terms of the
availability of management, financial and business resources and
expertise);

(d) the terms and conditions of the acquisition of or taking on the subject
business or investment opportunities;

(e) the financial budget and business plan of the Group for undertaking
the subject business or investment opportunities in the relevant year;

(f) result of a cost-benefit analysis for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities, and whether such
subject opportunities are consistent with the business development
strategy of the Group, and whether it is likely to create any strategic or
synergy value to the Group’s existing business;
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(9) the likely risks associated with the subject business or investment
opportunities should the Group acquire, take on, operate or participate
in such subject opportunities; and

(h) the equity internal rate of return and/or the expected internal rate of
return of the subject business or investment opportunities.

As a result, we had not exercised any right to acquire or invest in those
business or investment opportunities.

The Disinterested Directors have reviewed compliance by CGN’s compliance
with the Non-Competition Deed and confirmed that based on the confirmations
and information provided by CGN, CGN was in compliance with the Non-
Competition Deed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As of the date of this report, so far as the Directors were aware, none of the
Directors, and their respective close associates had interest in any business
apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

We determined the emoluments of our Directors and employees based on their
respective performance, working experience, roles and responsibilities as well
as market factors. We offer our executive Directors and senior management
members, who are also employees of our Company, various compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension scheme, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other benefits in kind. We provide our employees with
salaries and discretionary bonuses, as well as employee benefits, including
retirement schemes, medical and life insurance schemes, housing and other
benefits in kind. None of our Directors has waived or agreed to waive his
Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2023.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” SUMMARY

This section is a summary of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” (the “ESG Report”) of the Company. It outlines the Company’s key
strategies and achievements in sustainable development in 2023. In 2023, the
Company actively fulfilled its social responsibility and closely cooperated with
stakeholders to achieve the mission of sustainable development.

The year 2023 was a crucial year for the “14th Five-Year Plan”. China
introduced a series of policies guiding the direction of the new energy industry.
As an electricity generation company, the Company actively responds to the
national goals of “dual-carbon”, fully cooperates with the development of
national policies, focuses on the development of core businesses, and actively
expands market presence to accelerate the establishment of a top new energy
enterprise.
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GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to establishing an efficient, orderly, transparent, and
stable corporate governance mechanism to achieve corporate high-quality and
sustainable development. During the reporting period, the Company continued
to enhance ESG governance by conducting ESG risk assessment and analysis,
reviewing the progress of existing environmental targets, and reviewing the
status of climate risk management. During the reporting period, the Company
received a series of sustainability awards. The Company will continue
to improve and optimize the management and disclosure of sustainable
development work to achieve our business strategies and goals steadily.

ENVIRONMENT

With the mission of “Developing Clean Energy, Building a Beautiful China”,
the Company provides a continuous impetus for the development of clean
energy in fields such as wind, solar, hydro, gas-fired, fuel cells, and biomass.
The Company sets up the total installed capacity target annually, which drives
corporate improvement and self-breakthroughs. During the reporting period,
the Company’s safety, quality, and environmental protection department
continued to review and improve the environmental safety management
work regularly, organize and implement the annual safety, quality, and
environmental performance assessment and evaluation for each business
department, functional department, and branch company. The Company strictly
regulated emission standards of air pollution, wastewater, and waste for each
project, to ensure that the Company’s projects complied with the relevant
national environmental safety regulations and laws. The Company will seize
opportunities in national clean energy development and consolidate in the
clean energy market to provide safe, environmentally friendly, and economical
clean energy to society. New energy is the way forward, the Company will
continue to uphold its mission of generating high-quality clean energy for
society and contribute to the national “dual-carbon” goals.

SOCIAL

The Company takes “Safety First, Quality Foremost, and Pursuing Excellence”
as the basic principle of corporate operation and development. The
Company always adheres to safety first and prioritizes employee safety.
The Company ensures production safety by establishing a sound safety,
quality, and environmental management system, conducting regular safety
training and monitoring, and distributing personal protective equipment to
employees. The Company also values talent cultivation, provides employees
with diversified vocational skills training, and establishes a clear career
development path according to the skills needed for different project
positions. This enables employees to obtain opportunities to improve their
professional competitiveness while creating value for the Company. Adhering
to the “Innovation-driven” development strategy, the Company continues to
enhance its technological innovation capability and operational efficiency,
which empowers corporate high-quality development. In addition, the Company
actively undertakes corporate social responsibility and makes contributions
in areas such as rural revitalization, education assistance, and charitable
activities.

For the full version of the ESG Report, please refer to the “Environmental,
Social, and Governance Report of CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 2023”
published on HKEX news website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (www.cgnne.com) by the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available information and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has sufficient public float
as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to approximately HK$13,678,000 (2022:
HK$3,176,000).

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
KPMG as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Guangming
President and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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The Board considers effective corporate governance is a key component in
the sustained development of the Group and believes that good corporate
governance practices are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting
shareholder value and investor confidence. The Board sets appropriate policies
and implements corporate governance practices to the conduct and growth of
the Group’s business.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. The Board considers that the Company was in compliance with all
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2023, except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code during the period from 1 January 2023 to 4 September 2023, which
states that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the period from 8
April 2022 to 4 September 2023, Mr. Zhang Zhiwu concurrently acted as the
Chairman and the President of the Company. Taking into account the fact that
Mr. Zhang had demonstrated suitable leadership and management capabilities
and developed a thorough understanding of the Group’s business and strategy
since his appointment as an executive Director in 2020, the Board believed
that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the President in Mr. Zhang could
facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies and enable more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Therefore, the
Board considered that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
was not inappropriate in such circumstances.

Since 4 September 2023, Mr. Zhang Zhiwu has ceased to serve concurrently
as the President due to job arrangement. On the same day, Mr. Li Guangming
was appointed as the President and executive Director. Since then, the
Company complied with all provisions of the CG Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall strategies,
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring of the
performance of the senior management. The Directors make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company. As at the date of this report, the
Board comprises seven Directors, including two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Members of
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman and Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (former President)
(resigned as President on 4 September 2023)

President and Executive Director:

Mr. Li Guangming
(appointed on 4 September 2023)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Qingming (appointed on 29 December 2023)
Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on 7 February 2024)
Mr. Wang Hongxin (resigned on 29 December 2023)
Mr. Bian Shuming (resigned on 4 September 2023)
Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on 7 February 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Biographical details and relationships among members of the Board as at the
date of this report are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing day-
to-day operations, business strategies and management of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Director, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

During the year, the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) provided the Company with a diverse range of expertise
and a balance of skills, and brought independent judgments in issues pertinent
to strategic direction, development, performance and risk management through
their contribution at the Board meetings and committee meetings.
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Chairman and President

As at the date of this report, Mr. Zhang Zhiwu is the Chairman of the Board
and Mr. Li Guangming has been appointed as the President of the Company
since 4 September 2023. The roles of the chairman and chief executive are
served by different individuals to achieve a balance of authority and power,
which is in compliance with code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. Mr. Zhang
Zhiwu is principally responsible for overall corporate strategies planning and
business development of the Group, while Mr. Li Guangming is principally
responsible for leading and managing all the activities of the Group to achieve
the goals and objectives set by the Board, identifying and recommending the
short, medium and long-term business strategies, directing and executing the
Group’s plans and budgets, directing and organizing the Group’s material,
human and economic resources to deliver the corporate results, identifying
and developing business opportunities for the growth of the Group.

Appointments, re-election and removal of
Directors

Each Director has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws. In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr.
Li Guangming, Mr. Liu Qingming and Mr. Zhao Xianwen will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Mr. Zhang Zhiwu and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election, in accordance with bye-
law 84 of the Bye-laws.

Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals
with active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication.

Board meetings in each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of Directors.

Our Corporate Culture

The Company is always committed to maintaining a corporate culture that
is consistent with its Mission, Vision, Basic Principles, Values, Idea of
Management and Code of Conduct. Our Mission, Vision, Basic Principles,
Values, Idea of Management and Code of Conduct, the details of which are
available on the Company’s website (http://www.cgnne.com), are the driving
force and guiding principle for the Group’s daily operation and sustained
growth. In 20283, efforts to continuously strengthen our corporate culture have
been taken as set out in the ESG Report. The Board acts with integrity, leads
by example, and promotes the Company’s culture.
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The calendar of regular Board meetings, Board Committees (as defined below)
meetings and general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
shown below:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May
18 28 38 45 58

ﬁizozsimﬁ BIHEFENEZEERER EF
BZEE (BEEUD) EFURKBRFAGEERNT ©

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
68 7H 8H 9A8 108 118 128

Board BExg v v
Nomination Committee RHEER 4
Remuneration Committee ¥ MZEES 4 4
Audit Committee BREER 4
Investment and Risk RERRRERE

Management Committee ~ ZEE 4 4
General Meeting REAE 4

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has held four regular
Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has held an annual
general meeting (the “2023 AGM”) and a special general meeting.

The table below sets forth the number of such meetings of the Board and
Board Committees and general meetings attended by each Director who held
office during the year ended 31 December 2023:

Note 1: The Board has held two Investment and Risk Management Committee
meetings in November 2023.

Nomination
Board Committee
Name of Director EElS 59 R&ZE

v/ v/

v/ v/ /!
v/

REE2023F 12831 HIEFE EXZGERTHAE
HEEggH-

REE2023F12831HIEFE ARBEERT XK
HEBEFRG (T2023FERRBEAE ) R—RKREHFF]
KEgo

TRV EE2023F 12831 LEEREFEEE
RZEEEE A NEE TR EE SR UNRELARR
ZRE

MiEE1: 1R2023F 1A EFERT TMRAKELAR
BIELZEggH-

Attendanc*e/Number of meetings

BRHEE/RY
Investment
and Risk
Remuneration Audit Management General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BRELERE

g  HMESE BREEE  EEZSY BREAE

Secretary of the Communist Party BRED IRERGTES:
Committee, Chairman and
Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (former President) THEE FiER) 4/4
(resigned as President on 5\202859 A48
4 September 2023) BT

President and Executive Director: BERNTES .

Mr. Li Guangming SHELE 11
(appointed as President and Director (E{‘202SE‘9H4EI§§§E
on 4 September 2023) (Note i) ARRRES) W)

Non-executive Directors: FRTES:

Mr. Wang Hongxin IRMEE 4/4
(resigned on 29 December 2023) (Efzozsimﬁ 298 EHE)
(Note ii) g

Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on R B ﬁi (FR20248 4/4
7 February 2024) (Note iii) 2ATREHE) (Hatii)

Mr. Bian Shuming (resigned on TERLE 3/3
4 September 2023) (Note iv) (EAQ‘Q23¢9H4B BT

(Witiv

Mr. Liu Qingming (appointed on 2B A (R2023%F N/A

29 September 2023) (Note v) 12H29HE ) TBA
(Hiztv)

Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on B (220244 N/A
7 February 2024) 2ATHEZA) B

Independent Non-executive Directors: B FHITES !

Mr. Wang Minhao IRELE 4/4

Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRERE 4/4

Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick AFERE 4/4
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Note i: Mr. Li Guangming was appointed as President and an executive Director on 4

September 2023. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4
September 2023.

Note ii:  Mr. Wang Hongxin resigned as a non-executive Director, the chairman of the Investment

and Risk Management Committee and the member of the Audit Committee, and the
Remuneration Committee on 29 December 2023. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2023. During the year ended 31
December 2023, two general meetings were held before his resignation took effect.

Note iii:  Mr. Chen Xinguo resigned as a non-executive Director and the chairman of the

Investment and Risk Management Committee on 7 February 2024. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 February 2024.

Note iv:  Mr. Bian Shuming resigned as a non-executive Director on 4 September 2023. For

details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 September 2023.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, one general meeting was held before his
resignation took place.

Note v:  Mr. Liu Qingming was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of the

Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 29 December 2023. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2023. Mr. Liu
was appointed as the chairman of the Investment and Risk Management Committee on
7 February 2024. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
7 February 2024. During the year ended 31 December 2023, no general meeting was
held after his appointment took effect.

Corporate Governance

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code including the development of policies and
practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct applicable to the employees
of the Company and the Directors, the compliance with the CG Code of the
Company and the disclosure in this report.

Training and support for Directors

In accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code with regards
to continuous professional development, all Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Upon appointment to the Board, all newly appointed Directors have been
provided with necessary induction training and materials to ensure that they
have proper understanding of the operation and business of the Company and
their responsibilities under the relevant laws, regulations and rules.

To further ensure that all Directors are adequately informed about the
Company’s business and operations as well as their responsibilities under
relevant laws, rules and regulations, the Company Secretary regularly
provides all Directors with information regarding the Company’s most recent
performance as well as updates on latest amendments and developments to
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from
time to time. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
organised training in respect of the latest updates with the Listing Rules.
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The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2023 MREEZEEFRMEWLE  NEE2023F12831HIEEFE
received the following training during the same period according to the records EEEEZEREHEZNFINWT :
provided by the Directors:

TYPES OF TRAINING:
I

Reading of materials
in respect of updates

Attendance for on the Company’s Visit to power

trainings/seminars/ business, duties plants and

meetings in respect and responsibilities facilities and

of the Company’s of Directors their respective

business or duties and regulatory management

of Directors requirements personnel
REBERAFER

HEAMEARESH EERBERBEUR EFRERK
BEIHEMEN,  EEREHEMAN REUARE BB
g EE B ER EEAES

Secretary of the Communist Party EREN IRAUTES:
Committee, Chairman and
Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu (former President) RERLE FIAER) v v v
(resigned as President on 4 September 2023) (12023598 4HEHTEH)

President and Executive Director: BERRTES
Mr. Li Guangming FHERE v v v
(appointed as President and Director on (20230 B4HEZTABEREDR)
4 September 2023)
Non-executive Directors: FRTES
Mr. Wang Hongxin (resigned on TRHEE (R2023F 128298 5HF) v v v
29 December 2023)
Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on BRETEISAE (R2024E287HEHE) v v
7 February 2024)
Mr. Bian Shuming (resigned on TEBRLE (R2023F9F4HEF) N/A v v
4 September 2023) REB
Mr. Liu Qingming (appointed on ZERRE (R2023512829HEZR D) N/A v N/A
29 December 2023) TER TEHR
Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on BB EE (R2024F2B7THEZT) N/A N/A N/A
7 February 2024) BB RE B RER
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIUFHTES:
Mr. Wang Minhao IRERE v v v
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRERE v v v
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick RYERE v v v
Directors’ insurance EEZFRE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has arranged P& ZE2023F12831HLLEER ARATDELHEE
appropriate liability insurance for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising BEERE > HEEZECSEADEHFMEENS T
out of corporate activities.
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Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
securities transactions

The Company has adopted its own code for securities transactions by
Directors (the “Company Code”), which are on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules, as a code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Company Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), a
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), a Nomination
Committee and an Investment and Risk Management Committee (collectively,
the “Board Committees”). The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), respectively. Members of the Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Board

£58
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Audit Committee BEZZEZEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee was chaired by Mr. Leung Chi
Ching Frederick (independent non-executive Director), and the members are
Mr. Liu Qingming (non-executive Director, appointed on 29 December 2023)
and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive Director). Before 29
December 2023, Mr. Wang Hongxin (former non-executive Director) served as
a member of the Audit Committee.
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The majority of the members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditors

(a)

(b)

(e)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to consider the plan for each year’s audit submitted by the external
auditors and discuss the same at a meeting if necessary;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences; and

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed.

Review of the financial information of the Company

()

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and annual
reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. In reviewing these reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee shall focus particularly
on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(ii) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in

relation to financial reporting.
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(9) in regard to (f) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management and the Audit Committee must meet,
at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors; and

(ii) the Audit Committee shall consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, internal
auditors or external auditors.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control systems

(h) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems ;

(i) to discuss the internal control systems with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

() to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

(k) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

(N to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

(m) to review the external auditor’s management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to management about accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response;

(n) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(o) to review arrangements which employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit Committee
should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-
up action;
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(p) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

(q) to review the continuing connected transactions to ensure compliance
with the terms approved by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”);

(r) to establish whistleblowing policies and systems to allow employees
and others who have dealings with the Company (such as customers
and suppliers) to raise their concerns in secret to the Audit Committee
about any possible improper matters regarding the Company;

(s) to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(1) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the Company are
in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, three Audit Committee meetings
were held, inter alia, to review the 2022 annual results, the 2023 interim
results and the internal control of the Group. The attendance records are
set out under the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report. A recent meeting of the Audit Committee was held
on 15 March 2024 to consider the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023, the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity, the effectiveness of the audit process and the Group’s
internal control system, which covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr.
Wang Minhao (independent non-executive Director), and the members are
Mr. Liu Qingming (non-executive Director, appointed on 29 December 2023)
and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive Director). Before 29
December 2023, Mr. Wang Hongxin (former non-executive Director) served as
a member of the Remuneration Committee.
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The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(a)

(e)

(M)

0

to assess, review and make recommendations once a year or as and
when required, to the Board in respect of the remuneration packages
and overall benefits for the Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board in relation to all consultancy
agreements and service contracts or any variations, renewals or
modifications thereof, entered into between the Company and the
Directors or any associate company of any of them;

to consider what details of the remuneration/benefits of the Directors
should be reported in the Company’s annual reports and accounts
in addition to those required by law and how those details should be
presented;

to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for remuneration of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments (including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment);

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities as well as employment conditions of other
positions in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Director
and senior management of the Company for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and reasonable and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, and to make disclosure and give
explanation on the appropriateness of such material matters (if any)
being reviewed and/or approved in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held, inter alia, to review the remuneration structure and
packages of the Directors and senior management, and consider the
emoluments of candidates for the Directors. The attendance records are set
out under the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance”
in this report. A recent meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on
15 March 2024 to consider and review, among others, the Group’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, the
current remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr.
Zhang Zhiwu (Secretary of the Communist Party Committee, Chairman and
executive Director) and the members were Mr. Wang Minhao (independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive
Director).

The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company;

(b) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship, including but not limited
to assessing the balance of skills, knowledge and experience as well
as diversification of Board members, and based on the assessment
results, to prepare a description of the roles and capabilities required
for individual appointments;

(c) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(e) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the president of the Company;

(f) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
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(9) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Bye-laws
or imposed by the Listing Rules or applicable law; and

(h) to review the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board’s diversity policy.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the Company
are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will carry out
a selection process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations, and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates for directorship.

The Board has also adopted a Board diversity policy. Below is a summary of
the policy:

“The Board recognizes that board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company and enhances
Board effectiveness and corporate governance. In determining the optimum
composition of the Board, all Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board aims to
maintain a Board which has an appropriate mix of diversity, skills, experience
and expertise, as well as a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) so that
there is also independent element on the Board.”

The Company has an unwavering commitment to talent as a prime resource
for development. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in related business areas.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held, inter alia, to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and to consider, nominate and recommend appointment
and re-appointment of Directors. The attendance records are set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.
A recent meeting of the Nomination Committee was held on 15 March 2024 to
consider and review, among others, the composition of the Board, succession
planning for the Directors and the Board’s diversity policy.
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The Company is conscious of maintaining a Board made up with an
appropriate level of female members. Although the Board is currently of all
male members, the Company will endeavor to achieve gender diversity by
appointing at least one female Board member by no later than 31 December
2024. While conscious efforts are being taken by the Company to fulfil its
pledges, all appointments are ultimately made on a merit basis taking into
account available and suitable candidates.

The Board will use its best endeavors to appoint female Directors to the Board
(taking into consideration the management continuity and the timeline for
retirement and re-election of Directors under the Bye-laws) and the Nomination
Committee will seek to identify and recommend suitable female candidates to
the Board for its consideration on nomination of a Director, based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, industry experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service in related business areas. The Company will
also continue to ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff
at mid to senior level so that the Company will have a pipeline of female
management and potential successors to the Board in due time to ensure
gender diversity of the Board. The Group will continue to emphasize training of
female talent and provide long-term development opportunities for female staff.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had about 2,056 full-time employees,
comprising of approximately 1,798 males and 258 females (that is, a male-
to-female ratio of approximately 7:1). The Group will continue to strive for
gender diversity and increase the female-to-male ratio in the whole workforce
in order to reflect the gender equality principle generally adhered by the
Group. The Board is mindful of the objectives for the factors as set out above
for assessing the candidacy of the Board members, and will ensure that
any successors to the Board shall follow the gender diversity policy. Similar
considerations shall also be in place to assess the candidacy of the senior
management team from time to time. The Group is determined to maintain
gender diversity and equality in terms of the whole workforce, and to procure
the senior management team to achieve gender equality in terms of the gender
ratio within an approximately one-year timeframe. The Company expects the
above is achievable with suitable effort in promoting the gender diversity
culture.

The Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism (the “Mechanism”) is
designed to ensure a strong independent element on the Board for ensuring
independent views and input are available to the Board which allows the Board
to exercise independent judgment effectively and enhances the accountability
and transparency of the Board, so as to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests. An annual review on Board independence has been conducted
to assess the Directors’ contribution to the Board (including the viewpoints,
perspectives, skills and experience they bring to the Board), aims to ensure
that it remains independent in judgement, and to continue to present an
objective and constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints
presented by the management. The Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Mechanism and makes changes as necessary.
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The major contents of the Mechanism are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(e)

(h)

Nomination Committee is established and maintained with clear terms
of reference to identify suitable candidates, including independent non-
executive Directors, for appointment as Directors;

“Procedures for Nomination of Directors and its Processes and
Criteria” is in place with details of the process and criteria of
identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and integrating new
Directors;

Every independent non-executive Director is required to confirm
in writing to the Company his/her independence upon his/
her appointment as Director in accordance with the Company’s
“Procedures for Nomination of Directors and its Processes and
Criteria” and the Listing Rules as well as other regulatory requirements
(including but not limited to the requirements on independence,
qualifications, number of Directors and Board diversity);

Each independent non-executive Director has to declare his/her past or
present financial or other interests in the business of the Company and
its subsidiaries as soon as practicable, or his/her connection with any
of the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules),
if any;

Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in his/her own
personal particulars that may affect his/her independence;

Each independent non-executive Director is required to devote
sufficient time to the discharge of his duties as a Director and actively
participate in the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees;

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence of
all independent non-executive Directors and confirm if each of them
still satisfies the criteria of independence as set out in the Listing Rules
and is free from any relationships and circumstances which are likely
to affect, or could appear to affect, their own independent judgement.
Every Nomination Committee member is required to abstain from
assessing his/her own independence;

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it will
set out in the circular to Shareholders the reasons it believes he/
she should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to be
independent. The relevant independent non-executive Director is
required to abstain from assessing his/her own independence; and

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the Company’s
senior management independently, if necessary.
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As at the date of this report, the following table and paragraph illustrates
the composition and diversity of the Board in terms of four objective criteria,
namely (i) age group, (ii) cultural and educational background, (iii) professional
experience and (iv) industry experience, skills and knowledge.

RARE B UTFREREERBAR 5 0 EFEE
EMSEESNBREME L b BI)EBAR - (i)
XIERBEB S (INVSELRR(IVITELR A
F5H o

Age group Cultural and educational background Professional experience
FHAER XIEREERR EE 4

Accounting,
Bachelor’s Master’s Doctoral Economics
degree degree degree and
40 to 49 50 to 59 60 to 69 70to 79 holder holder holder Engineering Finance
LN o
40E495% 50505 60E695% T0ET95 2t Bt @t I R
14% 43% 29% 14% 57% 29% 14% 57% 43%

In addition to the above table, each of the Directors has at least one of the
following industry experience, skills or knowledge:

(a) Experience of electric power or energy-related industries;
(b) Engineering and Mechanic;

(c) Strategic planning;

(d) Investment and risk management;

(e) Corporate management (including internal control, operations, assets
and other aspects);

(f) Project managment;

(9) Financial (including accounting, finance, corporate finance, tax, etc.);
(h) Negotiation and execution of commercial contracts;

(i) Public management and venture management;

(J) Environmental protection;

(k) Experience in management of listed companies;

Q)] Familiarity with the business environment of China; and

(m) Familiarity with the business environment of Hong Kong and the

international business environment.

The Nomination Committee considers that the existing composition of the
Board is diversified, taking into account the nature and scope of the Group’s
operations, specific needs as well as the different background of our Directors.
Furthermore, the Nomination Committee recommends that the diversity of the
Board in terms of (i) cultural and educational background, (ii) professional
experience, and (iii) industry experience, skills and knowledge should be
maintained, and that the Board should adopt these criteria as the basis for
the selection and assessment of candidates for Directors by the Nomination
Committee in the future.
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Investment and Risk Management Committee

As of 31 December 2023, the Investment and Risk Management Committee
was chaired by Mr. Chen Xinguo (former non-executive Director, resigned on
7 February 2024), and the members were Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick (independent non-
executive Director).

Mr. Chen Xinguo was appointed on 29 December 2023 as chairman of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee in place of Mr. Wang Hongxin
who resigned on the same day. With effect from 7 February 2024, the
Investment and Risk Management Committee was chaired by Mr. Liu Qingming
(non-executive Director) in place of Mr. Chen Xinguo who resigned on the
same day.

The majority of the members of the Investment and Risk Management
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The major duties of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee are as follows:

(a) to review major investment and strategy and objectives of project
financing of the Company;

(b) to review any major investment, financing proposal and operating
project matters of the Company that are subject to approval by the
Board in accordance with the “Board of Directors Delegation of
Authority Manual”;

(c) to review the development and objectives of the Company’s risk
management system;

(d) to supervise the soundness, reasonableness and implementation
effectiveness of the risk management system, and instruct the
comprehensive risk management of the Company;

(e) to study the risks of significant matters in major investment and
financing activities and operation management of the Company and
make recommendations to the Board;

(f) to study the significant investigation results and feedbacks from the
management concerning the risk management of the Company; and

(9) to handle other matters in relation to investment or risk management
as delegated by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
adopted by the Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a
copy of which was posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, six Investment and Risk
Management Committee meetings were held to review the proposed
investment project of the Group, the related proposals and reports of risk
management. The attendance records are set out under the section headed
“Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report. A recent
meeting of the Investment and Risk Management Committee was held on 15
March 2024 to consider and review, among others, the Comprehensive Risk
Management Report, Comprehensive Risk Management Plan and the Risk
Management Evaluation Report of the Group.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Lee Kin, the company secretary of the Company, is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Lee Kin
was appointed as the Company Secretary on 26 January 2015. Mr. Lee Kin
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during his term of office in the year ended 31 December
2023. The biographical details of Mr. Lee Kin is set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of accounts
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2023, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, amendments to standards and
the related interpretations, made adjustments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
in this report.

External auditor’s remuneration

KPMG has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor since 29 June
2020. The Audit Committee has been notified of the scope, nature and the
service charges of the audit and non-audit services performed by KPMG and
considered that these audit and non-audit services have no adverse effect
on the independence of KPMG. There was no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of KPMG.

The remuneration paid to KPMG in respect of audit and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:
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Amount of fees

Type of services provided by KPMG EEH M ERrIRENREES ERE%E
HK$'000

FET

Audit services EZRFE 5,498
Non-audit services JEEZARTS 1,577
Total st 7,075

The non-audit services provided by KPMG mainly include issuing comfort
letters on sufficiency of working capital of the Company for major transactions
occurred in 2023 and tax advisory services.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

ERBEMNEBMEHNFEFERRFTEIEZEES
2023FRAENTIBRSHALARNDEELETRENE
B R F 5L AR ©



117

Corporate Governance Report

Risk management and internal control

The Board has the responsibility of evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and overseeing
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management should provide a
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems on an ongoing
basis. The Board should ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems has been conducted at
least annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems. The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and the implementation and
continuous review of an internal control manual. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual reviews on the Group’s internal control system
and make recommendations for strengthening such systems. The results of
the review for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board. No material deficiencies have been identified
so far and there were no significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders.

A framework has been established for prudent and effective controls to enable
risks to be identified, evaluated and managed. Procedures have been designed
for the management of financial, strategic and operational risk management
functions. The procedures provide reasonable assurance against material
untrue statement or losses and to monitor the risks existing in the course of
arriving at the Group’s objectives.

The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate.

The Company is aware of its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and
the Inside Information provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and has put in place the proper procedure to ensure that any perceived inside
information would be announced to the investing public on a timely basis.

The Company has an internal audit function.

The Audit Committee, inter alia, reviews the financial controls, risk
management and internal controls systems of the Group and any significant
internal control issues identified by the internal audit department, external
auditors and management. The Audit Committee also considers the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions and internal audit function and their training
programmes and budgets. In addition, the Board has reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s ESG performance and reporting.

The Investment and Risk Management Committee reviews the development
and objective of the risk management system.

FPFEREGHS

B B T e P R B 4

EREgRATAAEEAERERNRBRERFMES
EMHERMEEREE TREAEERIAERSHE
REMNRBEERABEERM UREEEEREY
RBREERANEEZERKHNR BERER MEE
EESENEZERHEAVAKETANMNEI ES
ERERERVEFRI —RAEENABERE RN
EEARERTEN -ZERMOMER B EZERESE
Rz ERMmR WIFSEHERERER BERRER
HIRBAERWBRBEHGEMIFEL RS -

EEEBRAERNASREERERESERAB Z MM
NEEEAMBOIEAEHES SN BEMBEEEE UK
A EEFMNEERGEERN ESgREBERES
EEEBERAEENAPEEZRR LR MAEZRATE
HEZ -#HZE2023F 12831 HEFENBRERER
RPFBEZEEEREFG - ESUBEERITAEAR
B EAAENREEREENEREIET

RMERIBERA WA EERME M Tk
EEAR RMTEAEEMT HRLEERRERE
HERFEF AREFABELREER BRI
BRHAGERSE TEERBRAEHERBEETF
ERI R

BREEEXENRREBER EFEXHEAREERR
BEERABUKRIESD

FABHMEBFER LTRURBERBEROAANEHE
HBXYETZREET LERTaERER  BEKER
ARREERMAERNARHEE -

A E BRI BRI AE ©

BERZEERLMBESN 2 (HTER) SEREAEEN
MHEEZE RREERNEEZERR R EAEESEE
SNEEZEM R EEEMHA N ERNERNBEESE
BZZEETETRAEEET S RV BERBES T
ERRBECZHBESEANER BETEERERESE
o UKRBTIHESNEIREREHRERSS KR
o EXEERNAERERE - HEREARREN
EREMNER BETEERER URBTHRERH
BIREREEBEERESRE

REHEREEZE T ERAREERZANERK
BiRe

2023 EERE @ FEERHERERERAD



118

Corporate Governance Report
EXEEBIoWRS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enable the Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company’s public
relations firm and share registrar, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make any query that
they may have with respect to the Company.

Shareholders or investors can contact the public relations firm of the Company,
Wonderful Sky Financial Group, to make enquiry or to provide suggestions, of
which the contact details are as follows:

Tel: (852) 3977 1881
Fax: (852) 3102 0210
Email: cgnne@wsfg.hk

In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the
Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, if they have any enquiries about their
shares of the Company and dividends.

The members of the Board and the Board Committees and KPMG are
expected to be present to answer the Shareholders’ questions at annual
general meetings of the Company (the “AGM”). Meeting circulars are
distributed to all Shareholders before AGM and special general meetings of
the Company (the “SGM”) in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid
down in the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group maintains
a website where information on the Company’s announcements, financial
information and other information are posted. The Directors have reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the communication policy with
the Shareholders and investors (the “Communication Policy ”). Having
considered the multiple channels of communication in place, the Board is
satisfied that the Communication Policy has been properly implemented for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and is effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a special resolution was passed by
the Shareholders at the AGM held on 23 May 2023 for amending the Bye-laws
in order to (i) conform to the uniform set of 14 core standards for shareholder
protections for issuers regardless of their place of incorporation set out in the
amended Appendix A1 (former Appendix 3) to the Listing Rules which has
come into effect on 1 January 2022; (ii) provide flexibility to the Company
in terms of conducting of general meetings of Shareholders, by allowing the
Company to convene and hold electronic and hybrid general meetings; and
(iii) make other consequential and housekeeping amendments. Details of the
amendments were set out in the circular of the Company dated 20 April 2023
and an up-to-date version of the Bye-laws is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING RRREFKE

The AGM is one of the principal channels of communication with its RBEBFEAGLHEKREEENTIEEE Y — ERE
Shareholders. It provides an opportunity for Shareholders to communicate face @B EMAATIN KBRS EHEE(FEYEER
to face with the Directors about the Company’s performance and operations. 2023FERFEBE NG B N2023FE5H23HEEBEF
The 2023 AGM was held on 23 May 2023 at Boardroom 3-4, Mezzanine Floor, HBEE—HEEBESSAEEHIETEE= WET-
Renaissance Harbour View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong

Kong.

Resolutions passed at the 2023 AGM 22023 F G RBF KRG LiBBAIR
=
A=

Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2023 AGM on each substantve SEEZEBEHYR2023ERETREART LU RE
issue and the percentage of votes cast in favour of such resolutions is set out ZEZ > MIBEBRZEREBEZNEOLEEINT :
below:

Percentage of

Resolutions proposed at the 2023 AGM Votes in Favour
(22023 RRBERE LIRENRE BREHRB DL
1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company, the Report 99.87%

of the Directors and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2022
EMREBERRBEHE2022F 1283 1 HIEFENRBZAGVERR - ESFHRER
B ZEENR S

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 99.93%
EMIKEHE2022F 12831 BIEFENRBARE

3.(a) To re-elect Mr. Bian Shuming as a non-executive director of the Company 99.92%

BEETEREERTABIFNITES

3.(b) To re-elect Mr. Wang Minhao as an independent non-executive director of the Company 99.75%

BEEIRERERTADBIUIFNITES

3.(c) To re-elect Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick as an independent non-executive director of the 99.93%
Company

BERFERERFTADBIUIFNITES

3.(d) To authorize the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration 99.92%
EREEgETESN:
4, To re-appoint KPMG as auditor of the Company and authorize the Board to fix its remuneration 99.93%

EMERERH B MNEFIATABRBEMARREESTTECHIS

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase Shares 99.93%

BRYEFELRIRMHN—RERE

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue Shares 98.02%

BRYEFETROHN—RER

7. To approve the Proposed Amendments in the manner as set out in the notice of the Annual General 99.77%
Meeting of the Company dated 20 April 2023 and the Company’s adoption of the New Bye-laws in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the Existing Bye-laws in their entirety
BARRB HEA#2023F4520B R ERBF RGBS ME A UHERRE]  RAR SR
Al e A ERIR A AR

Accordingly, all resolutions put to the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM were  #EIb > R2023FERRBFEAREG LORFIZEZHFRE RS

passed. The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the ZEHBEEREB  BELERE DB TIH N AA 5 K3 Fr
Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively. Bk o

2023 EERE @ FEERHERERERAD
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Dividend Policy” in the Report of the Directors in this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of SGM and requisition by the
Shareholders

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy on
Shareholders’ rights.

One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition in
aggregate shares that represent not less than one-tenth of the voting rights
at general meeting of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, in the
share capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to
the Company’s registered office at Victoria Place, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require a SGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business or resolution specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must state the purposes of
the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those
shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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Procedures for making proposals by the
Shareholders other than a proposal of a person
for election as director

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy on
Shareholders’ rights.

The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general meeting
known as a special general meeting whenever necessary. Shareholder(s)
holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less
than 100 Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at
the Company’s registered office at Victoria Place, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks before the
AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than one week before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.
If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
(i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/
or circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM; or the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy
on the procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director.

1. If a Shareholder who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder himself/
herself) for election as a Director (the “Candidate”) at that meeting,
he/she can deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

FPFEREGHS
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FPFRELCHS

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a Director, his/her biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the
Shareholder(s) for such proposal can be found from the website of the
Company.

A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the
Candidate can also be found from the website of the Company setting
out, amongst other things, his/her willingness to be elected together
with the information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules as follows:

(i) full name and age;

(ii) positions held with the Company and/or other members of the
Company (if any);

(iii) experience including (i) other directorships held in the past
three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, and
(ii) other major appointments and professional qualifications;

(iv) length or proposed length of service with the Company;

(v) relationships with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, or an
appropriate negative statement;

(vi) interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, or an appropriate negative
statement; and

(vii) a declaration made by the Candidate in respect of the
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)
(h) to (w) of the Listing Rules, or an appropriate negative
statement to that effect where there is no information to be
disclosed pursuant to any of such requirements nor there are
any other matters relating to that Candidate’s standing for
election as a Director that should be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders.

The period for lodgement of the written notice will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and end no later than seven (7) clear days prior to the date
of such general meeting. If the notice is received less than fifteen
(15) business days prior to that general meeting, the Company will
need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in order to (i)
assess the suitability of the proposed Candidate; and (ii) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the
proposal to the Shareholders at least fourteen (14) clear days and not
less than ten (10) business days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the Company Secretary at
15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN New Energy
Holdings Co., Ltd.(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 129 to 258, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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18 X % 60 ¥y 5

KEY AUDIT MATTER

FREELSEE

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of RAEEZEEIZREASHAANBENE  HEHES
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the BIFHBBRERNBEZEAEENEIE - ZFEINAERA
current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the BRZLAAUBRERZBERHEE BEEERE AEH
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion FIAEHZEEIRMHEBNER-

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

&R E T E

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting 75 245 1 FE iR Z M2 16 LU K & 51 R M1 32(1)

policies on note 2(f).

The Key Audit Matter
FEEZER

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2023, the Group has goodwill of
approximately US$143,352,000 relating to groups of cash
generating units (“CGUs”) comprising subsidiaries engaged in
generating and supplying electricity through solar energy and
wind energy in the Peoples’ Republic of China (the “PRC”),
which are tested for impairment annually.

MUNAR B M IR ST 16FTHM > 1220235128310 &E&EE
BEH#143,352,000E Tt EE  ZEMmBHNPREARKEME
(THE) REEBRIGERRIEE R BRI E QS ARMR
NIREELBEAN (BREES B ) BRI AR UEFETRE
A o

In performing impairment assessments, management engaged
an external valuer to assess the recoverable amounts of
the relevant CGUs using value in use method by preparing
discounted cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial forecast approved by the management. Management
compared carrying value of each of the separately identifiable
CGUs with their respective recoverable amounts to determine if
any impairment loss should be recognized.

EETHETGHR  SEEZEIIBEEMRIESIEREHE
NEMMBRAGRITRRESREEA UERBBEETME
RIS EE BAR A IKE & XE - BIEE & 5@ 5 0T #5317
SELEMNEDEAES BN KD EEEEL LR DUR
2D R RBEEE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFANEZNAEEMEEREER

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of goodwill included
the following:

BRI EEERENEZEFEENATASR :

. assessing the management’s identification of CGUs, the
allocation of assets to each CGU and the methodology
adopted by management in its impairment assessments
with reference to the requirements of prevailing accounting
standards;

. 2ERTEAEANER THEEEBHREELBUMNR
E - REEETRSELSBUZENDREUREEEBRET
BEF GBS E

. evaluating the competence, experience, capability and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by management to
perform the valuation of the relevant CGUs;

. TEEEEMEZEEAHERARESEEBETHENINRG
BN ERE &8 SENMEEIE ;

. evaluating the assumptions adopted in the preparation
of discounted cash flow forecasts for the purpose of the
impairment assessment of goodwill, including projected future
growth rates for income and expenses, with reference to our
understanding of the business, historical trends and available
industry information and available market data;

. SERMBEBNIER FELBBNRATEERNKIREET
SE IR ST A EmERETEMANITRRES RETERFTE
AR BIERARBEZNESTREIERE ;



The Key Audit Matter
AR EIXEIE

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized impairment losses on
goodwill of US$8,681,000 during the year ended 31 December
2023.

AR ST IRRMIF16PTIREE > BEBEREE20235F12
B318 I FE RS R Bk 158,681,000% 7T ©

The recoverable amounts are based on value in use
calculations using discounted cash flow model, which require
significant assumptions and estimates with respect to the
discount rates and the forecasted cash flows, in particular
the budgeted sales, taking into account the management
expectations for the power industry.
AlElEEAFERAEEEAER KARESREBNRER
FECEPRERTBEEABEIReRE CESHEEHER)
EHBRBR M st R EEEHREHITENTER-

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments performed by management involve certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made which are
inherently uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
KB EEENEERENAMBEZSE AAEEE
ETHRENGE I RAAEENBRRIELHETEZHE M
ZEBRABAFIREN TR EREBNRE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

TEFRHNEZNAEEMEEZER

o involving our internal valuation specialists to evaluate
management’s valuation methodology adopted in the
impairment assessment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards; and assess whether the
discount rates applied in the cash flow forecasts prepared
for the purpose of assessing the impairment of goodwill were
within the range adopted by other companies operating in the
same industry;

. HARGHEER—E2RBITEFEINER HEEE
BAEST PR AN G ES A ETTME &#%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
EMAMNRERERAMRANTREEZESERITERM
REIFTRANSER ;

. comparing the significant assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow forecasts and actual results for the current year
with management’s forecast in the previous year in order to
assess the reliability of historical accuracy of management’s
forecasting process and whether there is any indication of
management bias;

. RAFERERENBEBAMAZEERZAERERN
BEEF—FENBEAETLEE UAEEEBREIBEN
EEEREREAEURREEEAANREBREEEFER
=

o evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by management
for each of the key assumptions adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecast and considering the possibility of error or
management bias; and

. FHEEEMTRREESRAERAAMRANSEEERZME
HHNHKED ﬁ’ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ#MT*H,
4

. assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of impairment testing of goodwill with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. %%fﬁﬁquE@‘JE’J%E/E’uJFTE%%éE?ﬁ%%E%EPE%ﬁFEﬁ%‘H
BRI RIRE
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

3 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 X7 1% BY 6P ¥R &

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Maggie L.T. Lee.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue

Operating expenses:
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Repair and maintenance
Staff costs
Recognition of loss allowance of
trade and other receivables and contract
assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
retirement scheme assets
ltems that are/may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising on translation of
foreign operations
Effective portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognized
during the year
Deferred tax credited arising from
fair value change in hedging instruments

Reclassification adjustments for amounts

transferred to profit or loss

- release of hedging reserve

— deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve

- release of cumulative gain of translation
reserve included in profit or loss upon
deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

moiBEmNHE

L fth &£ [ N &

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L EE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes US$’000 US$°000
oz FET FE7T
(Restated)
€<= 7))
(Note)
(K1 3E)
WA 4 2,192,977 2,430,056
JE IR N EE RRRK
ANE L 983,336 1,247,302
ME- -BEKRREITE 343,740 335,969
HEERRE 31,358 29,971
=R N 120,313 109,395
TSR B 5 s H A FEUR
MEREREERE
BE 36(a) 8,593 2,791
HM& S 5 153,144 114,976
KSR 4B %R 1,640,484 1,840,404
=Pl 552,493 589,652
EH A A 6 19,774 42,699
Hitt = K E518 7 (9,996) (69,000)
&R 8 (212,765) (227,105)
BB E AR EE 3,022 (63,252)
R0 Bl i A 352,528 272,994
FTigiR 9 (72,895) (58,571)
FREF 10 279,633 214,423
FREMEE R E
2 ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ;ﬁ‘ﬁf 78 78 19
&E%Eﬁz&ﬁ:cﬁr ]
BEEFEEMTE 13 (654) 980
E - HBEJEHSEE
EBm B
BhEBINEBREEN
MR = ZE (41,414) (182,042)
FRBRRZEHHPITE
NABEZ
FREHED (8,436) (8,793)
HHTERARBEEED
EENIRERIE
i) 1,949 2,222
HE A BRI
ETENDLERE
— RO A (109) (110)
— O REEESE
BYAEIEAR TR & 26 25
- B RBIBUE & H M &
NE)BFTAER
HERFEER
W 37 (2,485) =
FREMEE NG (51,123) (187,718)
FREmUEILEE 228,510 26,705
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

FOBRREHMDEKE

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12831 B LEEE

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per Share
- Basic (US cents)

- Diluted (US cents)

Notes

Hat

PR FE R :
ERBERRER
JRERE D

EEFERE R EEE

ARBERRER
JRERE D

FREF 12
- NES)

— 5 (=)

Note: ~ The Group has initially applied the amendments to IAS 12 at 1 January 2023. Under the Htat
amendments, the comparative information is restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 137 to 258 form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the

profit for the year are set out in note 35.

5£350
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2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
(Restated)

€<= 7))

(Note)

(K1 3E)

267,685 195,149
11,948 19,274
279,633 214,423
219,565 18,341
8,945 8,364
228,510 26,705
6.24 4.55
6.24 4.55

AEBBER2023F 1A 1B EXREABE S ENE
1258 2 ST - RBZE BT EBRERBLES 2R

MzE2(c)

F137TE258ENMEEMRZESE
PR (T 75 /2 ) 18 2 AR 3R FE (v ) B9 AR S5 1B BB BR BT

MB®REN—ED

o £F
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Interests in associates

Deferred tax assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Net defined benefit retirement scheme assets

Other non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Tax recoverable

Derivative financial instruments
Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Contract liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
- due within one year
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due within one year
Bank borrowings — due within one year
Lease liabilities — due within one year
Government grants
Tax payable

ERHEE

L IEN =5

FREEE

S

REE QBN ER
IEER IS E
BEAUAABESZER
BH) AH M2 EN G
HEmEE
REZHBAREEE
BB

H RS & E

mENE E

A

H 5 R
GREE

H At FE W IR K TR TR
FE UL B 2 Y B A B AR
Pl [EFR A
TEEMIA
EHIRIRITER
EHRITE ™
RERRTEEY

mEaR

H 5 TR

aREE

HA (IR et B B

FEAT R 3 B /B A B 7R IR

FEAT JEHE AR B SR RIA
—R—FEREH

RERRWERABHNER
—F FRNEH
TEE-RN—FRNEE
E8E-RN—FRIIH

&ﬁﬁ%%

FEJIRIE

Notes

Hat

14
®
16
17
19

18

13
20

21
22
23
24
25
19
26
27
27
27

28
34
29
25

25

30
31
32
33
19

fm O B F5 A iR &R

at 31 December 2023 f22023%F12H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
(Restated)

€<= 7))

(Note)

(K1 3E)

5,883,410 5,812,394
131,916 105,248
143,352 154,596
75,929 74,268
27,004 24,757
3,354 3,411
397 170
316,805 276,177
6,582,167 6,451,021
44,648 66,328
766,028 739,314
368,146 354,219
163,171 111,458
12,562 5,494
19 524

- 8,300
111,735 152,270
14,166 14,359
287,500 440,646
1,767,975 1,892,912
108,671 223,028
3,959 4,569
437,322 483,420
107,045 110,743
3,209 899
817,324 651,952
494,635 957,392
6,209 4,864
191 194
24,061 30,390
2,002,626 2,467,451
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wn O RIS A R &=

at 31 December 2023 f22023512531H

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
- due after one year
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
- due after one year
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due after one year
Bank borrowings - due after one year
Lease liabilities — due after one year
Government grants
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Note:

The Group has initially applied the amendments to IAS 12 at 1 January 2023. Under the

Notes
HiaE
mEAaERE
WEERTEAR
ERENEE
HthENRIBRETE B
—R—F&EH 29
FEAT — & FEFERG AR R =R I8
—R—F&3H 25
KERRZKWBARNER
—RN—F&EH 30

RITEE-RN—FRIIH 31

amendments, the comparative information is restated. See Note 2(c).

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 26 March

2024.

Zhang Zhiwu
RER
Director

EBEFE

The notes on pages 137 to 258 form part of these financial statements.

HEaf-—RN—E%3H 32
B & 33
IEERTEE 19
BEE
IR 2 R {5 8
it 35(c)
=40
N E) R IR R A1
WF*
JEFERR IR
s
s -
EEY
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2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(REF)
(Note)
(tat)
(234,651) (574,539)
6,347,516 5,876,482
7,148 3,409
1,209 1,154
592,782 876,591
3,953,520 3,407,088
45,398 32,378
6,697 7,519
52,203 48,787
4,658,957 4,376,926
1,688,559 1,499,556
55 55
1,544,536 1,362,170
1,544,591 1,362,225
143,968 137,331
1,688,559 1,499,556
AEBER2023F1A1BEXREABRK S AENE

1252 BT o IRIEZE
i EE2(c)

1R2024FE3F8 26 HHtLE M IR REEE 1T ©

Li Guangming
=R
Director

EFE

$137E 258 H MM sE B A Z M WK BT

B EREHMELES 2R

—&De
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAIRABIE

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L FE

At 1 January 2023 (restated)

Profit for the year
Exchange difference arising on translation of
foreign operations
Release of cumulative gain included in profit or loss
upon deconsolidation of subsidiaries (note 37)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognized during the year
Deferred tax credited arising from
fair value change in hedging instruments
Release of hedging reserve
Deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve
Remeasurement of net defined
benefit retirement scheme assets

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends declared and paid to equity shareholders of

the Company in respect of previous year (note 35b(ii)

Dividends declared to non-controlling shareholders
Transfer of other non-distributable reserves

Capital injection from non-controlling interests
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Transfer of enterprise work safety funds

Utilization of enterprise work safety funds

At 31 December 2023

12023E181A (BE5)

KEEEF
BEBNEBEENERER

BEORHAHKBAT R ARE
HESLEIGE)
EREAZHATIANAEEL
RREHTH
HATAAABESHELN
BERERS
BRI RRE
BERMEEELN
BERERS
RETREAFUEETE
EHiiE

rEEREANEAR

BEAIREREE KR
A EEBRE (Wi ssb(i)
BERFLRRRNRE

SREMATHTREE

FARRETE

BHAHHBAR

SRPERRLEER

BRCEZREEER

120235125318

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARRERRELN
Other non- Non-
Share Share distributable Hedging Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total equity
A RE
B RiDER HikfEE HakE ERHE Eap-tl Wit FERER aRz
(note 35(d)(i) (note 35(d)(ii)) (note 35(d)iii))
(Wztss(a)i))  (Wiztss(a)ii)) (Wia2as(d)fiii)

Us$'000 Uss'000 Uss$000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
55 250,406 46,384 8,306 (120,847) 1,177,921 1,362,225 137,331 1,499,556

- - - - - 267,685 267,685 11,948 279,633

- - - - (38,411) - (38,411) (3,003) (41,414)

- - - - (2,485) - (2,485) - (2,485)

B - . (8,436) - - (8,436) B (8,436)

- - - 1,049 - - 1,049 - 1,949

- - N (109) - - (109) - (109)

- - - 26 - - 26 - 26

_ . - - - (654) (654) - (654)

- - - (6,570) (40,896) 267,031 219,565 8,945 228,510

- - - - - (39,029) (39,029) - (39,029)

- - - - - - - (3,641) (3,641)

- - 17,483 - - (17,483) - - -

- - - - - (1,351) (1,351) 6,580 5,229

- - 7 - - 4 27 (5,267) (5,240)

- - 15,393 - - - 15,393 408 15,801

- - (12,239) - - - (12,239) (388) (12,627

55 250,406 67,004 1,736 (161,743) 1,387,133 1,544,591 143,968 1,688,559
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GRRRBHE

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12831 B LEEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARRGRRELN
Other non- Non-
Share Share distributable Hedging Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total equity
At Ae
B REE Dk Eapl 1] ER G R et FERED i
(note 35(a)(i) ~ (note 35(a)i))  (note 35(a)ii))
(Wissay)  (Essai) (s
US$000 Us$000 US$'000 US$000 US§000 Us$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000

FET FET FET F&T FET FET F&£m F&1 FET

A1 January 2022 (restated) 1202241518 (7)) 55 250,406 31,966 14,962 50,285 1,025,711 1373,385 121521 1,494,906
Profit for the year (restated) AEE R (BB - - - - - 195,149 195,149 19,274 214,423
Exchange difference arising on translation of BEBNEBEENERER

foreign operations - - - - (171,132) - (171,132) (10,910) (182,042)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of FREDZHRIANNEEZ

hedging instruments recognized during the year ERgHIS - - - (8,793) - - (8,793) - (8,793)
Deferred tax credited arising from HATAAAEEEBELN

fair value change in hedging instruments BERERE - - - 2,202 - - 2,202 - 2,202
Release of hedging reserve REHHEE - - - (110) - - (110) - (110)
Deferred tax credit arising on release of BOERREEELN

hedging reserve BERERE - - - 25 - - 25 - 25
Remeasurement of net defined RERRRIHEERTE

benefit retirement scheme assets EEi - - - - - 980 980 - 980
Total comprehensive income for the year (restated) *EE2ERDAE (25 - B - (6,656) (171,132) 196,129 18,341 8,364 26,705
Dividends declared and paid to equity shareholders of ~ AAABEZRES KR

the Company in respect of previous year (note 35b(i)) Tk LEERS (Hfa£356(i) - = B - - (36,952) (36,952) - (36,952)
Dividends declared to non-controlling shareholders BEREERRRNRE - - - - - - = (4,576) (4,576)
Transfer of other non-distributable reserves BEEMAT Y RER = = 13,991 - o (13,991) o > .
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FEREETE - - - - - (176) (176) 24,250 24,074
Deregistration of a subsidiary HH-FHEAT - - - - - 7,200 7,200 (12,248) (5,048)
Transfer of enterprise work safety funds ERMERREEER - - 1,289 - - - 1,289 36 1325
Utilization of enterprise work safety funds BRACEREEEER - - (862) - - - (862) (16) (878)
At 31 December 2022 (restated) 12022512318 (£&5) 85 250,406 46,384 8,306 (120,847) 1,177,921 1,362,225 187,831 1,499,556
The notes on pages 137 to 258 form part of these financial statements. F137E258E MM B ZEM IFIRKRN—8 0 ©
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance costs
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
(Gain)/loss on deconsolidation/disposal
of subsidiaries
Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill
Reversal of impairment losses recognized in
respect of inventories
Interest income
Recognition of government grants
Net recognition of loss allowance of trade and
other receivables and contract assets

Share of results of associates

Transfer of enterprise work safety funds

Utilization of enterprise work safety funds

Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments
reclassified through other comprehensive
income

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in other non-current assets

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in contract assets

Increase in other receivables and prepayments

Changes in amounts due from/to
fellow subsidiaries

Changes in amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables

Decrease in other payables and accruals
Decrease in net defined benefit retirement

scheme asset
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

135

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
|'7.|' (=) iﬁ @ >ﬁ E

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L FE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes US$’000 Us$°000
k23 FET FET
R EE
PRI AR A 352,528 272,994
HE
ME- -BEKRREINTE 10 343,740 335,969
EREEEINE 10 8,313 5,008
B ER 8 212,765 227,105
HEWE BERRE
E518 7558 7 37 477
BUH GO HE W B
ANTH (Hr2%) /Eﬂé 7 (2,485) 67
MY E BB E
R R ERE 7 7,659 66,811
BRI RERE
7 8,681 =
MEERIBZHERIE
#[e - (163)
B U A 6 (5,778) (3,557)
MR AT /B & (1,052) (1,069)
BRI E S kEHM
FERRIEBEREREE
IR E IR 36(a) 8,593 2,791
BEHE AR EE (3,022) 63,252
BBt EEDR 15,801 1,325
FRCELZEREEE (12,627) (878)
BREMEEmWEERN
DENIRESRE L
TENWRFE 7 (2,170) =
EEETEEFAIZ
KERERE 930,983 970,132
HttIErs&EE R 40,539 58,249
HFERL S (8m) 20,212 (15,030)
B 5 FEW BRI N (44,935) (45,954)
EREEEE M (25,571) (194,593)
H{thpE R = IE K T8 RUE
)l (42,273) (25,294)
FEWFE(IE &
B AR RIBES (11,107) 7,944
FEWL,FE(TIEFERR AR R
TRIBEE) 3,706 (1,621)
B EMIRR G
)l (108,093) 100,039
H eI RIE R FE 5
=== 0 (6,860) (168,672)
BREZHBARFEEE
HRER D (881) (873)
aRAE/EEM L) 539 (256)
KELRHEEZRE 756,259 684,071
BENRER (74,709) (41,690)
REEHFRSREFHE 681,550 642,381
2023 EE®RE @ HFEBEXNERERERAT




136

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

molRE NS

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12831 B LEEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Payments for right-of-use assets

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from deconsolidation/
disposal of subsidiaries

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets
Interest received
Withdrawal/(placement) of short-term

bank deposits

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings raised

Interest paid

Repayment to fellow subsidiaries

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Repayment of lease liabilities

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Cash paid to a non-controlling shareholder
upon deregistration of a subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR
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REEZHFAREFE
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The notes on pages 137 to 258 form part of these financial statements.
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2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes US$’000 US$'000
k=3 FET FET
(641,371) (362,776)
(2,561) (23,309)
(3,262) (13,238)
37 (16,872) 14,340
39,787 18,317
7,177 944
- 488
5,778 3,557
145 (11,487)
(611,179) (373,164)
(1,520,471) (1,090,870)
1,677,886 1,559,431
(211,893) (222,479)
(1,025,973) (1,455,844)
(39,029) (36,952)
(3,641) (4,085)
(15,608) (6,628)
920,953 1,065,018
5,229 24,074
- (5,048)
(212,547) (173,383)
(142,176) 95,834
440,646 374,999
(10,970) (30,187)
287,500 440,646
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GENERAL

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in October 2014. The registered office of the
Company is at Victoria Place, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Its immediate
holding company is CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited
(“CGN Energy International”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, and its ultimate holding company is China
General Nuclear Power Corporation (“CGN”), a state-owned enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in the generation and supply of
electricity and steam, construction and operation of power stations and
other associated facilities in the PRC and Republic of Korea (“Korea”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
dollar (“US$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”).

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these amendments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests

in its associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out

below:

- investments in equity securities (see note 2(g)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in

note 3.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately
US$234,651,000 as at 31 December 2023. CGN Wind Power
Company, Limited (“CGN Wind Energy”), a fellow subsidiary
of the Company, has confirmed in writing that despite the loan
from CGN Wind Energy of RMB2,400,000,000 (equivalent to
US$338,854,000) which is due for repayment within twelve
months from 31 December 2023, it will not cancel the existing
loan facilities within twelve months from 31 December 2023
and that the loan will be extended upon expiry. Furthermore,
taking into account the financial resources of the Group, the
Group has unutilized general facilities of US$893,162,000 as
at 31 December 2023 for the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. In addition, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by the management of the Group. The cash flow
projections cover a period not less than twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
has sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due for at least the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

(i) New and amended IFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and amended
IFRSs issued by the IASB to these consolidated
financial statements for the current accounting period:

3 IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

. Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates

. Amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of
accounting policies

. Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes:
International tax reform - Pillar Two model
rules

. Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes:

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

(i)

New and amended IFRSs (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. The standard and the amendments
do not have a material impact on these consolidated
financial statements except as described below :

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred
tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption such that it does not apply
to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences on initial recognition such as
leases and decommissioning liabilities. For leases and
decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred
tax assets and liabilities are required to be recognized
from the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an
adjustment to retained earnings or other components
of equity at that date. For all other transactions,
the amendments are applied to those transactions
that occur after the beginning of the earliest period
presented.

Prior to the amendments, the Group has applied the
initial recognition exemption to lease transactions and
did not recognize the related deferred tax in relation
to the temporary difference arising from a right-of-
use asset and the related lease liability arise from
a single transaction. The Group has initially applied
the amendments retrospectively as from 1 January
2023 and has therefore restated the comparative
information. The following table gives a summary of
restatement adjustments recognized for each line item
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

(i) New and amended IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred
tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction (continued)

Consolidated statement of  /2022F12H31HK

financial position at EEMBEKRAR
31 December 2022
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEE
Total non-current liabilities JEiENEE4EEE
Net assets BEE
Reserves B
Total equity attributable to ENT R EL
equity shareholders of ErEm
the Company
Non-controlling interests JEERE M
Total equity B

2. EEGHEX @

(c) EEREH @

() GBI REIETEIRREA TSR
HEER ()
EPRE s EER 551258 (1857 4)
Frifeit E—X G ELHEER
B1EEEERIE ()
Impact on
As application of
previously amendments
reported to IAS 12 As restated
FEM
E R g st 4R
$125F 2
BEER EHENEA RET
Us$’000 USs$°000 Us$’000
FETT FET FET
48,484 303 48,787
4,376,623 303 4,376,926
1,499,859 (303) 1,499,556
1,362,469 (299) 1,362,170
1,362,524 (299) 1,362,225
137,335 (4) 137,331
1,499,859 (303) 1,499,556
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

(i) New and amended IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred
tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction (continued)

Consolidated statement of & FE2022F12831H
profit or loss and other LHEEFSEER
comprehensive income Hth2mUER
for the year ended
31 December 2022

Income tax Frig#i

Profit for the year FREF

Total comprehensive FRE2EUREAEEE

income for the year
Profit for the year attributable to: FE{L EE A

Equity shareholders of KABE@ARE
the Company

Non-controlling interests JEERER

Total comprehensive income EIEEREE IR mALEE
for the year attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the KAT R IR R
Company

Non-controlling interests JEERE
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As previously
reported

BEZR
Us$'000
TET

58,573
214,421

26,703

195,143
19,278

18,335
8,368

BtERES (@)

e RASIEST R R A5 4R
HER @)

P SRR 55125 (23T )

BiieiR E—XEELIEER

B1EEEERIE ()

Impact on
application of
amendments

to IAS 12 As restated
FEM
E R g st 4R
$125F 2

BT R 2 RET

USs$°000 Us$’000

FET FET

(2) 58,571

2 214,423

2 26,705

6 195,149

(4) 19,274

6 18,341

(4) 8,364
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

(i)

New HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition
of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into effect
from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the
Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer can
no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from
its mandatory contributions to mandatory provident
fund (“MPF”) scheme to reduce the long service
payment (“LSP”) in respect of an employee’s service
from the Transition Date (the abolition of the “offsetting
mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately
before the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the
abolition of the mechanism. In particular, the guidance
indicates that entities may account for the accrued
benefits derived from mandatory MPF contributions that
are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable
to an employee as deemed contributions by that
employee towards the LSP.

The enactment of the Amendment Ordinance does not
have a material impact on these consolidated financial
statements.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealized
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in accordance with notes 2(q) or (r) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognized.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(1)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes
2(f) and (l)(ii)). At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate (after applying the ECL model
to such other long-term interests where applicable (see note

2(1)(0)).

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognized

immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not measured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under

the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(I)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(1)(if)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Equity investments

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) for which transaction costs are recognized directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 36(e).

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognized in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(v)(b)(i).
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on the remeasurement to fair value is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge of
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged (see note 2(i)).

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge its risk of foreign exchange forward
contracts.

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective portion
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective
portion of any gain or loss is recognized immediately in profit
or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset such as inventory,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost of the non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such as when a
forecast sale occurs or interest expense is recognized).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
(including when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting is
discontinued, but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been accumulated
in the hedging reserve remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and it is recognized in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to
take place, the amount that has been accumulated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss
immediately.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(1)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs(see note 2(x)).

ltems may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The proceeds from selling any such items and
the related costs are recognized in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognized in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows except for freehold land in Korea:

Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, and 5-50 years

- Buildings

Electric and steam
generating facilities

5 to 25 years, or over the
relevant operating license

period

- Office and electronic 3 - 10 years
equipment

- Motor vehicles 5 - 6 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group, are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalized are recognized as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(1)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease
is capitalized is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 2(j)
and 2(1)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and recognized the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the statement of financial position, the Group
presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognized in accordance with note

2(v)(b)(iii).

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, trade receivables and other receivables and
prepayments) and contract assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial instruments and financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof where the effect of
discounting is material.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(1

Credit losses and impairment of

assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
based on its historical observed default rates which is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(1

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(1

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognized as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occeurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEEHEE (B)

(continued)
(1) Credit losses and impairment of () EESEREERE @)
assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets iy EHMIERHEERE &)
(continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount = B Gl {EEE]
The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEZOWOIESEAR
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal ABEREHERA

and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable
value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Contract assets and contract
liabilities

A contract asset is recognized when the Group recognizes
revenue (see note 2(v)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(l)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognized when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognized
the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A contract liability would
also be recognized if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognized (see note 2(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2(v)(b)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognized before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2(n)).

Receivables are subsequently stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(1)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(I)(i).
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value.
Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortized
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrow
costs (see note 2(x)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement schemes is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior
years; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)
(i)

(iii)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations (continued)

Service cost and net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognized in profit or
loss and allocated by function as part of “staff costs”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current year. When the
benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is
curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related
to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognized as an expense in profit or
loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognized. Net
interest expense for the year is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to
the net defined benefit liability. The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement schemes are recognized in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately in
retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) and any change in the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognized restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to business
combinations, or items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilized, are recognized. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilized.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realize the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realize and settle
simultaneously.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognized for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognized for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and
recognizes revenue on a gross basis except for service
income on sales of electricity. For service income on sales
of electricity, the Group is the agent for the transactions and
recognizes revenue on a net basis. In determining whether the
Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers whether
it obtains control of the products before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from the products.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value added tax or other
sales taxes.

(i) Revenue from the sale of electricity or

steam and tariff income

Revenue from the sale of electricity or steam
and tariff income are recognized based upon
output delivered. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“IFRS 15”), revenue from
sales of electricity or steam and tariff income
is generally recognized upon transmission of
electricity and steam to the customers, which
is the point of time when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of the output and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the
output.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income
(continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from capacity charges, start-up
charges and management service
Capacity charges are payments from
independent power purchasers for maintaining
availability of some of the Group’s power
generators for dispatch of electricity,
regardless of actual dispatch. Start-up charges
are payments from independent power
purchasers for the start-up of the power plants.
Management service fee income is recognized
when the service is provided. The revenue
from capacity charges, start-up charges and
management service are recognized over time
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

Revenue from sales of renewable energy
certificates (“REC”)

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when
customer takes possession of the REC.

Service income on sales of electricity
Service income on sales of electricity is
recognized when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

(continued)

(b)

Revenue from other sources and other
income

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues
under the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognized as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognized in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction dates is the date on which the Group initially
recognizes such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into US$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong,
are translated into US$ at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related party
includes a person and entity as defined below:

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third entity.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for

the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(z)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

In addition, government refers to government, government
agencies and similar bodies whether local, national or
international. A government-related entity is an entity that is
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by a
government.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 16, 36(a) and 36(e) contain information about the assumptions

and their risk factors relating to impairment of goodwill,

impairment

of trade and other receivables and fair value of financial instruments.
Other key source of estimation uncertainty is as follows:

(a)

Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a non-
current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognized in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of non-
current assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable,
except for goodwill which is tested on an annual basis. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced
to the recoverable amount.

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and goodwill,
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value less costs of disposal because quoted
market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgment relating to items such as level of
electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or, except for goodwill, reversal
of impairment in future periods.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the generation and
supply of electricity and steam, construction and operation of
power stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and
Korea. Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed in note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

goods and service and by the timing of revenue recognition is
as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers ElFREAF5R &S % BIE 1558

within the scope of IFRS 15 BEANKREELERN
WA
Disaggregated by types of goods RERMRBEREAD
and services
- Sales of electricity —HEEBN
- Tariff income —BEWA
- Sales of steam —HEES
- Capacity charges —REE
- Service income on sales —EBRERA
of electricity
- Start-up charges and others — B EE R HAM
- Management service income —EEREWA
- Sales of REC —HETBEERES
Disaggregated by the timing of WA RSB E A
revenue recognition
- Point in time — A —BRFRE B
— Over time —RE—BFREE
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Btk HEMABRERE ERAAEREE
EBNE—TFIFTHIMIFE4(b) IR EE o
WA L5
REFEFERANBARE & KRB U
R AEREE2IFAOT
Power Power
plants in plants Management 2023
the PRC in Korea  companies Total
PENER BENER TEAT  2023F 45t
us$ ‘000 US$’00£ Us$ ‘000 US$’00£
FET FET FET FET
452,677 957,223 - 1,409,900
412,421 - - 412,421
101,769 - - 101,769
10,094 110,733 - 120,827
35,753 - - 35,753
- 6,269 - 6,269
- - 29,255 29,255
- 76,783 - 76,783
1,012,714 1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977
1,002,620 1,034,006 - 2,036,626
10,094 117,002 29,255 156,351
1,012,714 1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers B[ BA 75 3R & % Bl 55 155%
within the scope of IFRS 15 HENRBEE AHE@
WA
Disaggregated by types of goods BEm KRB A D
and services
- Sales of electricity —ﬁﬁ% BN
— Tariff income BEKA
- Sales of steam —ﬁﬁ’ii‘zﬁ
- Capacity charges —RE
- Service income on sales —EBERBEBRA
of electricity
- Start-up charges and others — B EE R EAM
- Management service income —BERBWA
- Sales of REC —SHETBEERES

Disaggregated by the timing of WA R SR A o
revenue recognition

- Point in time — R —FRFRE 2
- Over time —RE—RFREEL

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of electricity or steam

Revenue from the sales of electricity or steam are recognized
based upon output delivered. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in IFRS 15, revenue from the sales of electricity or
steam is generally recognized upon transmission of electricity
or steam to the customers, which is the point of time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of the output and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the output.
A receivable is recognized by the Group when the output is
delivered to the customers as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.
The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90 days to its
customers.

4. WAKRZEER (B

— -
(a) WA #)
WAL (42
Power Power
plants in plants Management 2022
the PRC in Korea companies Total
HFEMER BEINER EEAT  2022F 45t
US$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FE1
515,032 1,223,325 - 1,738,357
354,199 - - 354,199
119,982 - - 119,982
10,540 112,272 - 122,812
25,027 - - 25,027
- 8,099 - 8,099
_ = 27,841 27,841
- 33,739 - 33,739
1,024,780 1,377,435 27,841 2,430,056
1,014,240 1,257,064 - 2,271,304
10,540 120,371 27,841 158,752
1,024,780 1,377,435 27,841 2,430,056
ERERENEE
HEENHHES

HEBNIERZBADEBERTEH
HERD REERMEREEAF15
SRIEGIEEE A HEBHRERZ
BWABEREBELEHESARESRF
R ARRAEENTEGHEZ AR
&%ﬂgutﬂizr&%‘jﬂﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ-Tﬂ 5 B9
REM AEERHLERNERL R
Eﬁmﬂguﬁz%ﬂﬁ BERAERERHRR
ARRERA BAZEREZEFN MR
2%7#?1\%#29%%%%5 rEBBEERR
HAFI0EXRNEEL-
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Tariff income from government authorities for sales of
electricity

Tariff income is recognized at the same time as the relevant
revenue from the sales of electricity is recognized, that is, upon
the transmission of electricity to the customers.

Certain amounts of tariff income are subject to the approval
for the registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
List (the “List”), pursuant to Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice on
the Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
of Renewable Energy (AIB4EEREBHNEHESERE
#¥5% D) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the National
Department and Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration in January 2020 (the “2020 Notice”). Pursuant
to the 2020 Notice, the List is registered in the National
Renewable Energy Information Centre and approved by the
relevant government authorities.

A receivable is recognized at the same time except for those
which are pending the approval for the registration in the List
from the relevant government authorities, which a contract
asset is recognized. Due to the nature of receivables, there is
no credit period and the directors of the Company expect that
the receivables will be recovered within the Group’s normal
operating cycle from the time they are recognized.

Sales of REC

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when customer
takes possession of the REC. A receivable is recognized by
the Group at the same time when revenue recognized, at which
the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due. The Group
allows a credit period of 30 days to its customers.

Capacity charges

Capacity charges are payments from independent power
purchasers for maintaining availability of some of the Group’s
power generators for dispatch of electricity, regardless of
actual dispatch. Revenue is recognized over time when the
relevant dispatch requirements are met. The credit period is
normally 30 days to the independent power purchasers.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

WA R EE R (B)

A #)
EFARBNESE @)

FLEHE B0 B BURHBEIS R EERA

BEERAREDHEEES HDAEBBARN
B B MR~ S5 E DR ER -

&TE Fuﬁz)\ﬁm%/ﬂﬁkﬁﬁ\ﬂaé’f}:
N EZESY %ﬁ%f%?zozofﬁ
1EH%A§§%EU<<_J§$EE, EREL G
HYMESBEIENOE) I E[2020]558 @A
(M2020F@H)) KRERBELZNRAE

EREENMNESmESE (TEE))
Ao RIF2020FEEH FEAAXRAH
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FE WS RR TE S () B 52, - 1 1 755 4 A BUART
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EEBH Ao
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(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Start-up charges

Start-up charges are payments from independent power
purchasers for the start-up of the power plants. Revenue is
recognized over time during the power generation period to the
independent power purchasers. The credit period is normally
20 days to the independent power purchasers.

Management service income

Management service income is recognized overtime when the
service is provided. The credit term is normally 30 days.

Service income on sales of electricity

Service income on sales of electricity is recognized when
control over a service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled. The credit term is 30 days.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Contracts for capacity charges and management service
typically have 3 to 20 years non-cancellable terms in which
the Group bills fixed rates by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligations. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognizing revenue in the amount to which the Group has
right to invoice. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied contracts are not
disclosed.

Contracts for sales of electricity and steam typically have
20 years non-cancellable terms. As the revenue from sales
of electricity and steam as well as the related tariff income
depends on future actual consumption, the revenue arising
from these future sales have not been included in the
transaction price for revenue recognition purposes.

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on geographical location are set out below.

WA R EE R (B)

(a)

A #)
BEFARBOEE @)

&

REEABIBNERAEBHMBOA
MR ER - WARRAHERIE
NERREHEEBRFOABAER - H
BIBNERNEER—KRB20XK-

EERBEA

BT R 5 U A DY 1R M AR s B 9 s ) BR
HEER - EEH—MRA30K -

EEBRBUA

EERBRAZRBHEFRERE
=R A B TR H A IR Y A G
REZRERD - EEH—RAB30K

NEERRSRARGFROEE
R 7B

REEMEERFERBEERBIE20
FENARAIHEGRR AEBM2EZRE
THEABNETNEERE T L X
HEEE AEBEEEASHRER L
RAEEERRAEEENEBERBUW
A RBEKEMBERSZEBFE155R
T REEZSEARBITERANKRZ B
RFHWE -

BORZEAHEGE —RAEF20ET
FIHEIFH - AN EE BN REARE
WA LUK AER B E W ABUR KRR E
THFER  MRERRBEEEENWA
I 8 5t AFEST WA RIS 5 (B4 -

BB R B KRB i BT D 3R
RMAARABRITES BIEBEER
RE) RENWEHFHIWMT -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results

The executive directors of the Company reviews the operating
results and financial information of the Group based on
individual power plant, management companies and on a
location basis. Each power plant and management company
constitutes an operating segment. For certain operating
segments that exhibit similar long-term financial performance
as they have similar economic characteristics, produce
electricity and/or steam by using similar production processes
and all of the electricity and/or steam are distributed and sold
to similar classes of customers, provide similar consulting
services to customers, their segment information is aggregated
into a single reportable operating segment.

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

1 Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of
electricity;

(2) Power plants in Korea - Generation and supply of
electricity; and

(3) Management companies - Provision of management
services to power plants operated by CGN and its
subsidiaries.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 BPUTA — S ER

Segment revenue - external

Segment results DEEE

ROBECH U A

Unallocated other income

Unallocated operating RAOEK SRS
expenses
Unallocated finance costs KPRV BHER

Share of results of
associates

BIEMERBRR

PRAR AT ]

Profit before taxation

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

4. WAKRZEER (B

(b)

Power
plants in
the PRC

R B Y B
Us$’000
FET

1,012,714

BENER

DEBURA B 73 BB 4R

KABNITESLER B %ﬂi’&ﬂ
RUBEEEBRAEENEEXE
MHEER ZEBEREET @T’fﬁﬁi—fl
EESF -MEAABBELUSERME F

BEULEERFEEE DR/ HEA
Fﬁﬁaﬁﬁ&/ﬁ“ BN RIEE T
PENFERUREEFREBMUER
REMEREURAMERENET
EESM HoMENNEER —EE
—E2REEDI o

FEBMBEAEUT=ZET2KDE :

s

(1) By E BAMAE;

s

(2) &2 B Y B MR BIIHE;

W¢EH&EW§
B9 B R R fit 32 R
(i) PEBFEE

L/('Fj%?ﬁ_fziﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁﬂ
EBMBARERED T

BEEKRARE
3 B9

HE2023F128310 L EE

Power
plants in
Korea

Management
companies
EEAT
Us$’000
FET

Total
st
uUs$’000
FET

Us$’000
FET

1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977

303,791

91,246 1,393 396,430

37

(3,532)
(43,429)

3,022

352,528
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(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

7 BRI A —5h BB

Segment revenue - external

DEPEE

Segment results

ROECEMUEA
RAEEERZ

Unallocated other income
Unallocated operating
expenses

Unallocated finance costs AOEMBER

Share of results of BEBE N XS
associates

Profit before taxation PR3 AR A

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies set
out in note 2. Segment results represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of certain
other income, operating expenses, finance costs and
share of results of associates. This is the measure
reported to the executive directors of the Company for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

WA R EE R (B)

(b) DEBRARDEBELE (B

() PHEE - BERAER
(#)
HE20225F12831HLEE
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea companies Total
FENER BEOERK EERF st
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FE1 FET FET
1,024,780 1,377,435 27,841 2,430,056
287,229 85,096 1,326 373,651
32
(5,796)
(31,641)
(63,252)
272,994
Pl 27 80 & 5T BUER B
2P AEEN G T BERAER ©
DEEBES D BHBHIN G
FoFEEETHEMBA &S
A MBERAREBGHHER

BIXEBNDE -EDHBERD
B Ko 2= B EF (4 T A A A B AT
BERENHERRN -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSIPER @)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEBMARDERELE (B)
(continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () ZSEHEE-BERER
(continued) (#)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UTABRIERDBE DA
liabilities by reportable segments: EEEENREEDN
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
Segment assets DHEE
Power plants in the PRC R B Y BB R 6,894,919 6,743,376
Power plants in Korea 52 B 19 B R 1,335,257 1,481,181
Management companies BIENT 954 3,050
Total segment assets NEEEBEE 8,231,130 8,227,607
Interests in associates REE AT DR 75,929 74,268
Unallocated FOER
— Right-of-use assets —(FEREEE 1,136 2,258
- Others —HAth 41,947 39,800
Consolidated assets HREBE 8,350,142 8,343,933

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Segment liabilities nEaR’E
Power plants in the PRC A B B9 E R
Power plants in Korea &2 [ 1Y BB B
Management companies BEIENT
Total segment liabilities DEE([ELEEE
Unallocated RDHEC

- Bank borrowings —iR1TEE

- Loans from fellow subsidiaries —REBBEZHBATHNER
— Lease liabilities —fHEaE
- Others —Eh

Consolidated liabilities FE ==

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, certain
right-of-use assets and corporate assets of
investment holding companies; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than certain bank borrowings,
loans from fellow subsidiaries, lease liabilities
and unallocated corporate liabilities.

WA R EE R (B)

(b)

DEBURA R D EBEAR

(%)

() DEFRF-BERER

#)
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(#&E75))
5,201,487 5,150,238
647,951 876,975
573 772
5,850,011 6,027,985
100,000 100,000
700,000 700,000
1,151 2,274
10,421 14,118
6,661,583 6,844,377

MEBEZEDEBRRKRDEE D
F’Eﬁé/ﬁﬁ,ﬁm J

PREBEXNREEE
DES (R E AT R
m AETHEREEERK
REZRABDNATEAE
ERRIN 5 K

FREBRHIEEEE
DECEFRGTEE
RERRNBARNE
FoHEEEURRSD
AR EEERIN -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(ii) Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Amounts included in the measure of S ENFEZADPHEER
segment profit or loss or segment BERANSE:
assets and liabilities:

Depreciation of property, NE BERRETE
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EREEERTE

Net (gain)/ loss on disposal of HENE BER
property, plant and equipment #E Wm) /BRER

Interest income FEBA

Finance costs HBER

Impairment losses recognized in HE KRR ERD
respect of property, plant and REBE
equipment

Impairment losses recognized in HEEHIRZAESR
respect of goodwill

Net gain on cash flow hedging FREMEERGEEHNDEN
instruments reclassified through ReREHHTAN
other comprehensive income W EEE

Gain on deconsolidation of BUHA BB AR NG
subsidiaries

Amounts regularly provided to TR T EEERRERM

the chief operating decision maker Bt AstES BB
but not included in the measure FABEERBRN
of segment profit or loss or it

segment assets and liabilities:

Interests in associates REE AR ELR
Share of results of associates %15%’“@@7%%5\
Income tax i

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023

Power
plants in
the PRC

FENERK
Us$'000
FET

276,366
5,839

(4)
2,828
142,996

7,659

8,681

2,485

75,929
3,022
71,350

R AR

(b) PEBRARDEBEE

(ii)

Power
plants in
Korea
BENER
Us$’000
FET

66,688
1,198

42
2,869
26,340

2,170

1,115

SEER (&)

(%)

Hith 3 &P ER
HZE2023F12H31HLEE
Management
companies Unallocated Total
EEAT KAE s
Uss’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET
14 672 343,740
153 1,123 8,313
(1) 37
6 75 5,778
5 43,424 212,765
- - 7,659
- - 8,681
- - 2,170
- - 2,485
- - 75,929
- - 3,022
430 - 72,895
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WA RSIEE (48)
(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEBMARDERELE (B)
(continued)
(ii) Other segment information (continued) (iiy HoIEN #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Restated) HZE2022F12831HILLEE
(=75
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea companies  Unallocated Total
TENEHR BENEH EEAT XDk 5t

Us$'000  US§000  US$000  US$000  US§000
TET TET FET TET TET

Amounts included in the measure of S EDBEZANBEER
segment profit or loss or segment BB AMNSHE
assets and liabilities:

Depreciation of property, NE -BERREINE

plant and equipment 268,919 66,466 31 553 335,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EAEBEETE 2,896 830 160 1,122 5,008
Net loss on disposal of HENE -BER

property, plant and equipment REHRFE 473 4 = = 477
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RINBABNER 67 = = = 67
Interest income FEBA 2,870 627 9 51 3,557
Finance costs MBER 171,046 24,418 13 31,628 227,105
Impairment losses recognized in HYE BERRERDIZ

respect of property, plant and RERE

equipment 44,983 21,828 - - 66,811
Amounts regularly provided to EHRTEEEARERY

the chief operating decision maker ~ BREt AGHEDHER
but not included in the measure FOBEERERN
of segment profit or loss or Et

segment assets and liabilities:

Interests in associates RBEARNER 74,268 = = - 74,268
Share of results of associates BEMENDEE (63,252) = = = (63,252)
Income tax Fiisi 36,211 22,357 3 = 58,571

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers from segment of power plants
in Korea of the corresponding years contributing over
10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows:

Korea Electric Power

Corporation (“KEPCO”)
Korea Power Exchange

Korea Electric Power

Corporation (TKEPCO J)

Korea Power Exchange

Non-current assets by geographical

location

The Group operates in three principal geographical
areas — the PRC, Korea and Hong Kong. The Group’s
information about its non-current assets (Note) by
location of assets and its associates by location of the
relevant associates’ business operations are detailed

below:

PRC h

Korea &g

Hong Kong =8

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023

WA R EE R (B)

(b) DEBRARDEBELE (B

(i) BRETEFRHER

REMEEALEBBEHELE
A 0% LA B RRAY 58 B E R

DHBEAUWALT :
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
433,498 427,707
717,510 949,728

(v) REhIBIESSHIERS

BE

FERE=ZEFEHEUEL
E-—E BEREE AEM
RIERBEE (W) REERR
M BRI E R R K E M D

FIa0F
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
5,526,200 5,402,977
1,024,065 1,017,131
4,898 6,156
6,555,163 6,426,264
K3 FERBBEFQBELR

BEE-
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 5. HtEE/%
2023 2022
20234 20224
USs$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Operation support expenses KELERS 63,313 30,168
Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water WRH B2 YY) E KK E 12,772 11,656
Other maintenance cost H fih 4 o8 pR A 7,744 16,863
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) FREEEITE Wat15) 8,313 5,008
Transportation and entertainment expenses B R EE A 10,270 8,006
Outsourcing expenses INELE 3,648 4,286
Tools and consumables T ERHESR 8,261 3,552
Consultancy fees b33 4,948 3,954
Insurance expenses R E A 7,978 6,718
Other taxes, surcharges and duties HMRIE-RINELRKRE 8,145 6,795
Miscellaneous operating expenses MIESERY 13,737 13,216
Expense relating to short-term leases B E RN 2,535 2,085
Office expenses CINEN 1,480 2,669
153,144 114,976
OTHER INCOME 6. HfthgA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Income on sales of generating rights and HEZEERKRBTEN
capacity (note) WA (H1aE) - 13,664
Compensation from insurance companies fREgA B BEE 293 1,197
Equipment rental income REHEEWA 423 427
Government grants (note 33) BT #Bh & (H75£33) 9,459 5,688
Income on sales of scrap materials SHERBE R A 218 320
Technical service income 7 AR FE WA 1,857 2,259
Interest income A B WA 5,778 3,557
Others Hith 1,746 15,587
19,774 42,699
Note: A subsidiary of the Group sold its power generation rights and remaining Kzt HNEB—XKWNBATNREE20228612831H

power generation capacity to third parties during the year ended 31 December

2022 as the power plant of the subsidiary ended its operation in 2019.
1F AR o

LEERHSBERMAGEESELHETS
=5 AAZWEB AR EBEIN2019FK&
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2L - 4=
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HftwhamKkEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
USs$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Gain/(loss) on deconsolidation/disposal of BUHE B HEWBATN
subsidiaries (note 37) Wi (B548) (W7a£37) 2,485 (67)
Impairment losses recognized in respect of TYE BB RRERRZ
property, plant and equipment (note 14) REEE Bat14) (7,659) (66,811)
Impairment losses recognized in respect of T ERR 2 BERE
goodwill (note 16) (Hizt16) (8,681) -
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNEEW R (B518) /348 1,726 (1,645)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE BB MRE
plant and equipment 518 7% %8 (37) (477)
Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments FREMEEmKEENDLEN
reclassified through other comprehensive BERBHFPTEN
income Wezs $ 28 2,170 =
(9,996) (69,000)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HHBEH
2023 2022
20234 20224
USs$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
Interest on: UTFEBZFE
Bank borrowings RITEE 150,766 162,818
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRMBATNER 59,740 61,908
Lease liabilities HEAaE 2,006 2,115
Other payables and accruals HthENMIERETE A 178 191
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder (S — IR IR B RIB 75 73
212,765 227,105

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:

Current tax: BRHAFR IS :
Provision for the year FRREE
Under provision in prior years BEFEERERE

R EFRIN-—FFE

Dividend withholding tax — current year

EIERRIE (f1a219) :
REE

Deferred tax (note 19):
Current year

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda.

Current tax provision represents provision for the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT”) and Korean Corporate
Income Tax (“KCIT”).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards, except for those subsidiaries
described below.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are under the
Western China Development Plan and a preferential tax rate of
15% is granted for an extended period from 2020 to 2030. As
a result, the tax rate of 15% is used to calculate the amount of
current taxation.

Pursuant to KCIT law, the statutory income tax of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries was calculated at a rate of 23.1% (2022:
24.2%) of the estimated assessable profit for the years ended
31 December 2023.

9.

n-F

mRHtMEERER

WZﬁaﬁ

(a) #ZEETERAZRIAES
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
[€<==27))
63,333 54,580
223 770
63,556 55,350
6,355 4,703
2,984 (1,482)
72,895 58,571

RABER RN ERERE

BB AR PR ERSR (THE
EEMRSR) REETEMER ((RE
EEMRFR) B

RIEFEAREMEACEMRSRE (TR
¥EFRIBME) REEFREREIBHK
> 52008 FE1B1HE REWB AT
MIREAH25% Iff T Xt pIi B AR
BR4ho

AEBETRALENETHBE QAR ®
BrEIPAMEE  IZR15%2BH
REH2020FEERE20304F c L > 5+
HENHRIER R A 15% 2 RE o

RIRFRE (B2 PRS0 E » Bl E 2023412
B3 1 HIEFE AEBMZEEME AT
B A TE B 210 75 1% 15 st FE SR B m A 0
23.1% (20224 : 24.2%) 5t & °

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

.dr

O B 5 ¥ < B 51

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12831 B LEEE

9.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(continued)

Pursuant to Hong Kong tax law, the statutory income tax was
calculated at a rate of 16.5% for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022. Pursuant to the tax laws in Republic of Malta
and in Mauritius, the statutory income tax was calculated at
a rate of 35% and 15%, respectively, for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022. However, subsidiaries of the Group
operating in these jurisdictions have not generated taxable
income during both years and therefore, no tax provision has
been made by the Group in relation to these subsidiaries.

The Group’s subsidiaries and associates that are tax residents
in the PRC are subject to the PRC dividend withholding tax
ranging from 5% to 10% for those non-PRC tax resident
immediate holding companies incorporated in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions, when and if undistributed earnings are
declared and to be paid as dividends out of profits that arose
on or after 1 January 2008.

The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax residents in Korea are
subject to a 15% Korean dividend withholding tax for the
immediate holding company incorporated in the Republic of
Malta when and if undistributed earnings are declared and to
be paid to non-PRC or non-Korea residents as dividends out of
profits.

Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to the profit for the current year of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries and certain PRC subsidiaries as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023

9.

n-F

mRHMEERZR

WZ%&ﬁ%ﬂ

(a)

maEmRRZIRIERE
(&)

RIFEFER L BE2023F Kk20224F
12B31HIEFEZEAEMBRDEZE
16.5%sT H o IRIE B E M LM E & E4E
BEIR L B E2023F K 20225128
1B IEFEEZ AT BIE3I5% K&
15% 2 MEAE - RAM AEBEZE
AAREREZHBABTNZMEN
b fE EE AR FEERAR IR A > B AN £ B T AR B
ZEMNBABEHRIBREME

HWEMBR2008E1B1BR 2 BESE
HaMEPRNRs REBHELRKRBIK
T HRETEBREMBEAREF MK
jm& EHFERBEEREBEERAR
Ams  EATERBERNPENB
/&1&3 ERBEBMS%E10% R EH
E % S IEIMR -

i S LUSH BB RDIKE M IER
RERNFIRTRIGFREAER > F5
BERNTERNAEEHNE LR AT
REBMAMEFMAIOEZER
AEBN15%HIFRE IR B FEINR o

BA 74 4 &2 [ BJ 4 A5 B B 2 R A9 [o 8 B
B Mt ERERENRRERRERE
FEEE BT ERRANEEELEDN
FEBRRBRBENBARDRE T TEKE
AR Z B EENERERNFEM
BRI HIELER IR R
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9. #&RH

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mRHMEERZR

WZFE =8 @

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) FRiEMRAZE G5HaF#
and accounting profit at applicate tax ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ-f—ﬁ'l'%Zﬁ,Eﬂﬂ
rates: T

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(& E75)
Profit before taxation B0 Bl i A1) 352,528 272,994
Notional tax on profit before taxation BRERBEZRBRAMEMRE
calculated at the rates applicable to HE BRRANEFIN S E
profits in the countries concerned RIE 90,028 70,349
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ORI NRE T E
for tax purpose 10,161 18,034
Tax effect of non-taxable income NERRBANRE R (3,010) (3,887)
Tax effect of share of results of ﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁ?‘é’/_\\j¥” IR
associates A (616) 15,813
Tax effect of preferential tax rates ETHENBAT
granted to certain PRC subsidiaries ERESVNENREZE (48,896) (63,641)
Utilization of tax losses previously not BRI ARERRIBEEE
recognized (97) (424)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized R FEERAIFR IBES B HY
ML 15,122 13,319
Withholding tax on distributable profits i B A B Kk Bt & A 5
of subsidiaries and associates A 2kim A B R 9,980 8,238
Under provision in prior years BEFEERERE 223 770
Income tax expense for the year FRPERAZ 72,895 58,571
Details of deferred tax movement are set out in note 19. BRAEERIBEE N IBH TR M
190
(c) Pillar Two income taxes (c) B_XZHFREMR

The Group operates in Korea, which has enacted new tax
laws to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development
(“OECD”). The new tax laws will take effect from 1 January
2024. As the new tax laws are not yet effective, the Group
does not recognize any current tax relating to the Pillar Two
model rules for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group has applied the temporary mandatory exception
to recognizing and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes and
would account for the tax as current tax when incurred.

AEBMERBEREEBEER  BEBEM
ML UBHRE S FH S REAR
(MR ESEEBRAR)) BMNEZ
T BRI A IEAR R 2024F 181
HEM HRTMEBREN AEE
jtﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁizozsimﬁ:ﬂ HIEFER
REE_STHEXRABREANEMED
HAIRIE -

7 £ B B 5% AR R B 58 5 1 1) 50 R TE DL
BRI ERE XS RAERM
BERMBREEKRBEER > W EERK
& E 5t A BIHERTRIE
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FREF
2023 2022
20234 20224
USs$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived at FEWNRAZLEINF :
after charging:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MEBE MR EBITE 343,740 335,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENTE 8,313 5,008
Recognition of loss allowance of trade and other FEs3 & 5 Kz ELfth FE UL 7R I8 K¢
receivables and contract assets BRI EERBEE
(note 36(a)) (H15£36(a)) 8,593 2,791
Impairment losses recognized in respect of TYE -BERREBREIZ
property, plant and equipment (note 74) BRI (Hfat14) 7,659 66,811
Impairment losses recognized in respect of ThE BB AR
goodwill (note 16) (Hizt16) 8,681 =
Staff costs BT
- salaries and allowances —Fr e BE R 100,558 93,503
— contribution to retirement benefits scheme, —RRFEA] A HE
including directors’ emoluments BIEEEMNE 19,755 15,892
Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 428 T4 BIEE RS 120,313 109,395
Auditors’ remuneration ZH Ml &
- audit services —EZ 702 670
- non-audit services —IEERZ 202 21
Total auditors’ remuneration Iz BN = 904 691

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments

2023

Name

Secretary of the Communist Party
Committee, Chairman, President and
Executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu, (former President)
(resigned as President

on 4 September 2023)

Executive Director

Mr. LI Guangming (appointed as President

and Director on 4 September 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Qingming (appointed on
29 December 2023 )

Mr. WANG Hongxin (resigned on
29 December 2023)

Mr. Bian Shuming (resigned on
4 September 2023)

Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on
7 February 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng

Mr. WANG Minhao

#a

BRED IR MERUTES

RSRTE (FEH)
(120239 A 4 A FHEMZ)
RTES

EHBALE (R2023F9F4HERE
AUHEED)

FHTES

ZIERLE (R20235128290
EZT)

FEHEE (R2023F 128290 BHE)

TEBELE (R2023F984B A

BHELE (R2024E2B7HEHE)

BIFHTES
RFERE
BRERE

IRERE

wn O RS i R B 5

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L FE

1. EFME KRS M

EFM=E

2023%F

Performance Contributions

Salaries related to retirement

Directors’ and incentive Benefits in benefits
fee allowances payments kind schemes Total

REERA RAER
EENE  HeREM HEER BEMEH HE e st
us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
17 - - - - 17
9 - - - - 9
9 - - - - 9
35 - - - - 35

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

2022

Name

Secretary of the Communist Party

Committee, Chairman, President and

Executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu, President (appointed as

Chairman of the Board and President
on 8 April 2022)

Executive Director

Mr. LI Yilun, former President (resigned as
President and Director on 8 April 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sui, former Chairman of the
Board (resigned as Chairman of the
Board and Director on 8 April 2022)

Mr. WANG Hongxin

Mr. Chen Xinguo (appointed on
8 April 2022)

Mr. Ren Liyong (appointed on 8 April 2022

and resigned on 29 September 2022)

Mr. Bian Shuming (appointed on 29
September 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng

Mr. WANG Minhao

BERED IR BHARNTES

RERLL A (120226 4F8H
EZERESEIRREN)
BiEs

FaRE A (R20226F
AFBHRAERHRES)

ERTES

BREE HEELTE
(R202254B8HBTES S £
$E2)

IRHEE

BHELLE (R2022E4 B8R ER)

ENBLYE (R2022F4F8BERE
R it2022E9 R 29 EHE)

TEBEE (2022595290
ERE)

BUFHTES
RFERE
BRERE

ERELE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023

1. EENERESHM &)
S5ME (&
20224
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and incentive Benefits in benefits
fee allowances payments kind schemes Total
xIHER RINER
EEHE  HakEl HEER BIEA SRR st
US$000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$000 Us$000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
18 - - - - 18
° - - - - 9
Y - - = - 9
36 - - - - 36
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for the services as directors of the Company.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries, so the payments of their emoluments were borne by CGN
and its subsidiaries for both years.

Neither the President nor any of the directors of the Company waived
any emoluments during both years.

No emoluments were paid to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join for both years.

Individuals with highest emoluments

The five highest paid individuals did not include any directors of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. The
emoluments of the five individuals for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

s R R R
RARAEH 5t &I R

Salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes
Performance related incentive payments (note)

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined by the board of

directors of the Company based on the Group’s performance.

11.

RIRERBBER (W)

EFNERIESEHM &)

EF5ME &

ERAGTEEWNS A RELAETRABDREER
EEEFEMZRBM AT

FHIFRTEEME D MRFEERILTIHE
i@~ B EFAARERB M A o MBI IFH
TEEMEDHMRFREEARDEEHMRE
M3z fy o

ETEETRERPEZRENBAR  HHE
IS 22 {8 6 2 B9 3 B Bl o s AR e EL B /BB R B K
?%O

BEAARRINENEETNZMEEERR
WS ERAE (AT B <

BERZMEFERRATES AN FES
MAERABBIFHE

REFHMNES

B E2023F K2022F 12831 B IEEE > # B
BEeAAEALANGERARERES -HE
2023FE K2022FE 1283 1B EEE LA RS
ANTHIFAT :

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
1,048 1,041

76 57

532 429
1,656 1,527

M. RREBMHBEANDHARDEZTGREL

EENRREE -

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR



192

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wm O B S i R Bl 5

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12831 B LEEE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 1. EEMERESEFHMN @)
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)
Individuals with highest emoluments EaitES &)
(continued)
No benefits in kind and compensations of loss of office were paid to BEE R Z W EEEBE AN EYR i B B
the individuals and no emoluments were paid to the individuals as an BEE > TEAEAZTMEESNARRTHN
inducement to join for both years. FHHE o
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HENMENFUTEHE -

No. of employees

BEEAH
2023 2022
20234 20224
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% (T 7¢1) £2,000,000 75
(Equivalent to US$192,001 to US$255,000) (1BE192,001E 7T E255,000% 7T) 0 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001775%2,500,0005875
(Equivalent to US$255,001 to US$319,000) (18E12255,001%7E319,000%7T) 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017875%3,000,000875
(Equivalent to US$319,001 to US$383,000) (1HE1319,001E T E383,000%7T) 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017875%3,500,000875
(Equivalent to US$383,001 to US$447,000) (1HE11383,001ETE447,000E7T) 1 0
JL
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. EREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per Share attributable APNBEERREELEREARBERANT
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company is based on the RIBEUTEIETE
following data.
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FE7T
(Restated)
(RE5)
Earnings: BH
Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic ~ R st E SR E AR K #E R T
and diluted earnings per Share (profit for the NBEFN (A raEERExR
year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders % 88 FE {5 4 P93z )
of the Company) 267,685 195,149

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

13.

Number of shares: BHEE
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of FREGKRELRK
calculating basic and diluted earnings per HERANNZEREE

Share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, and therefore, diluted earnings per
Share are the same as basic earnings per share.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

Defined contribution plan

Hong Kong

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Employees
contribute 5% of their relevant income to the MPF Scheme
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000,
and the Group contributes 10% of each employee’s monthly
base salary. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the retirement benefit scheme contributions
arising from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss were
approximately US$220,000 (2022: US$223,000).

The PRC

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations of the
PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the retirement fund administered by the PRC
government ranging from 10% to 22% (2022: 10% to 22%) of
the total monthly basic salaries of the current employees. In
addition, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required by law to
contribute 2% to 15% (2022: 2% to 15%) of basic salaries of
the employees for social insurance in relating to staff welfare,
housing, medical and education benefits. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the costs charged under such
arrangements for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries amounted to
approximately US$18,068,000 (2022: US$11,028,000).

12. SREH (@)

2023 2022
20234 20224
000 ‘000

FiR FHR
4,290,824 4,290,824

B F2023F K2022F 12831 HILEE > i

/é L

TEBER Bt SRE#ESEMNAGRELX

AR -

BEEF

(a)

rEBEEBAMBECENREREZHA
RIFaHEABE ot EBEHG (55485%)
RIUMREEE - EEZREMERKA
Hs%msaEe st BER BN SR EM
A B EBR%A30,0008 0> MAEEHIZE
LEESBELAFEHI0%EH MR
BRECHEEEDBILUNAEEREE
REUSFHEAZGFINEEANTE IR E
F2023F 1283 1HIEFE AaEE
R ELEBANBEANKRNERAKRET

SHEIMHERA 2220,0005= 7 (20224 ©
223,000 7T) ©
FRE

RIEFEFEARRAE LR SAEBNH
0 Y B A B 8 18 P B BT B A AR R
BE&EHHETO HARBEAREREER
B#HEEEZ10%E22% (20224 © 10%=E
22%) oS ME B TRA - -FR B
BRABENERNTERE 2EH
AR B A BKEEHEERE
BEEHFEZ2%E15% (20224F : 2%=E
15%) Z - REE2023F12831H
IEFE - RIFAE RN E AR RE
RILHHNBRI B FH#4Y7318,068,000%= 7T
(20224 : 11,028,000F 7T) ©
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan (continued)

Korea

The Group’s Korean subsidiaries are required by law to
contribute 0.06% to 4.5% (2022: 0.06% to 4.5%) of the
average salaries of the employees for national pension,
national health insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial
accident compensation insurance and wage claim guarantee
fund. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost
charged under such arrangements for the Group’s Korean
subsidiaries amounted to approximately US$1,486,000 (2022:
US$1,315,000).

In the PRC and Korea, the Group cannot reduce the existing
level of contributions by the forfeited contributions made by the
employers on behalf of the employees who leave the defined
contribution schemes before the vesting period. As such, no
forfeited contribution was used to reduce both years’ level
of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 to reduce future years’
contributions in the PRC and Korea. In Hong Kong, the Group
has utilized nil forfeited contributions to reduce the current
year’s level of contributions for the year ended 31 December
2023 (Nil for the year ended 31 December 2022). As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, no material forfeited contribution
was available to reduce the contribution payable in future years
in Hong Kong.

Defined benefit retirement scheme

Korea

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Korea,
all employees with more than one year of service are entitled
to lump-sum severance payments equal to one month’s pay of
service for each year based on their rate of latest salary and
the length of service upon termination of their employment or
retirement.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries in accordance with an independent
actuary’s recommendation based on annual actuarial
valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
scheme was at 31 December 2023 and were prepared by the
qualified staff of Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd, who are members of
the Society of Actuaries of the United States of America and
Institute of Actuaries of Korea, using the projected unit credit
method.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

13. EE4EF (@

(a)

(b)

EREMRETE (&)
5

rEFBBREWBABRBELEZA

EHEEHEEFHFHE£0.06%EF4.5%
(20224 : 0.06%=4.5%) 2> 1
ﬁ;l%&ﬁ:% EXREERR N KER
F THERIIBERME R TERRRE
HE - REE2023F12B31HIEEE >
REAERRERNBADZERZH
MM B <497 1,486,000% 75 (2022
£ 11,315,000 7T) ©

ERERER AEBFREUEERE
REBHHAELR mﬁi\ﬂ.ﬁé\ﬁﬁﬁa
ﬁ?tljEﬁ,RHM\TAMEEEEE{,\TMR$

1t > 3 £ B8 WA R A B R 'WIEEF
By Rk EEA2023¢&2022¢12
B 318 &SR WA AR XK
REEFEARBENER - ESFE A
EEAEE2023F12831HIEFEEN
EHABRBKMER (B E20226F12H31
HBIEFE | &) > UREBERFERIK
T o JR20234F K20224F 128311 » 14
BEAREBRRERATARBLRKEE
SENEHR

R B B BIRIARR R B KRB > Fr A AR
B -—ENEEHAERNKLEERN
BANE REARBHERRTEE
SFEEBBESEN—EAARBHN—RX
MHEME-

ZotBNEEKRBEAEREHBEA
BAREBIGEMREFEFEREMGE
RENERFAELNHER X B RA
—REBIUBEGERE2023F12831
H > BShinhan Bank Co., Lid&E&&E
T (BEMNBREREREMBE KERH
EEMBEE8) EABFEUEEE
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as
investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk. Information
about the plan is disclosed below:

(i) The amount recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position is as follows:

Present value of wholly or partly
funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Net defined benefit retirement

scheme assets FEB

A portion of the above asset is expected to be
recovered after more than one year. However, it is
not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts recoverable in the next twelve months, as
future contributions will also relate to future services
rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The Group expects to pay
US$898,000 (2022: US$815,000) in contributions to
defined benefit retirement schemes during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

(ii) Plan assets consist of the following:

RERFEEEY

Cash and cash equivalents

There were no asset-liability matching strategies used
by the scheme of the Group.

SEBEENAREE

RER MBI BEE

13. EE4EF (@

(b) RERmBAEE &

$RE (@)

ZEtEEAEEmBEEER NKE
BB ~ ) 2R L R A #r S R BR o B R R St

ERAMOBREEZIRE

BIMBRINELT -
() RiEEHBERREDPREINE
BEOTF .
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$°000 US$'000
FET FET
13,272 12,140
(13,669) (12,310)
(397) (170)
THBEN DB EE—

FELUERE AT &2
Bk 3K+ — @ B 7 BJ U [ 9
SEDHILFATT ) BEKK

B9 1 =R 7 R £ R 2R 4R i A9 BR
BUKRKRKRBEERRMN TS

BENECERE NEBTEH
REZE2023F 128310 LEE
ERREZTHEKTE A
1 898,0005% 7t (20224
815,0003% 7T) ©

(ii) AEEEGEUTEE:

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
(13,669) (12,310)

FERNGI U BERXBEER
fRUCEC SR B o
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

(iii)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations:

At beginning of the year

Remeasurements:

- Actuarial losses from
changes in experience

- Actuarial gains from
changes in financial
assumptions

Benefits paid by the scheme
Current service cost

Interest cost

Exchange differences

At end of the year

RER]
E%E‘l‘i 5

F%Eﬁﬁ

—MHRREBERZ

EE U

stEI5Z S Z 18 F!
IR AR A A
AESY2%:S
ERERR

RER

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023

13.

BE&F (@)

(b) REZEAE &)
AN
(iii) RIE SEERREEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
12,140 14,589
824 124
(176) (1,590)
12,788 13,123
(1,176) (1,884)
1,290 1,415
576 347
(206) (861)
13,272 12,140




197

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn O RS i R B 5

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L FE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

13.

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme

(continued)

Korea (continued)

(iv) Movements in plan assets:

At beginning of the year

Group’s contributions paid to
the plan

Benefits paid by the plan

Return on plan assets less
than discount rate

Administrative expenses paid
from plan assets

READ
225 [ @) 51 8 52 B9 it R

st 2 8F]
BRI IR 5 8B E R R

sStEIEE AT

Interest income FMEUWA
Exchange differences PE R E%E
At end of the year RER
(v) Amounts recognized in the consolidated profit or loss

and other comprehensive income are as follows:

Current service cost

Net interest on defined benefit
assets

Administrative expenses paid
from plan assets

Total amounts recognized in
profit or loss

Net actuarial losses/(gains)
Return on plan assets less than
discount rate

Total amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income,
before tax

Tax expenses
Total amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income

RBF AR A A

REZmEERN
FBFER

STREES AT

P18 o b SR AU AR 2R

BEEE (k&) FEE
BERITIRENEE ELR

REMEEIRE R 4858
PRI AL

MIAR S
B E M2 E R ST AV AR RR

BE®EF &

(b) REZmmENKETE @)
BE #3)
(iv) STEIEENED
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
(12,310) (12,906)
(2,302) (1,882)
1,176 1,901
205 191
31 30
(671) (375)
202 731
(13,669) (12,310)
(v) iR ETREMEE RGP
SBHEERUT ¢
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
1,290 1,415
(95) (28)
31 30
1,226 1,417
648 (1,466)
205 191
853 (1,275)
(199) 295
654 (980)

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

(vi) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Discount rate IRE
Future salary increases RERFE EFH

The below analysis shows how the net defined benefit
retirement scheme assets as at 31 December 2023
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 1%
change in the significant actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate FIR=K
Future salary increases KK & LT

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum
of the returns on individual asset categories. The return
is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the
year, for returns net of administrative costs, over the
entire life of the related obligations.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

13. EE4EF (@

(b)

REXmBAE (&

AN
(vi) 20234 2022412831 1F
ANEEEERIZOT :
2023 2022
20235 20224
4.97-5.04% 4.80%4.84%
5.00% 5.00%

LR B 2023412831
HB®E S =R KT8 & EF
EEREABEBRN1%EE
migm, Ged) :

Increase Decrease
in 1% in 1%
1% W 1%
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(915) 1,048
1,039 (925)

£ SRR E D A PR R R B R 3R
B RERRKRONVELILEAERD
o At EE B E B ERR
Z ERIERA R B o

SEEENAARBAOEREXZE
ERBEKREASG  mIFEH
EEHHNERZA - BHRD
REBEFEVN TS HABEBEEE
HRATRTHREBRNER
IR E -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME - -BER=E

Electric
Freehold and steam Office and
land in generating electronic Motor Construction
Korea Buildings facilities equipment vehicles in progress Total
AR RE N BNRER WAZR
XAERELH BF EERE Er®fb _E HRIR Mt
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
cosT BA
At 1 January 2022 120221818 67,880 1,091,806 5,305,584 16,456 8,652 1,022,774 7,513,152
Exchange differences ERER (3,845) (155,632) (385,191) (2,719) (766) (62,641) (610,794)
Additions RE - 4,160 40,232 2,965 1,407 413,360 462,124
Disposals BE - (44,945) (38,174) (543) (771) (756) (85,189)
Transfer =8 - 93,853 1,099,680 157 = (1,193,690) =
At 31 December 2022 R2022512831H K
and 1 January 2023 2023%151H 64,035 989,242 6,022,131 16,316 8,522 179,047 7,279,293
Exchange differences ERES (1,169) (17,731) (101,376) (323) (147) (2,907) (123,653)
Others ﬁm - 23,215 (25,199) 14l 2 - (1,911)
Additions RE - 11,010 14,220 3,366 1,155 501,406 531,157
Disposals RE - (8) (15,488) (586) (524) - (16,606)
Transfer E - 29,008 128,558 579 - (158,235) -
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 62,866 1,034,826 6,022,846 19,423 9,008 519,311 7,668,280
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND  R3Hir & R {E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 120221818 - 202,184 1,044,748 7,269 3,628 - 1,257,829
Exchange differences ERERE - (35,108) (72,933) (1,915) (236) = (110,192)
Charge for the year FRRY - 40,113 291,684 2,927 1,245 - 335,969
Impairment losses recognized in RABE PR R ERR
profit or loss - 11,848 54,963 - - - 66,811
Disposals RE - (44,798) (37,524) (504) (692) - (83,518)
At 31 December 2022 2022126318 K
and 1 January 2023 2023F1B1H - 174,239 1,280,938 7,777 3,945 - 1,466,899
Exchange differences EREH - (3,505) (21,156) (179) (72) - (24,912)
Charge for the year ERAZ - 46,163 292,692 3,473 1,412 - 343,740
Others Hth - 1,162 (295) 8 1 - 876
Impairment losses recognized in PARE PR R EER
profit or loss (note) (i3t - 7,659 - - - - 7,659
Disposals BE - (2) (8,425) (521) (444) - (9,392)
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 - 225,716 1,543,754 10,558 4,842 - 1,784,870
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 December 2023 #2023%128318 62,866 809,110 4,479,092 8,865 4,166 519,311 5,883,410
At 31 December 2022 120225128315 64,035 815,003 4,741,193 8,539 4,577 179,047 5,812,394

At 31 December 2023, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership

1£2023F 128318 AEE W KEGIREES

certificates of certain buildings with carrying values of US$8,799,000
(2022: US$18,055,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, borrowing costs of
US$7,373,000 (2022: US$8,815,000) were capitalized into the cost of
construction in progress. The capitalization rates used to determine the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are ranged from
2.5% to 4.9% (2022: from 3.1% to 4.4%).

8,799,0003 7T (20224 :
TEFHNEB#EE-

18,055,000 70) 9%

HZE2023F12B31HIEEE - BEERE
7,373,000 7% (20224 : 8,815,000% 70) B
CATERIREMA -ARBREEE Ezziséztsft
SHEMBRERNF2.5%F4.9% (20224F :
F3A%E4.4%) ©

2023 EEHE @ FEERHERERERAD
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain amounts of the property,
plant and equipment have been pledged as securities for the
borrowings. Details are set out in note 31.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognized an impairment loss
of US$7,659,000 on certain property, plant and equipment for a hydro power plant in
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region. During the year, the power plant recoded losses
due to decrease in power generation arising from decrease in water inflows. As a result,
the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the power plant and the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment was written down to the recoverable amount of
US$5,340,000. Impairment loss of US$7,659,000 was recognized in “Other gains and
losses”. The estimate of the recoverable amount was based on value in use calculation.
The calculation is based on the present value of the cash flow projections derived from
the most recent financial budgets approved by management. The cash flow projection is
discounted using discount rate of 6.96%.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023

14.

ME BB R (B

R2023F K2022F12B31H  EFTYE -BE
EXECHEEWIRREAEEER FBEHN
fi5E31 0

W

B F2023F12A31BLEEE  AEBMERAMLER
BE—RAKNBEBRNE TYE - BB KR EEDR
{ER5187,659,0003% 75 °c £ > AR KR 2 B A T B 5
HEBERPDEM T ZBIHMAIS - Rt ANE T
T BN KREEEE TREYE KRERREHENR
E R R0 E W[l £%85,340,0003 7T o R E A 18
7,659,000 7o i MELfth Uk 25 R 5 481 PO e R o AT UK [B] &
BHRBEEAEAESEGH FENKREEREEE
EHAENERMPBEESENBERAARE RS
TTERAIE 6. 96 %M ITIR R EITINIR o
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15. [FRHEEE

Leasehold Land and
Sea areas lands buildings Total
s AELH T RIEF st
us$’000 Us$’000 USs$’000 USs$’000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2022 %2022F181H
Carrying amount IREE - 62,734 37,581 100,315
Exchange differences PER = RE - (5,794) (2,731) (8,525)
Additions B - 13,238 6,008 19,246
Disposals BE - - (488) (488)
Depreciation charge ERX - (1,624) (3,384) (5,008)
Lease modification HEEXK - - (292) (292)
As at 31 December 2022 and #2022512H31H K
1 January 2023 2023F1H1H
Carrying amount EREE - 68,554 36,694 105,248
Exchange differences [EREXE 11) (1,246) (611) (1,868)
Additions wNE 2,849 30,929 5,527 39,305
Depreciation charge MERX (46) (3,902) (4,365) (8,313)
Lease modification HEEK - = (2,456) (2,456)
As at 31 December 2023 722023%12831H
Carrying amount EREE 2,792 94,335 34,789 131,916

The Group leases land, sea area and buildings (including offices and
rooftops) for its operations. Other than the lease contracts of land use
rights and sea use right which are entered into for 1.5 to 40 years,
lease contracts for other assets are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 4
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings and office
buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties have been
presented in right-of-use assets and the building components have
been presented in property, plant and equipment.

2023 EERE @ PEFLIE

FEMBERELH BEHKEF (BERAER

B) BEEE R o bkt i K E A
ENHEEEEAE1.6E405F) HMBEEMAE
BESRREEMRET AP E4F - FHEHER
DEENBERZ-—HEES LESEERE
B9 A% 7R B 1% i o 72 7 E 1H B B3 R R 51 {5 1 BT
HPEE AEHERSRANERZLEESH
B TR BT o

SN REEERRBR T ERFRPABTF K
EERZEYEED (QEAMEE ) 195
MEBAN-AEEDEMN -—EEHRAEUREZ
LT ERD ZEMERTNEE LMD
ERAREERY) MBEBEBFRYE BERR
w25
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Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”)

or group of cash-generating units as follows:

55
16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
COST s
At 1 January BW1B1H 167,513 182,908
Exchange differences EEREZE (2,779) (15,395)
At 31 December ®12831H 164,734 167,513
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RitBERE
At 1 January M1B18 (12,917) (14,110)
Impairment losses recognized in R NRERIREEE
profit or loss (8,681) -
Exchange differences ERELE 216 1,193
(21,382) (12,917)
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December ’12831H 143,352 154,596

BEEENREEEEMUZH

BRI

AEOEEUTREELEN ((REELE

fii)) SRR ELEBAHER !

2023 2022
20235 20224
USs$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Wind Energy Subsidiaries R EM B A

(as defined below) (note) (BFERE T (W1:2) 110,337 112,560

Solar Energy Subsidiaries KIZEMB AR
(as defined below) (note) (BEER T (H:2) 31,589 40,600
Multiple units without significant goodwill WEBBAEENZEE[ 1,426 1,436
143,352 154,596

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections are derived from the most recent financial budgets approved
by management which cover operation periods ranging from 6 to 22 years (2022: 7
to 23 years). The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rates ranged
from 10.20% to 11.35% (2022: 10.18% to 11.89%). Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which
is determined based on the installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy
Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries and management’s expectations for the
market development. The estimated annual average growth rates in electricity generation
volume range from -11.4% to 7.9% (2022: 0% to 9.4%).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, due to a general decrease in electricity
generation volume growth rate adopted in the projected cash flows and a decrease in
the operation periods as the time elapsed, impairment losses of US$8,335,000 and
US$346,000 were recorded in “Other gains and losses” in relation to certain CGUs
of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
Two cash generating units, CGN Solar Energy (Dachaidan) Development Co., Ltd (5h
B APREE (K B) B3 ABR/AB]) and CGN Lingu Longgang Wind Power Co.
Ltd (PEZEERERE A I EAIEAE) have been reduced to their recoverable
amount of US$30,795,000 and US$16,947,000 respectively and adverse change in
the assumptions used in the calculations of recoverable amounts would result in further
impairment losses.

A reduction in annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume of 5% will
result in additional impairment losses of US$775,000 and US$1,698,000 to the CGUs
of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
An increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in additional impairment losses of
US$3,049,000 and US$1,841,000 to the CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries
and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.

BE (A

@ﬁﬁEMﬁQEEEEZH
B &)

et -

AEBNEFR2015FWEZPEZAENHE AR
(”ﬂ%l‘ﬁ@’&_ﬂ)&EA2015£ENQE§ZEPET§K&%§E
HEBRABNMEB AR (TXEEMBAT) » Hi¥
%%ﬁiﬁﬁz%ét%uiﬁﬁuLA%&HWE;EJ&K BB &R
SARAXGERNBAITKCEBLERERBESSE
BT -REMBARIRAGRENBAS BEILETE
EREAATE ZEHABENERBESBRREE
SEMEEHENRSRERANREMSE &R
EHREFNFEEEBHENRITHMHES  HiE6
FE224F (2022%F | 7E23F) WAEH R REEA
ThiR#10.20%%E 11.35% (20224 : 10.18%%11.89%)
ZIREFF - HMAEERAEENETERREEE
FEEHM REEHE A E &AM B A B R
RE BEZRELEEBHTHERBBHERE
Bt R BEFHFEEERTNF-11.4%E7.9% (20224 :
0%ZE9.4%) Ao

§§§2023E12H31E¢¢F§’Eﬁfﬁiﬂﬂfﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬂé
ﬁﬁE’\JéﬁfE‘EE’i‘E ?E‘Fﬁé&*ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ?}%ﬁﬁﬂw
AEBLABGENBATAKRENBATINE FTHRE
EEBMADRN THMtE R EE B TRSRERIE
8,335,000 75 12 346,000% 75 c MEARE E L B E
BARBRE (K& B) B E A RA B %R A = R
NEBERRATED A AEEH O] IKE£2830,795,000
FE T X%16,947,000% 75> MA R st E ol B £ 5 R R
HIRERARF EE O ERE— P REBIE

FEENFEHRERRES T ERNEB KB
BB KRB EABNREELBMUD G HREE
RAER5$8775,0003% 7T &% 1,698,0005 7T » Fr IR K M
0.5% B EHNAEBMABEMBATDREEBHBELATN
HEEE BN R HIREINAER83,049,000% 7T &
1,841,0003 7T ©

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of unlisted investments in associates
Share of post-acquisition loss and exchange FE{LURBER B RER =48

differences

The following list contains the particulars of associates of the Group,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price

is not available:

Place of
establishment
and principal
place of Registered and
Name of associates business Legal form paid up capital
P33 3 R
BERARRE FRERME  SERH RS R R
Hubei Huadian Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign equity joint Renminbi (“RMB”")
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Huadian”") venture 950,000,000
MEEBSREUREEERAT HE FHRERELE AR TAR%))
(THI6EE)) 950,000,0007%
Hubei Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB945,000,000
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Xisaishan") joint venture
ALBELETRRAR E POABAELE B #945,000,0007
(FHIEEE L))
Jiangxi United Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB76,328,972
(“Jiangxi United”) joint venture
IRMAERERAR (DIAKS E FAEBRELE AE#76,328,9727C
Inner Mongolia East Electric The PRC State-owned holding RMB242,688,994
Power Trading Center Co., Ltd. enterprise
(“Inner Mongolia East Electric Power”)
RAEERBENRZPLERAF HE EEEREE AR ¥242,688,9947C
(ARGRBEN)
Notes: Mzt -
(i) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over (i)
Jiangxi United as they have nominated a representative on the board of
directors and participated in policy-making processes.
(ii) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over (ii)

17. RIS QTR

REEABMNIELETMREZMAE

~

Inner Mongolia East Electric Power as they nominated a representative on the
board of directors and participated in policy-making processes.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method

in the consolidated financial statements.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting right
held by the Group

sEEFMFRARREE R
REELLA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
49% 49%
49% 49%
6.55% 6.55%
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(Hzi) (&)
9.34% 9.34%
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(&t (i)

2023 2022
2023% 20204
US$°000 US$'000
FE7 FE7
150,569 150,569
(74,640) (76,301)
75,929 74268
TR AEBHELATNER (E AT
AT LHAREE B TR BEL R EA) |

Principal activity

TEEH

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMEEEN

Generation and supply of
electricity

EERMEEEN

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMEEEN

Operation of electricity
trading platform

(i) EE

EZgRARAEEARIAMESAEAXE
N REARHERLAESFE—RARKSH

REBRE

EZERRFEEHNATERIE

NBEEKR

FENDFRARACRLEFT—RAERK

BERE BT

LHFFEBE AT RA R

RAIRe

RIZEHMBHR
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17. REEQATN#ED ()
FEMEATMBENBE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarized financial information of
material associates

Summarized financial information of the above associates, adjusted for LB EATDNMBEENBMEREN T (&
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying EMBBRENTANERFHBARE WHES

amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below: MHBRRMWIREELRR) -
= = 3 =
(a) Hubei Huadian (a) #AJLEETE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FETT
Gross amount of the associate I EiE AT 2 48%8
Current assets RENEE 65,276 105,184
Non-current assets ERBEE 425,305 427,188
Current liabilities mENaE (123,799) (147,953)
Non-current liabilities FEREFEIE (225,821) (245,882)
Equity g 140,961 138,537
Revenue WA 330,779 409,802
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive EN&EF (F58) & E
income for the year e e 48 28 5,032 (17,784)
Dividends received from the FRNEHEQABWEBEE
associate during the year - -
2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Reconciled to Group’s interest BAEBRNKEATIHERZ ZHER
in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of BE A BB EARRE
the associate 140,961 138,537
Group’s effective interest REEZER#ER 49% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of REBBGECHE AT FEE
the associate 69,071 67,883
69,071 67,883
Goodwill mE 1,591 1,591
Carrying amount in the consolidated NRiz &M FERERZREE
financial statements 70,662 69,474

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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17.

(b) Jiangxi United

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Non-controlling interests

Group’s effective interest
Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

REE AR 2 4%
MEEE

JERBMEE

JEREEE

i

WA

FAEMN 2B AR

FAEBERRBENRE

BAEENBE QAR 2 Bk

AEMZ BER R
AERBEZHEARFEE

Carrying amount in the consolidated R#R & FEME Z REE

financial statements

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

REEARNED (B

(b) IFEEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FETT
24,510 23,154
139,735 102,359
(27,167) (19,358)
(105,715) (82,858)
31,363 23,297
20,036 20,702
8,535 8,681
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FETT
31,363 23,297
(620) (630)
30,743 22,667
6.55% 6.55%
2,014 1,485
2,014 1,485
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17. REEQATN#ED ()
(c) AXREREE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(c) Inner Mongolia East Electric Power

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Gross amount of the associate  NHiE AT Z4%E
Current assets B E 34,317 35,720
Non-current assets EMBEE 923 754
Current liabilities E=KE (422) (1,047)
Non-current liabilities EREBER - -
Equity e 34,818 35,427
Revenue WA 515 907
Profit and total comprehensive EWNEA R Em W m AR EE
income for the year 2 37
Dividends received from the FREBE AR WEBRE
associate during the year - -
2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
Reconciled to the Group’s BMAEEMRBEATER ZHIR
interest in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of BE A B R EEARRE
the associate 34,818 35,427
Group’s effective interest REBECERER 9.34% 9.34%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBBGEZHEABREE
the associate 3,253 3,309
Carrying amount in the RirEMBIRERZREE
consolidated financial statements 3,253 3,309

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT
FVOCI

Investments in unlisted equity securities FLEMERTARKE

The unlisted equity securities are shares in 3 (2022: 3) companies
established in the PRC with limited liability and engaged in operating
of electricity trading platforms. The Group designated its investments in
these companies at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held
for strategic purpose. No dividends were received on the investments
during the year (2022: nil).

19. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position

represents:

Tax payable FESIRIE

- PRC EIT — B EPTER
- KCIT —ERE P EFRER
Tax payable eI I8

Tax recoverable B R

- PRC EIT — B EPTRR

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023

18.

19.

BERUAAREESER
285t AHtEmEImAY
THEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 USs$’000
FET FETT
3,354 3,411

FLEHEETEB=R (2022F | =) HHE
BMIIRREBENRZFEZERAT ZRMD -
SEERENRZERATZRELREAURAAE
BEstEAEH Gt AEMEEKRE (R #E) »
BERAZEREFEREEN - ERNIEMRZ
L BIWERE (20224 @ £8) o

AR e MR R RPBIFREIR

(a) #REMFARRRPAIENER
Wimds -

2023 2022
20234 20224F
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FE7T
10,630 6,928
13,431 23,462
24,061 30,390
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
19 524
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognized:

(i) Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities

N

sm A\ g

87 5 ¥ 2% Bid 5F

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L FE

19.

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/
assets recognized and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

At 1 January 2022 (restated)

Exchange differences (restated)

Credited to hedging reserve
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (restated)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023
(restated)

Exchange differences

Credited to hedging reserve

(Charged)/credited to profit or loss

At 31 December 2023

1202218 1R (EE5)
EREE (LE7)

AN RGRE

(in%B) /3t AES (BE5)

12022512831 A R2023E1 810 (E5))
ARG
({nkeE) /FAER

12023512A31R

e
G@

(b)

MBI RRPBIFRSH

EEE I:l'L:‘

E .

0]

BEREBEEERE

BEERASTERAREAE

B ERSTHOEE

AE)

UTRAEERBEFECHE
REBRERE (BE) BE

L/( R HEEF) !
Fair value
Withholding  (Accelerated)/ Revaluation adjustment
tax on decelerated of of property,
distributable tax right-of-use plant and
profits  depreciation assets equipment Others Total
ATE (B /HR g BER
AR ik Eff  REAARE
it nE  [ERERE g2 A @i
Us$000 Us$ 000 Us$ 000 s 000 Us$ 000 Us$ 000
T£m F£7 F£1 F£7 FE£7 FET
(40,465) (1,036) (1778) 21,169 1433 (26,677)
- 1,160 1,735 (2,889) (1,088) (1,082)
- - - - 2,247 2,247
(3,535) 5,119 517 (931) 312 1,482
(44,000) 5,243 (5,526) 17,349 2,904 (24,030)
- (93) 92 (172) i) (160)
- - - - 1,975 1975
(3,625) 345 502 (89) (17) (2,984)
(47,625) 5,495 (4932) 17,088 4775 (25,199)
2023 FERE @ PEBEZAERERERAT
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19.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognized: (continued)

(1)

(i)

Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities
(continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets IRIEIRIEE &
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEA R

Deferred tax assets and liabilities not
recognized

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately US$182,913,000 (2022:
approximately US$145,346,000), available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
will be expired at various times within a period of five
years from the year of origination.

At 31 December 2023, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to US$508,230,000 (2022: US$460,373,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of US$45,318,000 (2022:
US$43,806,000) have not been recognized in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023

19.

n-F

(#&)

(b)

B BRRRFBFASH

EEWLLm EEERE

& (&)

() EEREEEREGRSRE
R EB 3RV ES) (BB)
MEBNGEMBERRRMS
ETEERBEEEREBEH
HH - UTAMYBFREEN
FREIRIEFR IBAS RREI D AT
2023 2022

20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FE7T
(Restated)
€<= 7))
27,004 24,757
(52,203) (48,787)
(25,199) (24,030)

(i) KREDEEREEERE

&

R2023%E 128310 A&EEA
REARIEREA7182,913,000
E7t (20224 © £9145,346,000
E7T)  AJEEHEARKEN A
RARKGEHRNAAEE M
BowER R IEEEERIEIL
RMEEE - REBERNESR
EEERAEHRBATEREER
HHo

R2023F 128310 &~&EH
B EAE R IKERNE M
R Z%874508,230,0003%
T (20224 : 460,373,000
7o) cAEBMMZERZ AN D
IR FE 1 R 18 3 4 B SRR IE AR 1B
& (545,318,000% 7T (20224 :
43,806,000%7t) » RRB AR
BEHZENBATNRER
Ko BEEBEROUBEREED

BERE D IRZF A o
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Value-added tax recoverable
Prepaid insurance expenditure and
usage right of electricity
transmission facilities
Prepayment for maintenance
Others

INVENTORIES

Coal and oil

Spare parts and supplies
Wood pellet

REC (note)

Goods in transit - wood pellet

Note:

REC represented renewable energy certificates
sale.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables - contracts with
customers
Less: allowance for credit losses

BEWME BERREERE

B[O 7R
TR R K
EWARE L bk EdEy

RERNNE
HAth

ESo =P
R R it iE

NE AR
AIBEREREE (at)
TERYE — ANEFAHL

generated by the Group and held for

BSRPIRR—F R &R
W EEEEEE

20. HhIEREIEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
147,835 63,256
138,494 184,589
4,816 173
14,793 14,310
10,867 13,849
316,805 276,177
e
21. 1
2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
5,550 11,191
19,295 20,247
6,229 5,817
13,574 25,792
- 3,281
44,648 66,328
Hst
OEEE RSB A ER AR ENA B
BEE
o)
22. B REURERFR
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FE7T
780,784 751,352
(14,756) (12,038)
766,028 739,314

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates.

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61F290H
91 - 180 days 912 180H
Over 180 days 180H A k£

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$174,896,000
(2022: US$317,820,000) from the sales of electricity and other
services, which are due within 20 to 90 days from the date of billing.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$591,132,000
(2022: US$421,494,000) from the tariff income receivables. These
receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant government
authorities pursuant to the 2020 Notice (see note 4). The collection
of tariff income receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalization of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC
government authorities to the state grid companies. As a result, the
tariff income receivables are not considered as overdue or in default.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix based on the historical settlement records, latest
aging profile of those receivables and forward looking information that
is available without undue cost and effort. During the year ended 31
December 2023, expected credit losses of US$2,931,000 in respect of
trade receivables were recognized (2022: reversal of expected credit
losses of US$3,182,000) and expected credit losses of US$5,662,000
in respect of contract assets were recognized (2022: US$5,973,000).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in note 36(a).

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

B ZRUWARR (&)

MF&EFNPRREHRREREH R AT
BEEE) 2N EZEBBRRRESEEHE
BHEBRE DT

2023 2022
20234 20224
US$°000 US$°000
FET FET
215,900 340,956
15,562 16,301
57,075 47,574
477,491 334,483
766,028 739,314

R2023F 128318 > AEBEMNE 5 EUWER A
HREEXEHEEIREMRENEREES
174,896,000 75 (20224 : 317,820,000 7T)
FREUAET > B ER A% ZH AR 20%/90
RAZ AT

R2023F 128318 ZEEN E 57 FE U R
EHROEOEREEWEEBEVRANERAES
591,132,00035 7T (20224 : 421,494,000 7T)
RIFEWEBR TR - IR 52020 B A (B2 RMIsE4)
5% 5 & N BR 7R 23 & U AB B8 BT 2B P9 AY 2B {28 4a B
WA *EE%%LET*EE@EPIBZH*BFT%E%I
RERRBANEZNEEHERERE LB ET
EE RAMAWRAEAARELY -

AEEREENRE2HEHEEEENSHTE
ZEESRBERAEREENGEREE &
Rt EREZSEBERNBELEE LR
RERRBERINEBBSHARE N ES
AR E R EIEEEL - 8122023512
B31HLFE REZEWEREIREREE
E5482,931,000E 7T (20224 : BERFEHEEE
$8#[013,182,000%7T) K& R EERB B
5 B §5485,662,0003 7T (20224 : 5,973,0003
JT) °©

ERAEEEERRKLE S BWIRS FEEEEE’J
EERBRE—FFIEH K EE36(a

A5 9 3 T B 55 B A BR TR A B R R T4 4R

=]
R °
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CONTRACT ASSETS

Tariff income from sales of HEBEEREMEEEWA
renewable energy
Less: allowance for credit losses

(note 22)

B EERBREE
(Htat22)

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales of
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the List by the relevant government
authorities. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the relevant right becomes unconditional, upon the registration of
the Group’s respective operating power plants in the List.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
contract assets are set out in note 36(a).

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

The balance includes value-added tax recoverable of US$87,325,000
(2022: US$77,260,000) and other miscellaneous deposits and
prepayments.

All of the balances are expected to be recovered or recognized as
expense within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all amounts are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and recoverable/(repayable) on demand, except for an
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of US$1,209,000 (2022:
US$1,154,000) which is interest bearing at 6.55% (2022: 6.55%) per
annum, repayable in 2032 and is therefore shown as non-current
liabilities.

23.

24,

25.

BREE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
383,732 364,333
(15,586) (10,114)
368,146 354,219

GREEEMNAPEANMSERXBEBEEDTH
ERERBIFEUR BB WA > 2R IA 1 75 A8 R BT
T A O A B BB o 1A RE WG R B A AR
R AEFEESEEBRMAFTER GF
BESEEESBIARN -

EHAERGEERRAGREEMEENEER
BB RO — 2 sF BB Y 5E36(a)

H R MR IR R TR (SR IE

BREIE A UK Bl (EF287,325,0003% 7T (2022
E 77,260,000%70) U R EMBEER S KEN
_h
TR

‘IJJH

BRI ARBGHRRE R —FRRESREDBMAX -

el () AR MBAE,
FEHEERR AR SR TR I

R2023F K2022F12831H  FTE T EAEIE
B At BRBREKXREWE S (EBEB) » H—
S ETIEEARIREFRANIE1,209,0003E 7T (2022
£ 11,154,000 ) R EF)%E6.55% (20224
6.55%) 5t 8 > AR 2032 EE W H LS R A IE
mEaEe
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26.

Derivatives that are designated and effective I57E &AM IEAS

as hedging instruments carried at AR EESRD
fair value: HATANTETAR:
Foreign exchange forward contracts INEREAS R
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: MEHRENSHA
Current TREN

The major terms of the foreign exchange forward contracts are as

follows.

Notional amounts Maturity

L&RE ZHA

At 31 December 2022

2022F12831H

Buy Canadian (“CAD”) 96,109,384 Range from 9 January 2023 to
13 December 2023

B A96,109,384/0 7% (M07Ty) N F2023FE1H9BE
2023%12813H

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

TTEEMIA

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Assets Assets

BE BE

Us$’000 us$’000
FET FET

- 8,300

- 8,300

- 8,300

SNEEBI SR EZ AT

Exchange rate

EZX

Range from CAD1: KRW815.50 to
CAD1: KRW823.67

AF1IN7T : 815.5088 T E
10T © 823.6782 7T
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The amounts recognized for the foreign exchange forward contracts
do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position since the right of set-off of the
recognized amounts is only enforceable upon an event of default.

It is the policy of the Group to enter into foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the foreign currency risk associated with certain
committed purchase transactions covering 100% of the exposure.
Basis adjustments are made to the initial carrying amounts of
inventories when the anticipated purchases take place.

For the hedges of highly probable forecast purchases, as the critical
terms (i.e. the notional amount, life and underlying) of the foreign
exchange forward contracts and their corresponding hedged items
are the same, the Group performs a qualitative assessment of
effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the forward contracts
and the value of the corresponding hedged items will systematically
change in opposite direction in response to movements in the
underlying exchange rates.

The Group has entered into contracts to purchase raw materials from
suppliers in Canada. The Group has entered into foreign exchange
forward contracts (for terms exceeding a year) to hedge the exchange
rate risk arising from these committed future purchases.

As at 31 December 2023, the foreign exchange forward contracts
has expired. The Group no longer entered any derivative financial
instruments. A net gain of US$2,170,000 (2022: US$Nil) is reclassified
from hedging reserve to profit or loss. The aggregate amount of gain
under foreign exchange forward contracts deferred in the hedging
reserve relating to these committed future purchase transactions is
US$NiIl (2022: US$6,161,000). During the year ended 31 December
2023, the loss in fair value of hedging instrument of forecast
purchases recognized in other comprehensive income, net of deferred
tax, is US$6,487,000 (2022: loss of US$6,751,000).

26.

TTEEMIA @)

MAEERSARBNS AR SR AL
AR BRRENEHNEE DR EHTR
524 BRSO MR I B A B A0 T 4 B 75 T 3 1 2
GE

FAEBPIBEATIIERERUEEAS
TRARBRZ MBI ERE > UEBEE100%
FERO - ZEEHFRERER  BEENNR
IREEETEHAE

PMIBARREETHNRMARBZHTMES AR
SNEEBERNEZER BRE2E HRR
1289) BEMBRNEPREEAR HEAERS
ERMEETEES G ERAERGEEER
AP RENEEREEREXZHMAR
3 2 [ £ B o

AEH BTG R Lm0 S A AR 7 R R A
HeREBMBTIUNERRAR (HRBE—
F) UH P ZERERRRBIAELENERR

B o

R2023F12B31H I ERBEREEM > &
EBABIUFEATESRITIE - BH P EE
EBHEEREM BN F482,170,0005% 7T
(20224 : BET) o N A B Z S A& R K HF
B ZWE R EETRIENIIEREERNK

mAETEA T T (20224 © 6,161,000557T) ©
HZE2023F12831BLELEE REMEE KRS
MRNERRES P TAEZ AAEESBE G0
FRIEIEFIE) %6,487,0005% 70 (20224 : 518
6,751,000 7T) ©
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 1.65% per annum as at 31 December
2023 (2022: 0.01% to 2.5%). The pledged bank deposits
carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.59% per
annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 0.1% to 5.15%).

Included in the cash and cash equivalents, deposits of
US$31,920,000 (2022: US$36,828,000) are made to CGNPC
Huasheng Investment Limited (“CGNPC Huasheng”).
deposits are unsecured, interest bearing at market rates
ranging from 0.15% to 0.50% (2022: 0.001% to 0.15%) and
recoverable on demand. As the Group can withdraw these
deposits without giving any notice and without suffering any
penalty, the directors of the Company consider that these
deposits made to CGNPC Huasheng qualified as cash and

cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of
US$235,865,000 (2022: US$325,547,000) are deposited in
CGN Finance Co., Ltd (“CGN Finance”), a fellow subsidiary
established in the PRC with limited liability and a non-banking
financial institution subject to the regulations of the People’s
Bank of China and the China Banking Regulatory Commission,

in the PRC.

Pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31), and it cannot be
withdrawn prior to the approval of the relevant banks.

Short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rate ranging from
1.10% to 1.55% per annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
from 1.55% to 1.65%) with maturity period for more than three

months.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

27. REKMFESFEY FGHRR
TR BIRRIRITER

(a)

HERIBEEEYN2023F12831H
BEENF0.01%E1.65% (20224 :
0.01%ZE2.5%) WHIFH X E - BIE
FRIRITIF AR 2023F 12831 HIREE
N F0.01%ZE3.59% (20224 : 0.1%E
5.15%) BHIBHAI R B o

MABRESTERASEEDNER
31,920,000 7t (20224 : 36,828,000
EX)BRAERERREERAT
(THEZER)) NER - ZZEETRA
IR AN F0.15%F0.50% (2022
E 10.001%ZE0.15%) W HFIZ st B0

REZR A Y [o] o A4 EAEMIRENZ
FER (BABLHEMNEAAFTEZE
FERES) >  AARNERRA FHRIRA
EZERNEREEREFARERRA
=EEBY-

R2023F 12831 B RkBEEE
B4 235,865,000E 75 (20224 :
325,547,000%7t) EFE AR BEZTHE
BREMEAE ((FEZME) - FEZ
MHEA—ZRPRPEUERSEF RN
YHRARMBAT  REIERITE R
¥ BAETHEARETRDPEIRITE
EREEEEGMNRA

B IRITERDIRE FIRIT > LUER
B AEBRTEE (fsEs1) E52
BRARITOFF IR A A R E

R2023F 128310 BHAIR1ITERIZE
EFETEMZE110%FE1.55% (20224 :
1.55%%1.65%) st B » REHAHAR 5 =
BRL E-
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 27.
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

REMFEFEY - FTHRIR
TR ERRIRITFER

1
(%)

(b)

R EESEENERN
HER

TERHAAERKRERETHNERE
28 OFERERIFRTEH -MED
HELEZEEARTRBARKRRS
RERRAERGERTRELRTD
BAREEDHELEZRERE -

Amounts

Loans Amounts due to non-

Bank Other payables Lease from fellow due to fellow controlling
borrowings and accruals liabilities idiari idiari Total

At RERA

EfiRER HEARN EfiF% EfEER
RiTE EEER HERR L KEARZRE RRRE At
Us§000 Us$000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Us$000 Uss'000 Uss'000
& F£r £z 7 £ £z e

(note 31) (note 29) (note 32) (note 30) (note 25) (note 25)

(1) (Hiz229) (Hi32) (H0) (Ht2s) (Hit2s)
At 1 January 2022 1202051818 4,245,891 35,547 2,019,288 9,940 3,336 6,314,002
Financing cash flows (nofe) w&ﬁiﬁﬁm; 52 468,561 (162,818) (8,743) 390,826 (57546) (4,085) (155,457)
New leases entered - - 5716 - - - 5716
Interest expenses recognized - 163,009 2,115 - 61,908 73 227,105
Dividend declared - - - - - 4,576 4576
Foreign exchange translation (349,972) 8,542 2,607 (99,919) (2119) (1,969) (442,830)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 12022612831 B R2023%18 18 4,364,480 8,733 37,242 1,528,543 12,183 1931 5,953,112
Financing cash flows (nofe) BERSNE () 157,415 (151,250) (17,614) (105,020) (57,598) (4,680) (178,747)
New leases entered EiEng 6| - - 33,586 - - - 33,586
Interest expenses recognized BRRASEY - 150,944 2,006 - 59,740 75 212,765
Dividend declared BERKS - - - - - 3,641 3,641
Foreign exchange translation SERE (73,740) (133) (3,613) (13,417) (4,617) (40) (95,560)
At 31 December 2023 120235126318 4,448,155 8,294 51,607 1,410,106 9,708 927 5,928,797

Note: The cash flows from bank borrowings, lease liabilities, loans from
fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, and amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders make up the net amount of
proceeds and repayments in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

2023 FERE

Mz REABGEE -HE&GE -RERZ

WE’&TE’JQM‘%HE%WEQ

MIAR AN IFERRRRENER

Jﬁ%# AR IREMERAMF
SMERERRERENFHE-

@ FEERMERZRERAT
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27.

28.

=~

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 27.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(C) Amounts in the consolidated statement of cash flows for leases
comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows FARESHERE
Within investing cash flows FAREBERERE
Within financing cash flows FAREBERESRE
TRADE PAYABLES 28.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

0 - 60 days 0&E60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H U

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 48 days (2022:
27 days) for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are
settled within the credit period.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023

REMFEFEY - FTHRIR
@%%&Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
e,

(c) HeamenmERNHENHEEY

THIE:

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
2,535 2,085
3,262 12,750
17,614 8,743
23,411 23,578

B 5 B TRRTR

RESHR ZEEAHR2RNEZBOERR
BIBREC DATUN T o

2023 2022
20234 20224F
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FE7T
81,618 216,279
12,725 1,084
14,328 5,665
108,671 223,028

HZE2023F 12831 LLEE  BEERMWTY
EEHA48H (20224F : 27H) - AEBEEFIE
MEEREEERR  URFEREEARIEST
RIEEHRAEE o
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30.
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Construction costs payable

Staff costs payable

Accrued interest expense on
borrowings

Value-added tax payable

Others

Analyzed for reporting purposes as:

Current
Non-current

LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

BNEEER
FEAT 8 TR AR
FESHE &R B

PR ER
HAth

MEHREN DA
nE
IERED

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amounts represent:

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due within 1 year:

CGN Finance

CGN Wind Energy

CGNPC Huasheng

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
- due after 1 year:

CGN Finance

CGNPC Huasheng

China Clean Energy Development
Limited (“China Clean Energy”)

REBZRKBABNER

— 1 FEREIHA
FREZ M
hEZEE
PEZER

RERRELBHER

—1EREIE
HhEZR
REZER
HEEIR SR B 2

BRRAF

(TR BB RAETR)

29.

30.

Notes

et

i(a)

il

i(b)
il

sm A\ g

N

87 5 ¥ 2% Bid 5F

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L FE

Ht B mRIEREtE A

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
380,403 414,486
6,810 7,239
4,888 5,324
17,747 22,251
34,622 37,529
444,470 486,829
437,322 483,420
7,148 3,409
444,470 486,829

KEERKMEBLFNER

R20234F 2022512831 H » 2 FNIEIE .
2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
228,470 106,335
338,854 545,617
250,000 =
817,324 651,952
142,782 176,591
- 250,000
450,000 450,000
592,782 876,591

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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30. LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Notes:

(i)(a)

(i)(b)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,601,400,000 (equivalent to
US$226,100,000) (31 December 2022: RMB706,139,000 (equivalent to
US$101,390,000)) are unsecured, interest bearing at 2.35% to 3.30% (31
December 2022: 3.45% to 4.21%) per annum and repayable within one year;
and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB16,785,000 (equivalent to US$2,370,000)
(31 December 2022: RMB34,442,000 (equivalent to US$4,945,000)) are
unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced by the PRC
National Interbank Funding Center (“RMB Loan Prime Rate”) minus 0% to 1%
(81 December 2022: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0.60% to 1%) per annum
and repayable within one year.

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB8,150,000 (equivalent to US$1,151,000) (31
December 2022: RMB61,671,000 (equivalent to US$8,855,000) is unsecured,
interest bearing at 3.30% (31 December 2022: 3.60% to 4.21%) per annum
and repayable in 2038 (31 December 2022: 2030 to 2035); and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,003,134,000 (equivalent to
US$141,631,000) (31 December 2022: RMB1,168,213,000 (equivalent to
US$167,736,000)) are unsecured, interest bearing at the RMB Loan Prime
Rate minus 0% to 1.35% (31 December 2022: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus
0.60% to 1.35%) per annum and repayable in 2031 to 2040 (31 December
2022: 2031 to 2040).

Loan from CGN Wind Energy of RMB2,400,000,000 (equivalent to
US$338,854,000) (31 December 2022: RMB3,800,000,000 (equivalent to
US$545,617,000)) is unsecured, interest bearing at 2.40% (31 December
2022: 3.50%) per annum and repayable in 2024 (31 December 2022: 2023).

Loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250,000,000 (31 December 2022:
US$250,000,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3 months Secured
Overnight Financing Rate plus 1.30% (31 December 2022: 3 months London
Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.30%) per annum and repayable in 2024 (31
December 2022: 2024).

Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450,000,000 (31 December 2022:
US$450,000,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% (31 December
2022: 4.50%) per annum and repayable in 2025 (31 December 2022: 2025).

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

30. KRERRMBLEREMR
(#8)

REFPEZMBEHNERAR1,601,400,000
7t (18 *SSH* 226,100,000 7%) (2022412
A318 : AR#®¥706,139,0007T (#E R

101,390,000%%)) IR R =
2.35%ZE3.30% (20225128318 : 3.45%F
4.21%) sTERABAR—HEREE &

REFEZABNERAR16,785,0007T
(FE72,370,000%7T) (2022412831
H: AR#34,442,0007T (&7 4,945,000
E7T)) AJIEE R E2ERTEEFER
BRELARHARKERBENE (AR
BREEMNE)) BONE1%NEF] K (20224
12831H : A\RBEREBERNEF0.60%E
1%) st ERABR—FEREE-

REFPEZMBNERARES,150,0007T
(FBE 1,151, oooim) (20225F 12831
B: ARMG1,671 ,0007t (HHE 428,855,000
7%)) BRI T F AR R3.30% (20224
2H31H : 3.60%%4.21%) 5t S & 7Ei*2038
(20225 12831H : 20305 FE2035%) &
25 &
PEZBBNERARE1,003,134,000
(FBE 5 141,631,000 7T) (2022412
18 : AE"A% 168,213,00070 (B &K
3

7

an 1 % ﬂa-ﬁ? >Ht

6,000%7T)) AEIEFM - BARKER
EH0%ZE1.35% (20225F 128318
i BB B A ZIH0.6%ZE1.35%) MIEF]
K AR 20318 E 20404 (20225128
I 20315 FE20404F) g

EZRBENEMRAR?2400,000,000
(FB 8 #338,854,000% 7t) (2022412
B31H : AR ¥3,800,000,0007c (A&
545,617,000 77) ) 2 I I < SR FIK2.40%
(2022128318 : 3.50%) st B R AR
20244 (20225128310 : 20234) HiE

REPEZERNEMR250,000,0005 7T
(20222128318 : 250,000,000 77) %
I = 18 8 75 IR R AL I ]
1.30%(2022F12H31H : =@A8 fa H BT
REEFENM.30%) E’JE%‘J+E+§7§Z’EE’:‘
20244 (2022128318 : 2024%F) &8

REFREERERNEM450,000,000% 75
(2022&125 318 : 450,000,000 77) %
FIAT R EFIE4.50% (202246128318
4.50%) 5t B R BR2025% (2022512831
H : 2025%) (Eig

o3
I m:3
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31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
Secured P=Egi 2,716,937 2,864,220
Unsecured EEE 1,731,218 1,500,260
4,448,155 4,364,480
The maturity profile of RITEENEHBEROT :
bank borrowings is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR 494,635 957,392
After 1 year but within 2 years —F U EERBBmE 393,972 397,449
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU EERBARE 1,995,158 1,369,181
Over 5 years EEME 1,564,390 1,640,458
3,953,520 3,407,088
4,448,155 4,364,480
The exposure of the fixed-rate borrowings is as follows: EEEERRUWT :
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
Fixed-rate borrowings EEBE
Within 1 year —FR 64,271 651,551
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEMU EEFRBIBEMREF 35,248 34,032
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU EERBBERF 1,093,682 346,836
Over 5 years EEME 72,625 137,567
1,265,826 1,169,986

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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31. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the variable-rate borrowings is as follows:

Variable-rate borrowings FEEE
Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEM EERBE T
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU LEBEFRBREE
Over 5 years EEMUE

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entities.
The bank borrowings of the Group carry interest rates which range
from 2.25% to 5.86% (2022: 2.50% to 7.04%) per annum during the

year ended 31 December 20283.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the variable-rate bank borrowings
of the Group carry interest at the PRC’s lending rate less certain
margin, South Korean Government Treasury Bond Rate, One Year
Corporate Bond Rate plus 1.3% (2022: 1.3%), or Three Year Corporate
Bond Rate plus 1.2% (2022: 1.2%). The maturities of these borrowings
range from within twelve months from the reporting period end to 2029

and 2030.

Included in the Group’s secured bank borrowings, US$14,119,000
(2022: US$21,537,000) are guaranteed by the Group’s fellow

subsidiary, CGN Wind Energy.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

31.

ﬁE Tfaﬁ C:E)

FEEERRNT

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
430,364 305,841
358,723 363,418
901,476 962,641
1,491,766 1,562,594
3,182,329 3,194,494

ﬁA$E¢HH5E FrEHRTESHUIERSTEN

hAE S EHE - B E2023F 1283 1B LEFE
zts%@%ﬁmﬁ‘*}ﬁﬁ}z 25%%F5.86% (2022
F 1 2.50%FE7.04%) WEFZHGE o

R20235F K 2022F 12831 H » AERB By Al &
ERTEBENRAEERMNXEFETEE 5
EBFEGEMNE - —FHCEESFEM.3%
(20224 : 1.3%) ’ﬁzﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂﬂ
1.2% (20225 1 1.2%) st B - ZEBEW I
FHRNFREARES+ZEA mizozgfﬁ&
2030% ©

AEBBIKFIRETEESR14,119,000E 7T
(20224 : 21,537,000%70) AAEER A KB
AT EZEBER-
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31.

The Group pledged the following assets to banks for credit facilities
granted to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment Y R ek

Trade receivables B 5 EWEER

Contract assets EREE

Bank deposits RITER

LEASE LIABILITIES 32.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable
as follows:

Within 1 year —FRN

After 1 year but within 2 years —F U EERBBMmE
After 2 years but within 5 years MEMU EEBARBBEE
Over 5 years EEME

IR1TfEE (@)

FEBMITRAEBERNEEREBRTIET
MTEE-
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
896,338 1,053,894
629,461 412,331
207,677 166,525
111,735 152,270
1,845,211 1,785,020
1= ==
HEAaE
R2023F K&2022F 12831 H  HEGGERERER
BRAT
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
6,209 4,864
5,338 3,708
6,487 4,925
33,573 23,745
45,398 32,378
51,607 37,242

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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33.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The government grants consist of (i) subsidies of RMB11,484,000
(equivalent to US$1,621,000) (2022: RMB12,416,000 (equivalent to
US$1,783,000)) given by the PRC government to certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC for operating cost and environmental
protection; and (ii) grants of RMB37,300,000 (equivalent to
US$5,266,000) (2022: RMB41,300,000 (equivalent to US$5,930,000))
given by the PRC government to a subsidiary of the Group in respect
of a project for the construction of property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC received value-added tax refund amounted to
US$8,298,000 (2022: US$4,079,000) from the PRC government, which
was recognized as other income upon receipt.

The movement of the government grants during the year is set out
below:

As at 1 January B1B1H
Exchange differences PERER
Receipt of government grants W E| B AT Bh &
Recognition as other income (note 6) FEBAE MU A (H:t6)
As at 31 December ®12831H
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: FL2WMENDFA :
Current TREN
Non-current e E

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

33.

K FF#EEh &

B MBS 8E()PEBF M E N A RIRE
RERTAERETHIENBAINEBAR
#£11,484,0007c (FHE 71,621,000% 75) (2022
£ ARE#12,416,0007c (FHE 71,783,000
70)) 5 R(iPEBNFHRERYE BE K& E
HEATAEE—XWEBARNEEDE AR
37,300,000t (HHE125,266,000%75) (2022
£ AR %41,300,0007% (#8E 515,930,000
Jo)) °

HE2023F12831HIEFE ) AEBMURFHE
HNETHEBASWRFEBMANEERER

8,298,0003 7T (20224 : 4,079,000 7t) » FAUX
F R RERR A EMUA o
FEABBEMENESEMT
2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
7,713 9,557
(126) (775)
8,760 4,619
(9,459) (5,688)
6,888 7,713
191 194
6,697 7,519
6,888 7,713
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Advance payments received from AW E B I8
customers

All contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognized are as follows:

Sales of steam

The Group receives deposits from the customers before the generation
of steam activity commences, this gives rise to contract liabilities at
the start of the contract, until the goods, i.e. steam is supplied to the
customers.

The amount of advance payment received from customers for sales of
steam is expected to be recognized as income within one year.

aFR&E

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
3,959 4,569

FIEEREERINAERERCEBRANG

fEo

TEOCEIARABEZEN —RARFERD
T

HEZENR
A EE RN EEDG A S KR

T WERRERRRRELESRER EEE
M (BNER) HEFER L

MEHERRERRBEZHEREN —FR
HERAUWA °
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023

35. B fEERRKRE

. . s 4=
Movements in components of equity (a) MERAHRRER > EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEBLGE H DS HE D B4 &
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set BHREHRZBENHEEEN GEER
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details BEIR o LN &Y A A B E ) B FEREE
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of 18 B 4B AR 36 0 B 2 B EE 1
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Share Share Capital ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve profits equity
(S R E BAGHE 5 gkl mEs
US$°000 US$°000 Us$'000 US$°000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note(i))
Wz (i)
At 1 January 2022 1R2022F1A1H 55 250,406 70,683 79,088 400,232
Profit for the year and total AEERH REEWREEE
comprehensive income - - - 54,363 54,363
Dividend declared and paid in ~ EERRIETH LEERE
respect of previous year (H#:235(b)(i))
(note 35(b)(ii)) - - - (36,952) (36,952)
At 31 December 2022 12022128311 55 250,406 70,683 96,499 417,643
Profit for the year and total AEERNREANREE
comprehensive income - - - 98,520 98,520
Deregistration of a subsidiary s SH—KMBAT - - (4,592) - (4,592)
Dividend declared and paid in  EERRIKNTHNELEERE
respect of previous year (H7:235(b)(ii))
(note 35(b)(ii)) - - - (39,029) (39,029)
At 31 December 2023 1R2023&12831H 55 250,406 66,091 155,990 472,542
Note: sz -
(i) Capital reserve represented the difference between investment cost (i) BEAGEBEEERANPEHAERNE

and carrying value of certain subsidiaries arising from internal group

reorganization.

FHEBARKRERARREEZE
HERE
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(1)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period
of 1.56 cents per share
(2022: 0.91 US cents)

FH1.56ED

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognized as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year
of 0.91 cents per share
(2022: 0.86 US cent)

ERR0.91ED

REEHERIKT B
F—HMBEENRBRE

35. B fHERIRE @

(b) KRR

() BERTFEENENEL
B HARRAIAR S

REHRBRICRERE
(20224F : 0.91% %)

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
66,921 39,029
66,921 39,029

RRESPREFIROERARER
BRERRIERIBER-

(i) BERL—MBEELR
2SR B HEHE R IRAT BOFE (S
NAB)EmRRIRE

(20224 : 0.86E D)

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’o000 USs$’000
FET FET
39,029 36,952

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 35. BEX -HERRKRE &)

(continued)
. L
(c) Share capital (c) B&Z
Issued share capital BT
Number of shares Share capital
K& E B 2
HK$’000
FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 cent each SREE.OIEBILZ ZER
Authorized: ERE
At 1 January 2022, K2022F1 H1H ~2022F %
31 December 2022 and 2023 2023%F12H31H 250,000,000,000 25,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
At 1 January 2022, R2022F1 H1H ~20225F %
31 December 2022 and 2023 2023F12831H 4,290,824,000 429
USs$’000
FET
Shown in the consolidated financial R EMBRRITA
statements as 55
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends ZERNFE A AGRBEEBAREIRN
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per BRE T EENREAATADG LIREKR—
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank EMARETRE-RALBDHRGE
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. EMs MAZEREZERSEMAL

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Reserves

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Other non-distributable reserves

Other non-distributable reserves principally represent
statutory reserves and enterprise work safety funds.
Statutory reserves are required to be appropriated
from profit after income tax of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC, under the relevant laws and
regulations. Allocation to the statutory reserves shall
be approved by the board of directors of the relevant
subsidiaries. The appropriation to statutory reserves
may cease if the balance of the statutory reserves
has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves may be
used to make up losses or for conversion into capital.
The relevant subsidiaries may, upon the approval
by a resolution of shareholders’ general meeting/
board of directors’ meeting, convert their statutory
reserves into capital in proportion to their then existing
shareholdings. However, when converting the statutory
reserves into capital, the balance of such reserve
remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of
the registered capital. Enterprise work safety funds are
required to be appropriated from revenue for the year
of the subsidiaries established in the PRC engaged in
power generation according to Cai Zi [2022] No. 136,
Notice on Promulgation of the Administrative Measures
for the Accrual and Use of Expenses for Work Safety
by Enterprises (B4E (2022) 1365% > R ENEE (1%
ZE24EERRMERSEIA)NBER). The
allocation to enterprise work safety funds ranged from
0.2% to 3% of revenue for the year. The appropriation
of the funds may cease if the balance of the funds has
reached to three times or more of the amount that shall
be accrued in the previous year.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in note 2(i).

Translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 2(w).

35. B HERKS @

fitfe
() EHAtRE RS

HEMAa D IkEEEERE
ERERGEZE2EEE R
BAEBEERER  ACHE
BRRAPERIINKEBASZ
BREFBMEBEHEANIRR - DEEE
AEREALEHANBASZ
“%ﬁ%tt/& 8 7% & 1 18 45 R
ZIEREMNBABEMELRZ
50% > B A {2 IE IR BUA FE s 8 o
EEREER BIERE BRI E
MAEBR FRNBABAIE
REARE EESELER
/\uit—rtﬂitlgfé }#/\EEE%ZEE
BERFRELHBELIEHES
BRABX R A ERES
BMABERFE MAREHR HE
ERAELOREMELRZ25%¢
RiEBE([2022]1365% BT ED
B(hEZ2EEERRIM
ERHEEBEREIA)NBEMN X
Z24EBEABNRPREMILRE
ERENHBADNEARRA
R -DEELEZEZEESE
HNEBENFFERNWAB0.2%E
3% HAEMESARED L—
EERGHREN =GR UL
Bl IHRERERE S

(d)

(i) HPEE

HhEEEIER TR 25
FEANBEAAIANAABER
STEEFENAENR Y HE
M sE2() MY IR & Tk 2 H R AR
RN S st BURTERE R B
HHIHRERE

iy ERHE
EREEOIEREEN LY

BREMEENAIINEE
RH o IR IR EE2(w) T EAY &
STEERBEIE o

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR



230

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|-T.|_

O B 5 ¥ < B 51

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12831 B LEEE

35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders, loans from fellow subsidiaries
and bank borrowings, as disclosed in notes 25, 30 and 31,
respectively, net of pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company, comprising issued
capital, accumulated profits and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
from time to time. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, the issue of new
shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has been largely dependent on a small number of
customers which are state-owned enterprises for a substantial
portion of its business. Most of the power plants of the Group
sell the electricity generated to their respective customers
who are the principal grid companies where the power plant
is located. The failure of these customers to make required
payments could have a substantial negative impact on the
Group’s profits. The Group has concentration of credit risk as
98% (2022: 94%) of the total trade receivables was due from
37 (2022: 25) state-owned enterprises as at 31 December
2023. In order to minimize credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
receivables.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix based on the historical
settlement records, latest aging profile of those receivables
and forward looking information that is available without undue
cost and effort. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
expected credit losses of US$2,931,000 in respect of trade
receivables were recognized (2022: reversal of expected
credit losses of US$3,182,000) and expected credit losses of
US$5,662,000 in respect of contract assets were recognized
(2022: US$5,973,000).
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%Jﬁ CENEMFIEMZ T EEH AT -
ZEZPMKEZNMBRIE FHA
EEGEMNEREAEEBZE -HRE
2023 12H31H ESEWRN4EEE
$198% (20224 : 94%) R H37HK (2022
Fi2sR)EHBRE EIZE%@T?T‘E&
ABEFBER - ARESERR  &&E
@%E@E%J&@%%a?ﬂmfmfﬁﬁ
E - CEEMREMERER  UER
IRENER# 1T 8) > [o] Uk 28 HA FE WL 7R I8 ©

AEERBER2HBHEEREN
TR EZSESRRERRERE
ENEEEEG SRtENREZSE
BRI B EA B8R BRNRERIER
REEBRLHARE I ERZNA
BN IREEBEREEL & ZE2023
F12A31BIFFEEAEERES
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5,973,000 7T) ©

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR



232

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wm O B S i R Bl 5

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12831 B LEEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2022 202281 81H

Impairment losses recognized BRI ERE

Impairment losses reversed BE# LR ESE

Exchange difference ERER

At 31 December 2022 R20225F12831H
and 1 January 2023 F22023F181H

Impairment losses recognized EERRERER

Impairment losses reversed BE# LR ERE

Exchange difference ERER

At 31 December 2023 R20235FE12H31H

The following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

At 31 December 2023 ##2023%F12H31H
Trade receivables B 5 U R
Contract assets EREE

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12831H
Trade receivables B 5 AR
Contract assets EREE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

36. HIEEMEEREMTARN
NREE #B)

(a) EERE &
HERIKIERR AFEE 60
5% 7 UG R R A P 2 05 R O

BRI FEARNEFHUNT :
Trade Contract

receivables assets Total
B 5 EUWART EEEE st
US$’000 Us$’000 us$’000
FET FETT FET
16,521 4,718 21,239
- 5,979 5,979
(3,182) (8) (3,188)
(1,301) (577) (1,878)
12,038 10,114 22,152
3,398 5,662 9,060
(467) - (467)
(213) (190) (403)
14,756 15,586 30,342

TRIEMET BRR2023F KX20225F12
B3 HNESRBRKERAREREEZ
SERKBKEBHEERBZER

Weighted- Gross Impairment
average carrying loss
loss rate amount allowance
MEFHREEE IREAEME WERERE
Us$’000 us$’000

FETT FET

1.9% 780,784 (14,756)

4.1% 383,732 (15,586)
1,164,516 (30,342)

1.6% 751,352 (12,038)

2.8% 364,333 (10,114)
1,115,685 (22,152)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

For other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
a 12-month ECL unless credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The credit risk on other receivables is limited
as other receivables are mainly value-added tax receivables,
prepayments and deposits, which are expected to be deducted
from value-added tax payables or recognized as expenses
in the future. The credit risk on amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries is limited as the counterparties are operating
smoothly and with sound collection history.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
and pledged bank deposits

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with sound credit ratings, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents as well
as undrawn banking facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilization of bank borrowings, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders and loans from the fellow
subsidiaries and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group finances its operations by short-term and long-
term bank and other borrowings and shareholders’ equity.
The Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
US$234,651,000 as at 31 December 2023.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MIZREGEEKREMITARN
— =
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RREE (B
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBEZRE )
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that CGN KANBDEERD ARARBRNE AR
Wind Energy, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, has FEZEBEEEmRD BEXRETE
confirmed in writing that despite the loan from CGN Wind ZRBENERAR2,400,000,0007T
Energy of RMB2,400,000,000 (equivalent to US$338,854,000) (#8E 7 338,854,000% 7T) B 2023
are due for repayment within twelve months from 31 December F12B31HEs+ BB REE
2023, it will not cancel the existing loan facilities within twelve HEArAgB2023F 12831 Eliui"f'_
months from 31 December 2023 and that the loan will be BAAZHREEERME  BEMHER
extended upon expiry. Furthermore, taking into account the ZIHBRIER o th4h > ot e AN B Y R
financial resources of the Group, the Group has unutilized FBEIR > R2023F12831H  AEEA
general facilities of US$893,162,000 as at 31 December 893,162,000 T AREH — Al & >
2023 for the next twelve months from the end of the reporting WHRBREHARE T BB RN I
period. In addition, the directors of the Company have RN EEEBRAEESEREM
reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by the RENAERRERERA - RERE
management of the Group. The cash flow projections cover BAKEERSHEARESALR+Z
a period not less than twelve months from the end of the &8 B B9 EAE] ©
reporting period.
Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, Ktk tilE828% AREESDA
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that, the KEBRRKXRK+-ZEEBEREEE
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its cashflow ExmeHREEREFT K
requirements in the next twelve months.
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRIINKAEBIETESHE BN R
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non- SHARNEG T REER HRER KT
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual RRSME (OFEREEMNER WBF
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments A E) RREBAREFNHEFEDN
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FEMAR) MAEBEEASZTHRESR
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date HEAsH & -
the Group can be required to pay:
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
1 year or but less than but less than  More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—ERE  —EME  RENL #12B318
BER BFEBME EFEBARE REME 4 REE
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000 Uss$’000 Uss’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2023 12023128310
Bank borrowings RIEE 509,823 410,497 2,270,570 1,824,187 5,015,077 4,448,155
Lease liabilities HESE 6,423 6,182 7,443 48,133 68,181 51,607
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REAZRBATINER 835,549 471,407 30,308 104,504 1,441,768 1,410,106
Amounts due to non-controlling IR R R IE
shareholders 3,209 - - 2,118 5,327 4,418
Trade payables B AR 108,671 - - - 108,671 108,671
Other payables HinE[FE 437,609 287 4,890 3,758 446,544 444,470
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEft %M BA A 107,045 - - - 107,045 107,045
2,008,329 888,373 2,313,211 1,982,700 7,192,613 6,574,472
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MBREMEERERMITARN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RHEE B
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REEZEE (@)
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
1year or butless than but less than More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—FRgE —FEME mENL 128318
RER BFBEME BFABBRE  REME B FEE

Us$'000  US$'000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$'000
TET TE£T TET FET FET TE£T

As at 31 December 2022 20225128318
Bank borrowings ROEE 991,425 421,937 1,497,810 2,075,623 4,986,795 4,364,480
Lease liabilities HE&E 6,130 5,334 9,389 31,454 52,307 37,242
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZNBARNER 677,498 275,903 504,801 133,617 1,591,819 1,528,543
Amounts due to non-controlling  FEfTIEEER R EFE

shareholders 899 - - 2,154 3,053 2,053
Trade payables BEEMRR 223,028 = = = 223,028 223,028
Other payables and accruals HtENRERESER 483,707 287 861 4,332 489,187 486,829
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEffE & BATZIE 110,743 = = = 110,743 110,743

2,493,430 703,461 2,012,861 2,247,180 7,456,932 6,752,918

2023 FERE @ PEEZAERERERAT
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group’s interest rate risk profile as monitored

by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate risk profile

The following table, as reported to the management of
the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

Fixed-rate borrowings:
Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings
Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Variable-rate borrowings:

Bank borrowings
Loans from follow subsidiaries

Net exposure

EBEHE:
HE&E

RITEE
FKERRNERTNER

ZEMEE:

RITEE
KERRMEABDNEMR

[ Bz v 5% 88

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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RREE @&

(c)

) 2= Ja B

FMERBRAET SN XL ERS R
TENRAABEIRKRREREEE
REE ELER - A BB F) R ERREE R
BREEE - LUF B R R EEF &
ENEEEAEEDIARETRE
MEEARRAADBENREAR EEE
PRES HER A & B A R & B K S S R
MNEB ()R

()  FIREEESR

TR (EnNFEREEERS)
HHRANREHRAERE

B =R R
Notional amount
LEEEH

2023 2022
20234 20224
uUs$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
51,607 37,242
1,265,826 1,169,986
1,016,105 1,105,862
2,333,538 2,313,090
3,182,329 3,194,494
394,001 422,681
3,576,330 3,617,175
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately US$13,411,000
(2022: US$13,582,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualized impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2022.

36.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily US$, CAD, RMB and HK$. The Group
manages this risk as follows:

(1)

Hedges of foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to
manage its currency risk until the settlement date
of foreign currency receivables or payables. The
Group designates those forward exchange contracts
as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges and
does not separate the forward and spot element of a
forward exchange contract but instead designates the
forward exchange contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship. Correspondingly, the hedged item is
measured based on the forward exchange rate.

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and determines
the existence of an economic relationship between the
forward exchange contracts and the highly probable
forecast transactions based on their currency amounts
and the timing of their respective cash flows. The
main sources of ineffectiveness in these hedging
relationships are:

(i) the effect of the counterparty’s and the Group’s
own credit risk on the fair value of the forward
exchange contracts which is not reflected in
the change in the value of the hedged cash
flows attributable to the forward rate; and

(i) changes in
transactions.

the timing of the hedged

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36. HERAREEREMTAN

DREE @)

. . qE i
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥EkE #E
(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk in (i) ¥‘I}FF?E~ 132 5 BV SMEE JEL
forecast transactions (continued) % (48)
The following table details the forward exchange TREINREPRIEEAK
contracts that have been designated as cash flow EEBBEYENTEINRZHIR
hedges of the Group’s highly probable forecast EREHFTNEHINESR :
transactions at the end of the reporting period:
2023 2022
20235 20224
Foreign Local Foreign Local
currency currency currency currency
shig P HhiE PN
CAD’000 KRW’000 CAD’000 KRW'000
FT FET FiT FéET
Notional amount LEEE
- Buy CAD (sell KRW) —B AN (HERT) - - 96,109 78,749,517
2023 2022
20235 20224
Us$’000 USs$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount (note) IRTEE (475E)
- Asset —BE - 8,300
Note: MraE -
As at 31 December 2022, the forward exchange contracts have R2022F 1283180 EBHIINE S B
a maturity of within one year from the reporting date and have an BERESHAES—FAE M
average exchange rate of 819.24 between CAD and KRW. REBITHFHEZ%A819.24°
(ii) Recognized assets and liabilities (i) ERIBEERERE

The net fair value of forward exchange contracts used
by the Group as hedging instruments denominated
in foreign currencies at 31 December 2023 was nil
(2022: US$8,300,000), recognized as derivative
financial instruments.

In respect of other trade receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

R2023%FE128310 > A&EEHA
EH AT AU EFENER
HIEERNFAABERAT
(20224 : 8,300,000 7T) °
ThRERATESRIT R

PIRSNBSHEREME 5 B U
R EMERMS &R
BE R 225 38 5w 22 B DUBD R BE =
BAS S SNSRI HR
7183 1 R % L B e D R
R AR BIKF o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MEAMGEERERTAN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL NREE #B)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d)

(iii) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognized assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in United States
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end

S%EE (B

(iii)

FREEREY S B AR

TREINAEBN RS AR
T B2 DUAR R B2 A8 T AE 5 WS U 5h
ERSHENEHEIEENER
MEENEEEAR LERE
WM S > P A R A& 8
D F 4 BB R BB
ETTHme

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in United States dollars)

FE ER 9 5 1% B B (MK 7251 7R)

date.
us$ RMB
EH ARE
US$'000  US$’000
FET FET
Assets BE 7,264 15,858
Liabilities = (28,116) -

Gross exposure arising from BRIABEREE
recognized assets and liabiliies FTEEMZAERED  (20,852) 15,858

2023
20235
HK$ EUR CAD JPY
AT B mi H
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000

Us$°000
FET

531
(196)

335

FET FET FET

13 14,700 2,354
(309) - (6,491)

(296) 14,700 (4,137)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in United States dollars)

FREERAYSME A IR (M 75)

Us$ RMB

e AR

Us$'000  US$'000

FE7T F£E7T

Assets BE = 16,582
Liabilities =0 (29,120) =

Gross exposure arising from ERIEEREE
recognized assets and liabilities FTEEMERARMHO  (29,120) 16,582

2022
20224
HK$ EUR CAD JPY
BT B i H
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000

Us$'000
FET

77

77

FET FET FET

13 3,113 =

13 3,113 -
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L =1
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MBEKEEREMTAN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DREE #)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥EkE #E
(iv) Sensitivity analysis vy BREDW
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRERNKEERKR BN (R
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and R EF) U GEERIEAM
other components of consolidated equity that would %ﬂﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ$%@ﬁf§ﬁiﬁﬁﬂi
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has SRERREBOERNZHEE
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period 2E (RRFABEMTE AR
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk l?”ﬁ%?ﬁ) L= N1
variables remained constant. IRHY BD B & o
2023 2022
20235 20224
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit (decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and
exchange rates  retained profits exchange rates retained profits
HizHE HirME
EXLA/ HHREFEDEF EXLEH,/ BIRREEF
(FF2) A (T &) 2
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
us$ ES 10% (1,564) 10% (2,207)
(10%) 1,564 (10%) 2,207
RMB AR 10% 1,324 10% 1,385
(10%) (1,324) (10%) (1,385)
CAD mic 10% 1,130 10% 236
(10%) (1,130) (10%) (236)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into United State dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2022.

EREBINZDMERATREE
ERERRZEYEERAE
BOBR A 1R et M) e R i B9 & 5T RD
R g Ia25 B MmZR
SHRNEZRMERET-

BREEDPMBRRENREBESHERE
FRILLEERSEHEHTELR
EEFITA SR AL TSI
BEARNESHRIE  GF&EHE
RAB UL IEE S NG S
AE & M8 o B B FE T 7R T8 K FE IR
RIB ez DR 2022FEHEE
HETo
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023

36.

MHERREEREMIARN
RREE @&

(e) AREEFE

(1)

BRARBESENEHME
EXRERE

DREERR

TREINAEBNREAREK
KEETEEXAENEHITAN
AREBE THRESBERYE
BREERBISRALIEEE
FIREN=ZMRANBEER
AREEFEZINERDZ
ZEE MRS ABERN
ABRMEREZEEENT

- EREE: AAEE
EERE—REAK
% - BD 16 7 o &2 1
R B A IS
By AT R B 4 1

. BMmEE AREE
A58 — i A BB T
B AT EE—HH
AEHERAREEL &
ERAEARTAHEHA
BB - FIBERBAK
BRRTHEEERAA
BB A B ©

. B=MEEERAEKR
TR RBARETE
NRREE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MBRAMKEEREMTARN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RREE (B
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) LDREBESE #E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities () BARBEFENEHME
measured at fair value (continued) EREE #)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RREEREBR @)
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, B E2023F K2022F12831H
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, FEFE EF—HREE R E
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy WHREE IESANIELSE
is to recognize transfers between levels of fair value =R AEENBEABE AR
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which BEBRZENEENTELE
they occur. FAR B R S AR T A RERR o
Fair value at Fair Value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2023 categorised into
2023 1#20235F12B31HN AR BEHENEA
1K2023% Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
128318H
AREE F— BIH B
us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BEMAREEHE
measurements
Assets BE
Financial assets designated 3I§EANRAAEE2
at FVOCI BEEFst AHMEE
haEnNEnEE 3,354 = = 3,354
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Fair value at
31 December
2022
20224
1283181
AREE
us$'000
FET
Recurring fair value REHAREBEHE
measurements
Assets BE
Financial assets designated EEANAABEE
at FVOCI BEFH AHMEE
BENEmEE 3,411
Derivative financial TEEmMIA
instruments
- Forward exchange —ZHSNESR
contracts 8,300
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurements
The fair value of forward exchange contracts in Level
2 is determined by discounting the difference between
the contractual forward price and the current forward
price. The discount rate used is derived from the
relevant government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit
spread.
The fair value of financial assets designated at FVOCI
in Level 3 is determined by using the adjusted net
assets method of the financial assets.
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and

MHERREEREMIARN
RREE @&

(e)
(i)

NREESE @

BRARBESENEHME
ER&RE @

RREERER (B

Fair Value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into

K2022F 12831 BN AR BEFEDES

Level 1

-1
Us$°000
FET

Level 2 Level 3
B B=MH
us$'000 US$'000
FET FET
- 3,411

8,300 -

liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortized cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2023.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

(i)

B_RMB=RANEEHE
Fi {8 R B it (B 52 9 e i A B

REZHKPERIESANA
AEBEEDEBFTECREHNE
%8B R R A ER 2 M E
EE-FMEANTREXDRE
¥ & 8 R B9 A8 BR U U at =R e
BANMARRENEREER
Yo

RE=ZBRTEE/UAAEE
SAEEHZFHAHMBE N
TMNEREEZLARBEDRE
BERMEENKREFEER
EE-

BIEAREETIRN R
BEEREEHNAREE

7 55 [ 2 4 B AR AS 5T 2 19 <& R
TENRBEEAER20226 K
2023F12H31HNARBEL
BMEARERO
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DECONSOLIDATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

2023

In September 2023, Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya Company Limited (B
ARSI ETE AR AF))and Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya Hydropower
Company Limited (EFERHIE22/KE B RAE) (together as “Meiya
Rongjiang”) commenced compulsory liquidation initiated by the court.
In September 2023, a forced dissolution panel designated by the court
has been set up to take over the control of Meiya Rongjiang in order
to execute the liquidation procedures. Upon the formation of the forced
dissolution panel, the Group no longer had controlling power to govern
the financial and operating policies of Meiya Rongjiang so as to benefit
from their activities. Accordingly the Group recognized a gain on
deconsolidation of approximately US$2,485,000 arising from release of
cumulative translation difference of Meiya Rongjiang.

According to the declaration of creditor’s rights submitted to the
forced dissolution panel and the accounting records of Meiya
Rongjiang, the directors of the Company considered that the Group
is entitled to receive approximately RMB79,757,000 (approximately
equivalent to US$11,261,000) from the dissolution panel upon the
liguidation of Meiya Rongjiang and such balance is recognized under
other receivables as current asset as the management of the Group
expects such balance can be settled within one year from the end
of the reporting period. Included in the consideration receivables,
RMB191,000 (equivalent to approximately US$27,000) is equal to the
excess of the net assets value attributable to the Group, and such gain
will be treated as an equity transaction as the capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders.

37.

BUHE#H HEHBAR

20234

R2023F9R BERRMIETRBR AT REFRR
IEGKEBARAR #HEEE/MI)) FERH
SEEREN R AIE E - 112023F98  EIRIEEN
BEIRBUNEE I UIBE =T RTRES
B RMBITAEREF AHIBEBUNER L%
AEETEEEEHNEUEEEDTRINME
REEHE EMEENEESPERE AL
7 5 B[R] AR B 55 58 RS T B9 2 5 BB 2 2= BA T FE BB
BECH & H W 492,485,000 7T ©

RIFARGI R EE SRV EREAENZH
REGRIGRH AR EERAELER
EHERETRIIERENMRIZE S WA A
R 179,757,0007c (BB E 5 #711,261,000%7T) »
HRASEEEEBEPEZGEINKRSEHR
EEt—FERBE WZEHRNENMEKRHIET
BEAATHEE OEERKEETNARE
191,0007c (FHE 1R 4927,000%7T) HER &EEH
EEFEEBENER 2REBEAIEER
REEENRERZRIE

At September

2023
#2023%F9H
US$’000
FETT

The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: REUHGEHBHENEEZEWNT ©
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEEY 16,872
Other receivables HAth e R IE 70
Inventories 78 84
Trade payables B EAERR (98)
Other payables HAE RIE (3)
Tax payable B HRIE (26)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FEAT IE R AR SR 7R 18 (398)
Net assets deconsolidated BUHEHINEEFE 16,501

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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37. DECONSOLIDATION/DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2023 (continued)

Gain on deconsolidation of Meiya Rongjiang

Cash consideration receivables

Cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net assets of

Meiya Rongjiang
Net assets deconsolidated
Non-controlling interests deconsolidated

Represented by:
Gain on deconsolidation recognized in profit or loss
Gain on deconsolidation recognized in equity

Net cash outflow arising from the deconsolidation:

Cash and cash equivalent deconsolidated

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023

=,

20234 (43)

BUH & =R AU W e

FEWER & B

EDRUIREENRFERWE

B HNEERE
BUB &R IFEE Rt

ZEEER
PR SR BOE & ff W a
P FE SR BV BOH & ff iR e

BHEHELENRES ML B .

BHEHNEERRESEEY

. BUHa HENEAT

At September

2023
42023F 98
Us$'000
FET

11,261
2,485

(16,501)
5,267

2,512

2,485
27

2,512

Us$'000
FE7T

(16,872)




37.

38.

247

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B 15 ¥k 2% B 5F

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 128310 L FE

DECONSOLIDATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2022

In June 2022, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in CGN
(Hubei) Integrated Energy Services Company Limited (&% G#E)
FEERERRIFARAT)to CGN Wind Energy, a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, at a consideration of RMB200,513,000 (equivalent to
US$29,898,000). Loss on disposal of US$67,000 was recognized

37. BUEHGH HEMBATE
#)

20224

Ro022F6 8  AEBEEHERFEZ
) GEERREAERATD ZZ2HEZTAA
ARAMNBARTEZRE REBAARK
200,513,000 (188 #229,898,000E 75) ° &4
REMBE R EEIE TR HEE1867,0005%

under Other gains and losses during the year. JT °©
US$’000
FETT

The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: RHEERRRFEEDNT ©
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,686
Current assets MEEE 43,252
Current liabilities =N (14,973)
Non-current liabilities ErRsha’d =
Net assets disposed of BHESREE 29,965
Cash consideration RERE 29,898
Net assets disposed of BHEREE (29,965)
Loss on disposal HEFE (67)

Net cash inflow from the disposal: FELHEMNRERAFE !
Cash consideration received BYERERE 29,898
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEREKRREEEEY (15,558)
14,340

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2023 not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for BEETH

38. K
B KIE

R2023F 12831 HE R EMBHRRAIREEN

BEARKEWNT
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FETT
848,533 252,256
848,533 252,256

2023 FEHRE @ HEBEZMERZERAERAR
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

39. EKRAE

The Company is ultimately controlled by CGN, which is a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC.

Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and other details disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group also
entered into the following significant transactions with related parties

during the year:

Name of related company

i) YNSEY

CGN Energy International
FR & 1% BE R [ PR

CGN Finance
REZ

CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(“CGN Energy”) and its subsidiaries
REZERBAZERREEAT
(TR EEIAEIR) K EL B AR
CGNPC Huasheng
R A% EE RS

Huamei Holding Company Limited

(“Huamei Holding”) and its subsidiaries

Huamei Holding Company Limited
(TEEEER ) REWE AR

China Clean Energy

REBRAEIR

CGN Wind Energy and its subsidiaries

FRE %R B K EL I B A B

CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

PEZAGEREERADKENEAR

CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology
Co., Limited

FEZ ER) MERMXERAE

Gansu CGN Wind Power Co., Ltd.

HEREZRNDEEERAR

Notes

bt &t

Nature of transactions

XHME

Management service income
EIERFBUWA

Management service expense
BERBEZH

Interest expense

MEZH

Interest income

B WA

Management service income
BERBUA

Interest income
B A
Interest expense
MELZH

Management service income
EERFBUA

Interest expense

AMELZH

Management service income
EERBUA

Power agency income
BEREBBA

Management service expense
BERBEZH

Interest expense

MEZH

Management service income

BERBUA
Management service expense
BERB L H

Management service expense

EERBZE
Management service expense

EERB W

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

ZNUNE|

Fx

Z

2023
20234
Us$’000
FET

481

8,591
2,789

2,584

76
16,352

6,543

20,531
13,809

957
12,296
14,266

4,970

3,970

7,043

1,253

AR E AR o T E %
BlirEREEZEARE-

B 5 R 00 3% P 3 BB 2 BA Bk 77 A AR eE 1B L
RiGEMHRENEMBOREZHMFE
S AEBPRERTERB ST ILUTEARR
L

2022
20224
US$°000
FET
753

45
6,158
2,743

3,004

51
7,932

6,556

20,531

14,304

9,660
27,287

3,443

973

3,664

562
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AY —— — —4
39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 39. EARERS (#)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Name of related company Notes  Nature of transactions 2023 2022
R AT 218 Wzt RZMEE 20234 20224

Us$°000 USs$’000

FET FET
CGN Hunan New Energy i Energy storage service expense 737 -
Development Co., Ltd. Xintian branch
FERZ GlE) M RAZEARAT ERERRTS 2
WMHEARE

China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd il Construction expense 3,022 69,458
FEZIBAERAR BERAX
CGN iii Technical service income - 42
REZ 2 17 AR U A
Hubei Xisaishan v Management service income 48 51
A E W BERBEWRA
Hubei Huadian v Management service income - 56
HIGES BIERBEUWA
Notes: et -
(i) CGN Energy International is the immediate holding company of the Company. (i) FEZERERASATNEBIZERAT
(ii) CGN Finance, CGN Energy and its subsidiaries, CGNPC Huasheng, Huamei (i) FEZMBE -PEZERRERBAR F

Holding and its subsidiaries, China Clean Energy, CGN Wind Energy and its
subsidiaries, CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries,
CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology Co., Limited, Gansu CGN Wind Power
Co., Ltd., China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd and CGN Hunan New
Energy Development Co., Ltd. Xintian branch are fellow subsidiaries of the

ERER EXERRAENBAT REF
ZEER TEZEAERENB AR PEZ
ANGEREBRABDRENBE AR FEZ
(QE5) MERBRERAR  HE P EX
BAOEEARAR -HEZIEAERAB K

Company. hEZ ) ERBEERARFES A

B AR RAEERKBAE

(iii) CGN is the ultimate holding company of the Company. (iii) REZARRBNREER AT

(iv) Hubei Xisaishan and Hubei Huadian are associates of the Group. (iv) MERABELRALESALIEMNEZE A
ao

The Group has entered into various transactions including deposits AEBCREREERBARE T HEB P EBFHE

placements, borrowings and other general banking facilities, with HERZETRITREMEEITILZERS

certain banks and financial institutions which are the PRC government- BEEFR - BERAEM —KRIBITHE R2023

related entities in its ordinary course of business. A majority of the F12B31H AEBZATFDREAFEEE

cash and cash equivalents and 87.2% (2022: 85.2%) of borrowings Y R287.2% (20224 : 85.2%) FEE 9 pIFEH N &

of the Group are with the PRC government-related entities as at 31 BB FERE RS o

December 2023.
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Also, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government-related
entities include sales of electricity to local power bureau and a state-
owned entity. About 40% (2022: 36%) of its sales of electricity and
capacity charges are to the other PRC government-related entities for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries and the payments of their emoluments were borne by
CGN and its subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other key management during the
year were as follows:

Short-term benefits rEHATE A
Post-employment benefits B 2 | A

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by
having regard to the performance of individuals and the Group and
market trends.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (> Annual Report 2023

7|

EXMERS (&)

B AEFEFEHEMBFERER RS
BREARMEBERREBEXBEEET N -NE
ZF2023F12H31HIEFEE > £940% (20224 :
36%) ZBHHE KRB EE ) HH M R
RAEREERE -

MBI E2023F K2022F12831HIEFEET
BENSERDEZREWB AR HFMNG
METEZREN B AT EE-

FTEEEASHM

FNEERAMTIZEEAENFHFMMOT :

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
377 1,484

21 102

398 1,586

EERTETHAENFHFND2EBAAKREE
BEXRFLUKRTHBBETE
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. A2 SE@MNEEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Voka FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BER&E 97 138
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 1,136 2,258
Investments in subsidiaries (Note (a)) KB ATNIKRE (Kat(a)) 1,294,962 1,252,738
1,296,195 1,255,134
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Other receivables and prepayments  ELfthFE UL 7 IE K FE (5 =B 436 350
Amount due from the immediate BB ZER A BRIE
holding company 120 -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR[EZ M B A EIE 9,483 3,455
Cash and cash equivalents RENRREEEY 31,811 36,756
41,850 40,561
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENRE
Other payables and accruals HMEARIEBERESER 4,439 6,425
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries AN EY AR 8] 5,983 5,737
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE {3 Bt /B8 A Bl 7R IE 4,514 10,489
Loan from a fellow subsidiary KERRMBAREMR 250,000 =
Loan from a subsidiary REMERBNER 49,416 53,126
Bank borrowings — due within RITEE-—R—FATHA
one year 100,000 -
Lease liabilities — due within one year BE&E&— N —E R 5 1,151 1,133
415,503 76,910
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENAREREE (373,653) (36,349)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT RAEERRBEAR
LIABILITIES 922,542 1,218,785
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRKBARNER 450,000 700,000
Bank borrowings - due after one year $R{7fE & - —FE%BZH - 100,000
Lease liabilities - due after one year fHE&EB - —FE%&ZIH - 1,142
450,000 801,142
NET ASSETS FEE 472,542 417,643
CAPITAL AND RESERVES P& 7 e {7 5
Share capital [N 55 55
Reserves =] 472,487 417,588
TOTAL EQUITY S 35(a) 472,542 417,643
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries

The Group has disclosed the information of the following material subsidaries,
as these subsidaries are repesenting its major power generation facilities of the

Group:
Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of perati i i Legal form
RI/EMAL/ i/
HERARAHE BERY ik AEHR
Indirect
i3
CGN Daesan Power Co., Ltd. Korea 8 April 2009 Joint stock company
G| 2009£4588 RHBRAS
CGN Yulchon Generation Korea 28 July 2009 Joint stock company
Co,, Ltd.
#E 2009£7F 288 RHBERAR
Nantong Meiya Co-generation The PRC 13 March 1997 Foreign investment
Co, Ltd enterprise with limited
liability
BEZDHREERAT HE 1997435138 ABRENERERLR
Wuhan Han-Neng Power The PRC 11 October 1995 Sino-foreign equity joint
Development Co., Ltd. venture
REZEENYRERAT +E 1995410811 THEERELE
CGN New Energy (Dezhou) The PRC 29 December 2014 Foreign investment
Co, Ltd* enterprise with limited
liability
RERIER @) RAT H 20145128208 ABRENEREALE
CGN (Zhejiang Xiangshan) Wind ~ The PRC 11 July 2011 Foreign investment
Power Co., Ltd* enterprise with limited
liability
RER (IR ENEE  FE 2011£78118 ABRENERERLSE
BRAE
CGN (Zhejiang Ninghai) Wind The PRC 19 December 2013  Foreign investment
Power Co., Ltd.* enterprise with limited
liability
REY (IEE) ENEE  TE 2013%128198 ABRENEREALE
BRAR
CGN Gansu Mingin Wind Power ~ The PRC 4 March 2011 Foreign investment
Co,, Lid* enterprise with limited
liability
HELHBRYENEE HE 2011£3848 ABRENERERLSE
BRAE
CGN Gansu Mingin (1) Wind The PRC 24 October 2013 Foreign investment
Power Co., Ltd* enterprise with limited
liability
TECERROE_ANEE ©E 20135108248  ABRENEREALE

BRAT

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @

Annual Report 2023

(#)

a. RHBARNIKRE

Registered
capital/issued and
fully paid-up
share capital

HREE/ BETREZRE

Issued capital of KRW16,197,500,000
and paid-up capital of
KRW16,197,500,000

16,197,500,000% 0 BE AR
16,197,500,0008 T4 R A

Issued capital of KRW18,044,400,000
and paid-up capital of KRW18,044,400,000

18,044,400,0008 T ME XK
18,044,400,0008 T B A&

Registered capital of US$16,800,000 and
paid-up capital of US$16,800,000

16,800,000% T MEAR
16,800,005 T4 R IR A

Registered capital of RMB291,260,000 and
paid-up capital of RMB291,260,000
AR%291,260,0007T MEAR
AR 291,260,007 BB A

Registered capital of US$200,308,891 and
paid-up capital of US$200,308,891

200,308 891 % BEAR
200,308,891 £ RIRA

Registered capital of RMB134,610,000 and
paid-up capital RMB134,610,000

NE#134,610,000THREXR
AR 134,610,000 R R A

Registered capital of RMB79,600,000 and
paid-up capital RMB79,600,000

ARH79,600,000c#MERK
AE 79,600,000 KA

Registered capital of RMB162,200,000 and
paid-up capital RMB162,200,000

ARH162,200,000T#MEAK
AR %162,200,0007 8 B A

Registered capital of RMB549,760,000 and
paid-up capital RMB549,760,000

AR 549,760,000 ME AR
AR %549,760,0007 8 IR A

Attributable

equity interest

held by

the Group

FEBAMSRERE
2023 2022

2023 202%

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
60% 53%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

AT BENMEBR TR

FEBERBEUTEZENBRRER] AR
ZEWBARRKAEREE

EERIE

Principal activities

TERH

Generation and supply of electricity
from an oil-fired combined cycle
power plant

AR e EREREERMERN

Generation and supply of electricity
from a gas-fired combined cycle
power plant

EMAB A ERRBEERMERN

Generation and supply of electricity
and steam and other related
products

TERMERN FRRAMERER

Generation and supply of electricity

EERMERN

Generation and supply of electricity

LERMBERD

Generation and supply of electricity

EERMERN

Generation and supply of electricity

LERMERD

Generation and supply of electricity

EERMERN

Generation and supply of electricity

LERMERD
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- — —4
{==-]
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#)
Notes: Hiaz -
a. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNIKE (8)
Place of Registered Attributable
establishment/ Date of capital/issued and equity interest
incorporation/ establishment/ fully paid-up held by
Name of perati i { Legal form share capital the Group Principal activities
Wi/ 2MEL/ i/
WEARAE EEBY EMmIES RiERR AMEE/ BRIRBZRE KEMFEERGRE TEEH
2023 2022
20236 20228
CGN Gansu Guazhou Wind The PRC 18 November 2011  Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB191,750,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
Power Co., Lid* enterprise with limited paid-up capital RMB191,750,000
liability
TERHBAMANEE HE N1ENRIBE SABRENERERLE ARK191,750,000RELR LERBEES
ARAF AR191,750,0007c 8 BB A
CGN Gansu Guazhou (Il) Wind ~ The PRC 15 November 2013  Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB627,190,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
Power Co., Ltd* enterprise with limited paid-up capital RMB556,500,000
liability
TREERONE-RNEE TE 0135118150 ABRENERRALE AR%627,190,000nERELR LERMERD
ERAT AR #556,500,00070 8 B R A
Guazhou Tianrun Wind Power The PRC 6 March 2009 Sino-foreign equity joint  Registered capital of RMB98,100,000 and 60% 60% Generation and supply of electricity
Co, Lid* venture paid-up capital RMB98,100,000
IHXEREERAR HE 2009368 PHEERELE AE 98,100,000 BEAR LERBEESN
AR 98,100,000 4 R B A
CGN Solar (Dachaidan) The PRC 15 January 2010 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB492,931,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
Development Co., Ltd* enterprise with limited paid-up capital RMB492,931,000
liability
TERARE (KRB FE T8 2010515158 ABRENAREMLE ARK492,931000mRELR LEREEEN
ARAF AR 15492,931,0007c 812 B
CGN Solar (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd*  The PRC 17 August 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB43,400,000 and 100% 100%  Generation and supply of electricity
enterprise with limited paid-up capital RMB43,400,000
liability
RERARE () BRAT TE 2011E85178 ABRENEREELE ARME43,400000TEBELR LERBEESN
AEH43,400,000TH2RA
Weifang CGN Energy Co. Ltd*  The PRC 26 August 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB153,760,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
enterprise with limited paid-up capital RMB153,760,000
liabilities
AYTERERERAT  TE 1658268 SAERENEREMLE AR%153,760000TEREXR LERMEEN
AR 153,760,000t 2R A
Lankao CGN New Energy The PRC 21 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB576,980,000 and 100% 100%  Generation and supply of electricity
Co, Ltd* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB576,980,000
liability
WEREEAERERAT & 2017835210 ABRENEREELE ARMB576,980,000EREER LERBEESN
AE#576,980,00070 5 R R A
Chifeng New Golden The PRC 14 QOctober 2016 Sino-foreign equity joint  Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and 74% 74% Generation and supply of electricity
venture paid up capital of RMB100,000,000
HESEERERAR HE 2016108148 PHAERELE AR%100,000,0007c R E AR LERBEES
AR 100,000,007 4 BB A
Yuzhou CGN New Energy The PRC 6 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB216,280,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB216,280,000
liability
BNREEMERERAR  E 2017F3868 ABRENARRELE ARS216,280,000EMEAR LERMERD
AE#216,280,0007 8 R R A
Xingtai Renxian County CGN The PRC 16 May 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB246,260,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
New Energy Power Co., Ltd* enterprise with limited paid-up capital RMB158,090,000
liability
BEERTEAMEREE T8 2018E55 160 ABRENEREMLE ARS246,200000nEMEER LERBEES
ARAF AR 158,090,000 4 BB A

2023 FERE

C

FRE E AR AERER AR AE
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of perati i {
Wi/ 2MEL/ i/
WEARAE EEBY EMmIES
CGN Fugou County New Energy  The PRC 19 September
Co,, Ltd* 2018
TEGKERERARAT pE 2018F9519H
CGN (Qianxinan State) New The PRC 25 January 2018
Energy Co,, Ltd*
hE GFEREMN) R HE 2018515250
ERAT
CGN (Wenchang) New Energy ~ The PRC 1 August 2017
Co, Ltd.*
TER (B FERERAT TE 2017£8518
CGN (Datong) New Energy The PRC 2 June 2017
Co,, Ltd*
hEY (KR FEERERAT T8 2017%E6F 28
Baoying County Rongbaoda The PRC 21 November 2016
Wind Power Co,, Ltd*
HETRREANEE HE 20165115218
BRAR
Yanling CGN New Energy The PRC 6 March 2017
Co,, Ltd*
BEMERNAERERAT  TE 20173568
CGN Yiyang New Energy The PRC 18 May 2017
Co, Ltd.*
TEREENERERAT  TE 2017£58 188
Yongcheng City CGN New The PRC 13 June 2018
Energy Co,, Ltd*
KT PREAREEERAT TE 201865130
CGN New Energy Cenxi The PRC 17 July 2018
Co, Ltd.*
TEGAERSEERAT  hE 2018E78178
CGN New Energy (Taigu) The PRC 22 December 2016
Co,, Ltd*
REEHER KD) BRAT @ 20165125228

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @

Legal form

itk

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Annual Report 2023

(#)

AT BENMEBR TR

a. RIFBATNKRE (&)

Registered Attributable

capital/issued and equity interest

fully paid-up held by

share capital the Group Principal activities

AMEE/ BRIRBZRE KEMFEERGRE TEEH

2023 2022
20236 20228

Registered capital of RMB192,690,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital of RMB192,690,000

ARH192,690,0007czE E AR LERBEES
AR192,690,0007c 8 BB A

Registered capital of RMB284,198,700 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital of RMB284,198,700

AR 284,198,700 REAR LERMERD
AR %284,198, 700 R R A

Registered capital of RMB312,400,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital RMB312,399,963

AR 312,400,000z E AR LERBEES
AR%312,399,9637T SRR A

Registered capital of RMB269,510,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital RMB269,510,000

AR 269,510,000 REAR LERMERD
AE%269,510,0007 8 B R A

Registered capital of RMB291,004,000 and 100% 69% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital RMB285,124,000

AR 291,004,000 BEER LERBEES
AR 285,124,000t 8 BB A

Registered capital of RMB382,610,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital RMB382,610,000

AR 382,610,000 EAR LERMERN
AE%382,610,0007 8 B B A

Registered capital of RMB182,760,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital RMB182,760,000

ARH182,760,0007E E AR LERBEES
AR182,760,0007c 8 R BEA

Registered capital of RMB346,070,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital RMB346,070,000

AR 346,070,000t REAR LERMERD
AR %346,070,0007 4 R R A

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity
paid up capital RMB100,000,000

AR%100,000,0007c R E AR LERBEES
AR100,000,0007c 4 BB A

Registered capital of RMB259,330,000 and 100% 100% Generation and supply of electricity

paid up capital RMB259,330,000

AE#259,330,000 & ME AR
AR 259,330,000 E R A

LERMERN
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of perati i {
Wi/ 2MEL/ i/
WEARAE EEBY EMmIES
CGN (Dangtu) New Energy The PRC 15 April 2019
Co, Ltd.*
TER (ED) FERERAT TE 2019E45158
CGN New Energy (Lianshui) The PRC 9 December 2016
Co,, Ltd*
RERSER (BN BRAT TE 2016F1289A
CGN (Hengfengxian) New The PRC 2 November 2016
Energy Co,, Ltd*
I (B AR HE 2016511528
BRAR
CGN (Shengshi) New Energy The PRC 5 July 2017
Co,, Ltd*
RER (R MERERAT  TE 2017E7A5H
Zixing CGN New Energy The PRC 6 December 2017
Co, Ltd.*
HEMEEERERAT T 2017412H68
CGN (Dongzhi) New Energy The PRC 19 August 2016
Co,, Ltd*
RRE RE) HERERAT TE 20168519
CGN New Energy Nantong The PRC 6 November 2018
Co, Ltd.*
TEEMERERERAT  TE 2018411568
CGN New Energy (Huaian) The PRC 14 August 2018
Co,, Ltd*
RREATRER (%) BRAT & 201885140
CGN New Energy Cogen The PRC 29 October 2018
Zhangjiakou Zhangbei
Co,, Lid*
TEEMEREERZORSE TE 2018510529A
BRAR
Dezhou Shangtang New Energy  The PRC 6 November 2018
Co,, Ltd*
ENEERERERAR HE 2018511568

Legal form

itk

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

==

(#8)
a.

Registered

capital/issued and

fully paid-up

share capital

AMEE/ BRIRBZRE

Registered capital of RMB323,800,000 and
paid up capital RMB323,800,000

AR 323,800,000 BERR
AR 323,800,000 4 BB A

Registered capital of RMB131,960,000 and
paid up capital of RMB131,960,000

AE 131,960,000t ME AR
AR%131,960,000c B RA

Registered capital of RMB133,086,700 and
paid up capital of RMB131,750,000

AR#133,086, 700 BELR
AR131,750,00070 4 R R A

Registered capital of RMB1,752,700,000 and
paid up capital of RMB1,749,654,881

AE#1,752,700,000 & ME £ K
AR1,749,654,881 THERA

Registered capital of RMB325,590,000 and
paid up capital of RMB325,590,000

AR#325,590,000HMERR
AR 325,590,000 4 R R A

Registered capital of RMB202,265,600 and
paid up capital of RMB198,060,600

AE#202,265,600  ME AR
AR 198,060,600t ERA

Registered capital of RMB1,995,330,000 and
paid up capital of RMB1,622,546,108

AR #1,995,330,000H MERR
AR¥1,622,546, 108 R RA

Registered capital of RMB146,710,000 and
paid up capital of RMB146,710,000

AE#146,710,000 EMEAR
ARH146,710,000T 8 R A

Registered capital of RMB132,440,000 and
paid up capital of RMB132,440,000

ARH#132,440,000 s ME AR
AR 132,440,000 4 RRA

Registered capital of RMB435,164,400 and
paid up capital of RMB283,326,800

AE#435,164, 400 EMEAR
AR %283,326,800 T ERA

2023 FERE

Attributable

equity interest

held by

the Group

KEMFEERGRE
2023 2022

20236 20228

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
83% 81%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

C

AT BENMEBR TR

RHBARDNIKE (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Generation and supply of electricity

LERBEES

Generation of electricity

LERN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

LERN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

LERN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

LERN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

LERN

FRE E AR AERER AR AE
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

*

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of perati i i
Wi/ 2MEL/ i/
WEARAE EEBY EMmIES
CGN (Ganzhou) New Energy The PRC 12 October 2018
Co,, Lid*
hER G ERERAT TE 2018105128
Xingye CGN New Energy The PRC 31 October 2018
Co,, Ltd*
BEOENERERAT  PE 20185105318
CGN New Energy Clear Water ~ The PRC 28 June 2019
Co,, Lid*
FEEAERAKERAT  hE 201965280
CGN New Energy Haiyan The PRC 29 March 2019
Co,, Ltd*
TREAERSRARAT  TE 2019F3829A
Longnan District Xinchangsheng ~ The PRC 29 March 2017
New Energy Co., Ltd*
ERESERNERERAT HE 201735290
CGN New Energy Qinzhou The PRC 27 December 2021
Co,, Ltd*
TEENERINERAT @ 20215125278
Rudong Nuclear New Energy The PRC 7 April 2022
Co,, Lid*
MEREIERERAT HE 2020F4A7H

English names are for identification purpose only.

the year.

Legal form

itk

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

AERENERERLR

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. @ Annual Report 2023

(#)

a.
Registered
capital/issued and
fully paid-up
share capital
AMEE/ BRIRBZRE

Registered capital of RMB213,290,400 and
paid up capital of RMB213,290,400

ARH#213,000 400 BEXR
AR 213,200,400 RIR A

Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and
paid up capital of RMB200,000,000

AE#200,000,0007 # ME AR
AR200,000,0007t 8 2 RA

Registered capital of RMB249,350,000 and
paid up capital of RMB249,350,000

AR 249,350,000 MERR
AR %249,350,0007 8 R R A

Registered capital of RMB191,302,300 and
paid up capital of RMB191,302,300

AE#191,302,300T#MEER
AE#191,302,300 BB KA

Registered capital of RMB136,004,400 and
paid up capital of RMB107,435,500

AR#136,004 400 BEXR
AR 107,435,500704 RIR &

Registered capital of RMB221,590,000 and
paid up capital of RMB215,000,000

AE#221,590,000T s ME AR
AR%215,000,0007c 8 2R A

Registered capital of RMB242,598,300 and
paid up capital of RMB227,458,980

AR#242,598 300 MERR
AR 1227,458,980 70 B 2R A

NS )=

Attributable

equity interest

held by

the Group

KEMFEERGRE
2023 2022

20235 20205

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 0%

ERHIARBANEEZRB L
RRRENBRABE

HBYI TR AR

RHBARDNKE (&

Principal activities

TEEH

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

LERN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

LERN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation and supply of electricity

LERMERN

Generation of electricity

LEEN

CARBEF

E%ﬁﬁzﬁigﬁﬁ%“ai
EE-BEIR #IEMNBRAANFER<
ERBRITR

BEMNBARNERETERNERERS -
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 18 January 2024, the Company, as service receiver, entered
into certain financial services framework agreements with CGNPC
Huasheng and CGN Finance each as service provider, respectively,
pursuant to which such service providers agreed to provide deposit
and other financial services to the Group. For further information,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18 January 2024.

On 25 January 2024, Rudong Lu Nuclear New Energy Co., Ltd., a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as employer, entered into an
engineering, procurement and construction contract with China Energy
Engineering Group Jiangsu No. 1 Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd.,
as contractor, pursuant to which such contractor was engaged to carry
out the works for the design, engineering, procurement, construction
and construction management of a power storage station located
in Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and related structures
and facilities. For further information, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 25 January 2024.

On 8 March 2024, CGN New Energy Yancheng Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as employer, entered into an
engineering, procurement and construction contract with China Energy
Engineering Group Jiangsu Electric Power Design Institute Co., Ltd.,
as contractor, pursuant to which such contractor was engaged to carry
out the works for the design, engineering, procurement, construction
and construction management of the phase one of the fishery
and photovoltaic complementary project located in Jianhu County,
Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and related structures
and facilities. For further information, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 8 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, no important event or transaction affecting
the Group and which is required to be disclosed by the Company has
taken place after 31 December 2023.

41.

HEHREIR

R2024F1H18H AR E (EARBES H) &
FEZERRPEZEE (EEEARBHEE
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RREEEERERAEEREERREMS
BARTS - BRAE—F ER B @Eﬁzls/\iaﬁﬂﬁ%
2024 1H18AM AL o

R2024FE 18250 A ABINEERBRABME
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42.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which
have not been adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements: Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current (“2020 amendments”)

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements: Non-current liabilities with covenants
(“2022 amendments”)

Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a
sale and leaseback

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and
IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier
finance arrangements HE T

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023

EFR & st AERISE 198 (BRI A) - B R ZHIZE) -
RIRFE D2 RB I 7B ([20204F 1657 1)

EIIR & sHERIF1SE (BT > HBHRFZNZS -
B ERIETBEE (T2022F 15571)

Bl 53R SRS 165% (85T A) - HE - E& O
HBHEE &

Bl &SRB 7SR (BF]A) » HE B KK EE
HMBREERF7 THITA  KE: HREF

B g st 2R 52158 (BFIA) » SMEEXEZHY
foreign exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability HE AR

#HF2023F12831HLLE
E B BB R R EXBVEET
A~ FET 2B K52 B uI 5E

Y HRE

HEZSHREVERRO BE g+ £0]12
EEEEMSTEMTRCETED ExEE
BIR & E2023FE 12831 ILEEEBREN B
THERZEEEMBERRFMN ZELRECIE
LUR A REE A EE AR R o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTHEHZE
BRI E s AR ER

1 January 2024
2024F181H

1 January 2024
2024FE181H

1 January 2024
2024F181H

1 January 2024
2024F181H

1 January 2025
2025%181H
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Revenue

Operating expenses:

Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Repair and maintenance
Staff costs
Recognition/(reversal) of loss

allowance of trade and other

receivables and contract
assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Gain on deconsolidation/
disposal of subsidiaries

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per Share, basic and
diluted (US cents)

A

e :
B~ AR RIAR K
ANE R

ME B KRR EITE

MEE R R E
SIS
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 202045 20214 20224 20234
US$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
€<= 7)) (& E75)

1,276,281 1,149,892 1,775,305 2,430,056 2,192,977
698,265 492,510 778,486 1,247,302 983,336
159,831 193,031 266,346 335,969 343,740
40,675 30,447 37,684 29,971 31,358
76,524 85,835 102,854 109,395 120,313

= (99) 20,292 2,791 8,593
69,368 60,701 90,047 114,976 153,144

1,044,663 862,425 1,295,709 1,840,404 1,640,484
231,618 287,467 479,596 589,652 552,493
23,157 26,318 41,307 42,699 19,774
(25,093) (11,089) 44 (69,000) (9,996)
(122,120) (145,005) (188,216) (227,105) (212,765)
32,807 29,342 (37,551) (63,252) 3,022

548 18,135 = - -
140,917 205,168 295,180 272,994 352,528
(41,564) (37,533) (34,066) (58,571) (72,895)
99,353 167,635 261,114 214,423 279,633
111,207 162,087 244,274 195,149 267,685
(11,854) 5,548 16,840 19,274 11,948
99,353 167,635 261,114 214,423 279,633

2.59 3.78 5.69 4.55 6.24

2023 FERE @

HE EZAERIER AR AE
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities HmaE
NET ASSETS BEE

Total equity attributable to equity Z</A &) #E & i% 5= FE (5
shareholders of the Company 4BRE
Non-controlling interests JEERE R

TOTAL EQUITY RS

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 202045 20214 20224 20234
US$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
€<= 7)) (& E75)
5,379,167 6,976,532 8,733,954 8,343,933 8,350,142
4,369,720 5,679,151 7,238,743 6,844,377 6,661,583
1,009,447 1,297,381 1,495,211 1,499,556 1,688,559
930,115 1,213,155 1,373,690 1,362,225 1,544,591
79,332 84,226 121,521 137,331 143,968
1,009,447 1,297,381 1,495,211 1,499,556 1,688,559

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. <> Annual Report 2023
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